
 
 
 
 
 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Commission 
 

Tuesday, 31 July, 2012 at 6.30pm 
in Council Chamber,  Council Offices  
Market Street  Newbury 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Date of despatch of Agenda:  Monday, 23 July 2012 
 
For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents 
referred to in Part I reports, please contact Elaine Walker on (01635) 519441 
e-mail: ewalker@westberks.gov.uk 
 
Further information and Minutes are also available on the Council’s website at 
www.westberks.gov.uk  

Public Document Pack



Agenda - Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission to be held on Tuesday, 31 
July 2012 (continued) 

 

 
 

 
To: Councillors Brian Bedwell (Chairman), Dominic Boeck, Jeff Brooks 

(Vice-Chairman), Roger Croft, Marcus Franks, Dave Goff, 
Margaret Goldie, David Holtby, Mike Johnston, Irene Neill, 
David Rendel, Tony Vickers, Virginia von Celsing, Quentin Webb and 
Emma Webster 

Substitutes: Councillors Peter Argyle, Jeff Beck, Alan Macro, Gwen Mason, 
Graham Pask, Andrew Rowles, Julian Swift-Hook and 
Keith Woodhams 

Other Officers & 
Members invited: 

  

 

Agenda 
 

Part I Page No. 
 
1.   Apologies for Absence  
 To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any), 

 
 

2.   Minutes 1 - 6 
 To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of the 

Commission held on 26 June 2012. 
 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 To receive any Declarations of Interest from Members. 

 
 

4.   Actions from previous Minutes 7 - 8 
 To receive an update on actions following the previous Commission 

meeting. 
 

 

5.   Items Called-in following the Executive on 19 July 2012  
 To consider any items called-in by the requisite number of Members 

following the previous Executive meeting. 
 

 

6.   Councillor Call for Action  
 Purpose: To consider any items proposed for a Councillor Call for Action. 

 
 

7.   Petitions  
 Purpose: To consider any petitions requiring an Officer response. 

 
 
 
 

 



Agenda - Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission to be held on Tuesday, 31 
July 2012 (continued) 

 

 
 

8.   Key Accountable Measures and Activities 2011/12: Year End 
Results. 

9 - 44 

 Purpose: To report year end results against the key accountable 
measures and activities for West Berkshire Council for 2011/12. 
 

 

9.   Repair of Pot Holes 45 - 66 
 Purpose: To receive a report examining the methodology in operation for 

the repair of pot holes. 
 

 

10.   Youth Clubs 67 - 72 
 Purpose: To advise the commission of the process undertaken to 

manage the transfer of youth clubs from local authority control and the 
arrangements in place resultantly. 
 

 

11.   Housing and Homelessness  
 Purpose: To consider the factors contributing to an increase in 

homelessness.  
 

 

12.   Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission Annual Report 73 - 82 
 Purpose: To receive the Scrutiny Annual Report 2011/12. 

 
 

13.   Health Scrutiny Panel 83 - 84 
 Purpose: To provide an update on the work of the Health Scrutiny Panel. 

 
 

14.   Resource Management Working Group 85 - 88 
 Purpose: To provide an update on the work of the Resource 

Management Working Group. 
 

 

15.   West Berkshire Forward Plan August 2012 to November 2012 89 - 94 
 Purpoe: To advise the Commission of items to be considered by West 

Berkshire Council from August 2012 to November 2012 and decide 
whether to review any of the proposed items prior to the meeting 
indicated in the Plan. 
 

 

16.   Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission Work Programme 95 - 98 
 Purpose: To receive, agree and prioritise the work programme of the 

Commission, the Health Scrutiny Panel and the Resource Management 
Working Group for the remainder of 2012/13. 
 

 

 
Andy Day 
Head of Strategic Support 
 

West Berkshire Council is committed to equality of opportunity. We will treat everyone with 
respect, regardless of race, disability, gender, age, religion or sexual orientation. 



Agenda - Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission to be held on Tuesday, 31 
July 2012 (continued) 

 

 
 

If you require this information in a different format, such as audio tape, or in 
another language, please ask an English speaker to contact Moira Fraser on 

telephone (01635) 519045, who will be able to help. 



DRAFT 
Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMISSION 
 

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 
TUESDAY, 26 JUNE 2012 

 
Councillors Present: Jeff Beck (Substitute) (In place of Marcus Franks), Brian Bedwell 
(Chairman), Dominic Boeck, Jeff Brooks (Vice-Chairman), Virginia von Celsing, Dave Goff, 
Roger Hunneman (In place of Tony Vickers), David Rendel, Andrew Rowles (Substitute) (In 
place of Emma Webster) and Quentin Webb 
 

Also Present: John Ashworth (Corporate Director - Environment), Nick Carter (Chief 
Executive), Chris Jones (Arts and Leisure Services Manager), Councillor Hilary Cole 
(Countryside, Environmental Protection, "Cleaner Greener", Culture), Councillor Carol Jackson-
Doerge, David Lowe (Scrutiny and Partnerships Manager) and Elaine Walker (Principal Policy 
Officer) 
 

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Marcus Franks, Councillor Tony 
Vickers and Councillor Emma Webster 
 

Councillor(s) Absent: Councillor David Holtby and Councillor Mike Johnston (Please note that 
after the meeting had taken place apologies were received from Councillor Johnston that due to 
rail disruption he had been unable to leave London.) 

The Chairman thanked Councillor Jeff Brooks for chairing the meeting held on 29 May 
2012. 

PART I 

15. Minutes 
Please note that after the meeting had taken place apologies were received from 
Councillor Johnston that due to rail disruption he had been unable to leave London. 

The Minutes of the meeting held on 29 May 2012 were approved as a true and correct 
record and signed by the Chairman. 

Councillor David Rendel requested clarification as to why the final report of the Pot Holes 
Task Group had not been brought to this meeting.  The Chairman responded that the 
Member who had raised the issue had not been available to attend this meeting, and as 
a courtesy to allow him to hear the debate, the Chairman had decided to defer the item 
until the next meeting. 

16. Declarations of Interest 
Councillor David Rendel declared an interest in Agenda Item 10, but reported that, as his 
interest was personal and not prejudicial, he determined to remain to take part in the 
debate and vote on the matter. 

17. Actions from previous Minutes 
(18:33 – Councillor Dominic Boeck joined the meeting) 

The Commission received an update on actions from the previous meeting.  Comments 
were received regarding the following items: 

Public Document PackAgenda Item 2.

Page 1



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMISSION - 26 JUNE 2012 - MINUTES 
 

2.1 and 2.2: Supplementary information was received from Councillor Roger Croft, 
Portfolio Holder for Strategy, Council Plan and Housing, responding to discussions about 
housing and homelessness. 

Councillor Rendel expressed his disappointment with the response.  He noted that there 
had been no intention to infer that employees within the Housing Service were not 
performing well, but other factors were causing a growing concern regarding 
homelessness, and that a shortage of accommodation on the district was a growing 
problem.  Councillor Rendel referred to the debate at the Commission’s meeting in May 
when it had been resolved that the Portfolio Holder be asked to facilitate a meeting with 
all involved agencies. Councillor Rendel suggested that solutions might be forthcoming if 
the issue was able to be discussed in a forum such as this. 

The Chairman asked whether the Commission wished a Task Group to be established to 
review this issue.  Councillor Quentin Webb considered that the formation of a Task 
Group would be premature in light of the fact that the Portfolio Holder had arranged a 
meeting with Sovereign Housing to discuss the issue. 

(18:40 – Councillor Roger Hunneman joined the meeting) 

Councillor Boeck suggested that prior to establishing a Task Group, it would be 
necessary to fully understand what issues it would be scrutinising.  Councillor Brooks 
reminded the Commission that it was entitled to scrutinise any issue of concern, and 
reiterated the need for an opportunity to speak with stakeholders to obtain a full range of 
views and to explore any potential solutions.  Councillor Dave Goff noted that the 
Portfolio Holder’s response had not adequately addressed whether he intended to 
arrange a meeting with involved agencies. 

The Chairman suggested that the Portfolio Holder be invited to the next meeting of the 
Commission along with a representative of Sovereign Housing in order for the 
Commission to discuss its concerns directly.  The Commission agreed this course of 
action. 

Councillor Rendel commented on the protracted processes employed for the re-use of 
Taceham House and questioned whether improved foresight could have minimised the 
delay.  Councillor Rendel requested that the supplementary information be forwarded to 
the Resource Management Working Group for inclusion in its consideration of the asset 
management structure.  The Commission agreed. 

2.3: Councillor Rendel requested an update regarding the Commission’s resolution to 
refer the proposed introduction of a 50mph speed limit on the A4 Bath Road at Padworth 
back to the Portfolio Holder for Highways for reconsideration. 

RESOLVED that: 

• The Portfolio Holder for Strategy, Council Plan and Housing be invited to the next 
meeting of the Commission to discuss housing and homelessness, along with a 
representative of Sovereign Housing; 

• The Resource Management Working Group to receive the supplementary information 
in relation to Taceham House for inclusion in their consideration of the asset 
management structure; 

• The Commission be updated on the progress of reconsidering the decision to 
introduce a 50mph speed limit on the A4 Bath Road in Padworth. 

18. Items Called-in following the Executive on 14 June 2012 
No items were called-in following the last Executive meeting. 

Page 2



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMISSION - 26 JUNE 2012 - MINUTES 
 
19. Councillor Call for Action 

There were no Councillor Call for Action. 

20. Petitions 
There were no petitions to be received at the meeting. 

21. Update on Preparations for the Olympic Games 
The Commission received a verbal report (Agenda Item 8) updating it on preparations for 
the Olympic torch relay through West Berkshire, and activities taking place within the 
district as part of the Cultural Olympiad. 

Chris Jones initially explained that he would be collating information later in the year 
relating to both aspects of the Olympic celebrations in West Berkshire, and intended to 
report on the economic impact and benefits seen within the district. 

Chris Jones informed the Commission of a number of events that took place across West 
Berkshire recently relating to the Cultural Olympiad.  A series of events had been 
undertaken as part of ‘The Berkshire Giant’ project.  Over the preceding week this had 
involved three community celebrations as well as a ‘Giants trail’, a community fair, and 
poetry and film workshops.  Chris Jones reported that thousands of adults and children 
had taken part or attended and extremely positive feedback had been received.   

A poetry event had also taken place at the Watermill Theatre involving schools, cub 
groups, young people with special needs, older people with Alzheimer’s, community 
groups and private sector groups, who took part in a writing workshop to create original 
poetry based on the Olympic motto ‘Higher, Faster, Stronger’.  The poems would be 
displayed on a poetry trail in the grounds of the theatre until September. 

With regard to the Olympic torch relay, Chris Jones reported the following: 

• A full event plan had been finalised and approved by Corporate Board.  Every 
conceivable eventuality had been considered, including road closures, the safe 
movement of large numbers of young people, crowd safety and missing children, and 
had been well received by the Thames Valley Resilience Forum; 

• The plan had been tested through a multi-agency desk top exercise and all learning 
from this had been incorporated; 

• The plan included information on how to deal with extreme weather, and this 
information would be made available to staff, schools and stewards; 

• Steward training was underway and the required number of volunteers was expected 
to be achieved; 

• The process would be evaluated following the event for lessons to be learned. 

Councillor Rendel asked for details of the costs associated with the district hosting the 
torch relay and associated events.  Councillor Carol Jackson-Doerge replied that where 
other organisations were providing volunteers or events, the costs were absorbed by 
those organisations; for West Berkshire Council, the cost of volunteers was limited to 
staff time.  Councillor Rendel queried whether volunteers were being reimbursed for 
travel expenses to attend training in Newbury.  Chris Jones responded that they were 
not, however if there were sufficient numbers, a training session would be scheduled for 
the East of the district for those based further away. 

The Cultural Olympiad programme was to be delivered as part of normal business.  To 
achieve this, the Arts and Leisure Service budget had a commissioning budget of 
£30,000 which was being used to commission work with local groups.  A further £20,000 

Page 3



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMISSION - 26 JUNE 2012 - MINUTES 
 

had been allocated for infrastructure.  Councillor Hilary Cole informed the Commission 
that when LOCOG had been invited to bring the Olympic torch to West Berkshire, there 
had been an understanding that there would be no cost to West Berkshire, however 
since then it had become apparent that in order to maintain public safety, a sum of 
£20,000 would be required.  Nick Carter confirmed that this sum had been agreed after 
the Council’s budget setting process in March, and had been allocated to the civil 
contingencies budget for day to day management. 

Councillor Jeff Beck asked what media plans were in place to forewarn communities 
about the disruption that would occur on 11 July, but also on 10 July when the torch relay 
would be in Reading.  Chris Jones responded that it was recognised that torch activity 
occurring close to the Council’s borders would have an effect on West Berkshire 
communities and communication plans had accounted for this.  Communication routes 
would include social media, leaflet drops to houses en route and talking to ShopWatch.  
Local bus companies were making their own arrangements.  There was a possibility that 
the overhead matrix signs on the M4 and A34 could be used. 

The Chairman recognised the quantity of work required to manage a project of this size 
and thanked Chris Jones for his role.  Councillor Cole commented that the amount of 
work undertaken was exceptional for an event that would be just a few hours long. 

22. Youth Clubs 
Item 9 on the agenda, Youth Clubs, was not discussed by the Commission, but was 
deferred to a future meeting.   

The Chairman explained that the Officers involved in this item were required to prepare 
for an Ofsted inspection and he had therefore excused them from attending this meeting.  
The item was to be postponed until the next meeting of the Commission. 

RESOLVED that the Director for Communities be asked to confirm an Officer’s 
attendance at the next meeting and the Commission’s best wishes be extended for the 
upcoming Ofsted inspection. 

23. Health Scrutiny Panel 
(Councillor Rendel declared a personal interest in Agenda item 10 by virtue of the fact 
that his wife was a GP in West Berkshire. As his interest was personal and not prejudicial 
he determined to take part in the debate and vote on the matter).  

The Commission considered a report (Agenda Item 10) on the work of the Health 
Scrutiny Panel (HSP). 

Councillor Webb reported that the Health Scrutiny Panel had met on 19 June 2012 and 
the following topics had been discussed: 

• Dignity and Nutrition in Hospitals: A representative from the Royal Berkshire Hospital 
had attended and agreed that a questionnaire would be given to all patients being 
released from hospital who were over 65; 

• Child Poverty Strategy: An update had been received indicating that a number of 
events would be taking place over the next few weeks.  The Panel expected the 
outcomes to be reported to them; 

• Health and Wellbeing Board: A number of meetings were taking place that were 
shadowing clinical groups.  Procedures were being set up in preparation for taking 
over from the PCT next year. 

Councillor Hunneman asked how the dignity and nutrition in hospital questionnaire would 
be administered for those who were less able to respond.  Councillor Webb responded 

Page 4



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMISSION - 26 JUNE 2012 - MINUTES 
 

that the LINk was managing the process, but questionnaires might be handed to carers 
where this was appropriate.  If it was considered necessary, questionnaires could be 
followed up. 

Councillor Hunneman informed the Commission of a concern that had been raised at a 
recent Safer Communities Partnership meeting relating to an apparent increase in the 
number of suicides across the district.  Nick Carter commented that this was a public 
health issue and would be raised at the Health and Wellbeing Board not the Safer 
Communities Partnership or the Health Scrutiny Panel. 

Councillor Webb informed the Commission that a Domestic Abuse Task Group had been 
formed with six Members, terms of reference and a scoping document had been 
produced and the first meeting was due to take place on 20 July 2012. 

Resolved that the report and verbal update be noted. 

24. Resource Management Working Group 
The Commission considered a report (Agenda Item 11) on the work of the Resource 
Management Working Group (RMWG). 

Councillor Rendel reported to Members that the next meeting would be taking place on 2 
July 2012, and advised that the items for discussion would be: 

• Asset Management 

• Establishment Report Q4 2011/12 

• Financial Outturn Report 2011/12 

Councillor Rendel advised that the RMWG requested that a further item be added to the 
work programme to consider the impact on the Council’s finances of Local Authority 
maintained schools converting to academy status.  The Commission agreed for this item 
to be added. 

Resolved that a further item be added to the RMWG work programme to consider the 
impact on the Council’s finances of Local Authority maintained schools converting to 
academy status. 

25. West Berkshire Forward Plan June 2012 to September 2012. 
The Commission considered the West Berkshire Forward Plan (Agenda Item 12) for the 
period covering June 2012 to September 2012. 

Resolved that the Forward Plan be noted. 

26. Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission Work Programme 
The Commission considered its work programme and that of the Health Scrutiny Panel 
and Resource Management Working Group for 2011/12. 

The Chairman proposed that the annual report of the Commission be added to the work 
programme for review at the next meeting.  The Commission agreed. 

Resolved that the annual report of the Commission be added to the work programme for 
review at the next meeting. 

 

(The meeting commenced at 6.30 pm and closed at 7.30 pm) 
 
CHAIRMAN ……………………………………………. 
 
Date of Signature ……………………………………………. 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

West Berkshire Council    Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 
 

Title of Report: Actions from previous meetings 
Report to be 
considered by: 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 

Date of Meeting: 31 July 2012 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To advise the Commission of the actions arising from 
previous meetings 

Recommended Action: 
 

To note the report 
 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission Chairman 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Brian Bedwell – Tel (0118) 942 0196 
E-mail Address: bbedwell@westberks.gov.uk  
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Elaine Walker 
Job Title: Principal Policy Officer 
Tel. No.: 01635 519441 
E-mail Address: ewalker@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 4.

Page 7



 

West Berkshire Council    Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 
 

Executive Report 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 This report provides the Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission with an 
update on the actions arising from its previous meeting. 

2. Resolutions 

2.1 Resolution: The Portfolio Holder for Strategy, Council Plan and Housing be invited 
to the next meeting of the Commission to discuss housing and homelessness, 
along with a representative of Sovereign Housing 

Action / response: This action is complete. 

2.2 Resolution: The Resource Management Working Group to receive the 
supplementary information in relation to Taceham House for inclusion in their 
consideration of the asset management structure; 

Action / response: This action is complete 

2.3 Resolution: The Commission be updated on the progress of reconsidering the 
decision to introduce a 50mph speed limit on the A4 Bath Road in Padworth 

Action / response: The ID is currently awaiting agreement of a date for 
consideration with Councillor Graham Jones, who will be taking the place of 
Councillor David Betts for this item. 

2.4 Resolution: the Director for Communities be asked to confirm an Officer’s 
attendance at the next meeting and the Commission’s best wishes be extended for 
the upcoming Ofsted inspection 

Action / response: This action is complete 

2.5 Resolution: A further item be added to the RMWG work programme to consider 
the impact on the Council’s finances of Local Authority maintained schools 
converting to academy status. 

Action / response: This item has been added to the work programme. 

2.6 Resolution: The annual report of the Commission be added to the work 
programme for review at the next meeting. 

Action / response: This item is considered in a separate agenda item. 

Appendices 

There no appendices to this report. 

Page 8



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Title of Report: 

Key Accountable Measures and 
Activities 2011/12. Update on 
Progress: Year end Outturns 

 

Report to be 
considered by: 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 

Date of Meeting: 31 July 2012 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To present to the Commission the year end outturn 
against the key accountable measures and activities  
2011/12. 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

To note year end outturn against the key accountable 
measures and activities.  

 
 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission Chairman 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Brian Bedwell – Tel (0118) 9420196 
E-mail Address: bbedwell@westberks.gov.uk 
 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Elaine Walker 
Job Title: Principal Policy Officer 
Tel. No.: 01635 519441 
E-mail Address: ewalker@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 8.

Page 9



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Executive Summary 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to provide an update on progress against the Council’s 
key accountable measures and activities for year end, 2011/12.  

2. Commentary on performance  

2.1 In total, there are 39 key measures or activities monitored and reported at this level.  

2.2 27 (69%) measures are reported as green for year end – this compares to 74% for 
2010/11 although with significantly more measures monitored (77 / 102). Areas 
where services have achieved notable success against annual targets include: 

§ Adult Social Care: financial assessments completed within 3 weeks of 
referral to Welfare Benefits team; 

§ Children in care: looked after children whose cases are reviewed within 
required timescales; 

§ Customer Focus: enquiry resolution time for face to face callers. 

2.3 12 (25%) ‘reds’ being reported for year end – i.e. have not been achieved by year 
end. These are in relation to:  

§ the proportion of adult social care service users receiving self-directed 
support.  

§ increasing level of commissioned early intervention services in CYP 
directorate by 10%. 

§ people presenting as homeless, who are prevented from being homeless. 

§ the proportion of pupils achieving 5+ A*-C GCSEs (including English and 
Maths). 

§ reducing the number of primary schools below the national floor standards. 

§ narrowing the achievement gap between SEN / non SEN scoring level 4 or 
above in English and Maths at the end of KS2 to 52% 

§ increasing the proportion of children eligible for free school meals who 
achieve 5+A*-C at GCSE by age 16 to 30% 

§ young people 16-19 who are NEET 

§ adopting the Core Strategy. 

§ achieving an average of 5 days to register a planning application.  

§ the proportion of ‘major’ planning applications determined within 13 weeks. 
/ ‘minor planning applications determined within 8 weeks. / ‘other’ planning 
applications determined within 8 weeks. 

Page 10



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

§ Contact centre calls answered within 30 seconds. 

 
Appendices 
 
Appendix A – West Berkshire Council: key accountable measures and activities 2011/12: 
update on progress. Year end. 
 

Page 11



Page 12

This page is intentionally left blank



���������	
�����
���������	����
���
�����������������
���	������������������	��

�������������
����
��� �!���!� �������
�	���
"���������#��

�
���������	
�����
���������	����
���
����
��������
�
����
���	�����������
�
������	�����	������������
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�����������

"�����
�	��$�%������&�'�(�	���
�
��	�)��
��

*
��
�����*�����
��	�
��
���
��� �!���!� �������
�	����

+��������

Page 13



���������	
�����
���������	����
���
�����������������
���	������������������	��

�������������
����
��� �!���!� �������
�	���
"���������#��

 ��������!�
���������
��

)�����������	�����
���	��������������	�
�
&��(��	���,�� ��������	
�����
���������	����
���
�������������
�	�$��������!��

)&�� ���
������������
���
������
&�	�
&��������
�&�������	����
���������
�
&�������
�	����
�	�
������	��

�	�����
&����&��	��������������������	��
��������
������	���������	�
&�����&��&�����������
�������
�
���
�	��������	�����	��� ���
��
&���	���	����� ����
&��(��	����������&���!�)&��������
�
&����������

• ���������������	���
��
&��-.���
����
&�
�������������	�����	��������
��������
���
�	�������
������
�	�/��

• ��
������	����������	�	�����
�
$�������	�����������������	�����	��������
��������
���
�	����&��&�����
	�
�������
�	��0��������	�
��.���
���
��������
�0����&����/���

o �	��
&���������	������
&�
����1��
����
��������
��	������
��	�������
��
�
���
��
&���
���
����
�	���������
&�
�
��������!��

�

"�	��	
��	��������	�
���������
��

)&����&��
�
&�������
����&�����������%�2�3
����������&
,����
�
�
�������
������������

��
��	�����&������
&�����&����������.��������&�
������
���
�
����/��

����
��	������������&�	����&������4�	�����5$���
��
�����.���
���
����&����������
���
��
&��
���������
��
���
�����������	�/��

�����	����
������&����	�
���&������
&����
���
�����
����
���
&�	�
&������/��

�	����
���������
��������������		�����	����
����
&�
��������	�����������
����
������
����������	
��	�

�
�����!�!�2(*-������
�����
&���������	��
��	�������$��&���
/���

�	����
���������
�������������&����
&��1���
�������
������	�
����������!�

6	�
�
��$�
&��������#7� ���
�������������
���
�����&��&������������������
&��-.���
����
&����&�
&��������
�	��

��&�	��
!�)&�������������
����	���
&�
�
����������	�������
��
� ����
�����������
���������	
����
&�������
��	�
��	�����
&����
&���
�!��

)&��
����������������	
��
&�����	�
������
���!����	����
&����������
��	����
&��
������$�
&��
����������
�����������

o �����������	��	����
��	�����&�
&������	�
�
&��(��	����&��������
�����
���
����	
���������
&��
������!��

o �������	���	��	����
��	����
&���
���
��	���
&��$������������������
&����

�	�
��
������	������$��&�����

&��
�������	�
������&�����!��

o �������
��
&���������������,����

��	!��

o ����������
&�������	
�����,��
����
$�1���
�������

��	��	��%�2���
�	�!��

o �����������	��������
�	����

�	
������������!��

�

Page 14



���������	
�����
���������	����
���
�����������������
���	������������������	��

�������������
����
��� �!���!� �������
�	���
"����#����#��

"�

�	
�����	����!��
�	����

�

#������$��!����!��
�	�����

��	�� %�� %�� %&� �'�

2���	� �8� �#� ��� �9�

�
���� �� 9� :� ��

%��� �� #� 8� ���
�

�		����4��
�
����������
��5� 8� ;� #� ��

�	�����������
�
�
������������
��	� �� �� �� ��

)&����

����
������������&����&���
&��
�����������������
����������&�1���
��!�

<���������	�$��9�4;7=5�
�������������
���
�������������
������&���	�����	���&������4
&�����
������
��9:=�
��&�����������������5!���������&�������������&������&������	�
�����������������	�
��		����
����
���	��������

• 4����
�*������(���5�<�	�	�����������
�	
����
���
�����
&�	�#���� ��������������
��>�������?�	���
��

��
/��

• 4(&�����	��	�����5�@�� �����
����&�����	��&�������������������������
&�	���1������
�
�������/��

• �4(��
�
���<����5�-	1�����������
��	�
�
�����������
��������������!�

)&�����������
���������&��&�&����	�
����	���&�������	��
&�������������
������3���,!�#����
&���������
���
�����	�A:$�
���
��	�	�����
�����	�
������4(�

�����	����������	
����	
��	�����������	�(�"�B����
���
���	��
��������	�
����
�������
��������		�	���������
��	5��	���	��
��	�	�����
��
����4���	����������&������
C--)5���

(�
��� (����
� �'���

��	� )��� *
���
�
+���
������������� � � � �

�
"�����
��	�������������������������	������0�����
���������
�
4�	�����	�������	��������
�5!�

D�=�
�#=�49�:���
�$D9:5�

A�� +����
�

"������	��	������ � � � �

�
�	��������������!���

�����	����������	
����	
��	����������
�	�"� ������
���
�������,-�

E�$�9�$;��� E�$��9$;�;� A:� +����
�

�������� � � � �

�
������
��	����������������	
�	�����&�
�����$��&����
&��
&�
�����	����&������	���������!�

8D=�
98=�4:;8���

;��5�
A#� .����

��		�
������
����������������	��	��� � � � �

�
������
��	�������������&����	��DF��G0(�2(*-��4�	�����	��
-	����&��	��+�
&�5!�

;�=� ;�=� A�� .����

�
������	��
&��	�
����������
������&�����������
&��	�
��	���
�������
�	�����!�

�� ;� A#� .����

�
C������
&����&����
�	
�������
���	�*-C���	�	�*-C������	��
������:�����������	�-	����&��	��+�
&���
�
&���	������*��
��
D�=�

HD�=� DD=� A#� +����
�

�
6	�������
&��������
��	�����&�����	���������������������&����

������&����&�����DF�G0(��
�2(*-���������;�
��#�=�

#�=� �8!�=� A#� +����
�

� ���	����������/��0�$�������1''(� :=� :!:=� A:� .����
��������� � � � �

� ����
��	����
&��(����*
��
���!�
"�����&�

+���&�3��!�
>����	�
����
������&��!�

A�� .����

�
���������	����������!�2������
�������
��������		�	��
�������
��	-�

D������ ;������ A:� .����

Page 15



���������	
�����
���������	����
���
�����������������
���	������������������	��

�������������
����
��� �!���!� �������
�	���
"����:����#��

� 3
�I��,����		�	���������
��	����
��
�	�����
&�	��#���� �!� :;=� �8=�
� 3
�	������		�	���������
��	����
��
�	�����
&�	�8���� �!��� :;=� �;=�
� 3�
&��,����		�	���������
��	����
��
�	�����
&�	�8���� �!� 8#=� �:=�

A#� .����

�������
���
��� � � � �

� ������
��	����(�	
��
�(�	
����������	���������
&�	�#������!� 8�=�
9;=�

4��9$:�9���
�;9$�8D5�

A#� .����

+�����	���
�
��	�����

��	���	����

�	
����0��	����&����
&����
�������������	
��	����	�
&��
��	������
���
&��������
!��

)&��������
������	����
&����������1���
���,�����
����	����������������������&����
�
���
��� �!���!� �������
�	��!��
�

Page 16



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

�D
��
��#

��

��
��
��
��
3
��

�
4�
�5
��
��
��
"�

�	
��
��5
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
6�
��
��
��
	�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�

��

7
��
��

�

�	
!��

�
�	
��
�

"�




�	

�

��
��

��
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

��
��
��
��

(�
��
�

�

%
��

��



��
	�

�
%
��
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
%
&�
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

�
:�
��

��

�
	�
��
�




�	

�
��
�

+
��

�

�:
��
��
��"
��
��

�
�

�
�

�
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
�

<�
	�

	�
��
���

��
��
�


�	

�
�

��


��
�

��

��
�
&

�	
�#
��

��
 �
��
��

��
��
��
��
�
�

�>
��
��
��
�?
�	

��
�
�

�

�
�


�

��
J
��
&�

9�
=
�

8�
=
�

��
�=

�
�

��
�=

�
�

�
77

!9
=
�
�

�
77

!9
=
�
�

�
�)

B
��
�


�
�	
���
9�

��
��
9�

:!
��

(�
��
��
���

��
��
�	
��
��
��
��
�,
��

��
��
��


�	


��
���

��
��
�
��
��
�	
��


&
��
��

��
��

��
J
��
&�

�8
=
�

��
=
�

�D
=
�
�

�#
=
�
�

�
��

=
�
�

�
�:

=
�
�

�
%�

���
	�

��
��



&
��
��




��
	�
�;
�8

��
�

�$
D9

:�

(�
��
��
��
��
�


�	

�
��
�


��
�

��

�
�
�
&

�	
��
8�
��

��
��

��
J
��
&�

;D
=
�

;D
=
�

;9
=
�
�

;;
=
�
�

�
;:

=
�
�

�
;D

=
�
�

�
%�

���
	�

��
��



&
��
��




��
	�
��
$�
�;

�
��
�$
;�

:�

*�
��
��
��
��

��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
�

��
��

��
�	
��
*�

���
B
���

�

��

�
��

��
��

�4
�	
��
��

�	
��
��

��
�	

��
�

��
��

�

�5
��

��
+
��

��


�

��
=
�

D�
=
�

�7
=
�
�

��
=
�
�

�
�:

=
�

�
�

�8
=
�
�

�
%�

���
	�

��
��



&
��
��




��
	�
�9
�:

��
�

�$
D9

:!
�"
��
��
��
�	

��
��
�

�!
��

��

�
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�	
�K�

��
!�)

&�
��

&�
��
��

�	
��
��
��

��
��
��

���
��

��
��

��
��

��

�
!��

��
�
�
�	

��
��
$��

��
�
�

�
��

��
	�

��
��
�	
�
&

��
��
	�

�
�
�


��
��
��


�
�


��
�	

��

&
��
��

��
�

�	
��



��

��
���

�

��
�

��
�$
�
&

��
��
��

��

�
�
�

��
�


��
�

��

&
��

��
��
��

��

�
�


��
��
�.

��

�	

��
��
��
	

��
�	


�
�*
��
��B

��
��


�
��

*�
��

��

�&

��
��
��

	�
��
�

���


�
�!
��

*�
��
�.

��
�

��
	�
��
��

�

���

��
��
�

&�

���

Page 17



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

�;
��
��#

��

��
��
��
��
3
��

�
4�
�5
��
��
��
"�

�	
��
��5
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
6�
��
��
��
	�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�

��

7
��
��

�

�	
!��

�
�	
��
�

"�




�	

�

��
��

��
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

��
��
��
��

(�
��
�

�

%
��

��



��
	�

�
%
��
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
%
&�
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

�
:�
��

��

�
	�
��
�




�	

�
��
�

"�
���
��
	�
�	
�"
��
��

�
�

�
�

�
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
�

6	
�
�
��
��
��
��
�


�	

�
���

��
�&

���
��
	,
��
��

��
��
��
��
��

&
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��


��
�
&

�	
��
��
�
��
 �
	�

�
��

��
��
���
��
��
��
��

��
+
��

��


�

8�
=
�

8�
=
�

7�
=
�
�

89
=
�
�

�
8D

=
�
�

�
8:

=
�
�

�
��

��
��
	�

��
�


�
�	
��8

�D
��
�7
8�

�

(�
��
��
��
��
�


�	

�
��
�	

��
�

��

�
�
�
&

�	
�#
D�
�
��
 �
	�

��
��

��
�

��
+
��

��


�

8#
=
�

8�
=
�

;:
=
�
�

�
9#

=
�
�

�
9;

=
�
�

�
8�

=
�
�

�
�)

B
��
�


�
�	
��:

#:
��
�D
##

!��

@�
� 

��
��
�

��
��
&�
��
��
	�
�
&�

��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�
&
�	
�

��
1�

���
��

�


��
��
��
��

��
J
��
&�

78
=
�

7D
=
�

��
�=

�
�

��
�=

�
�

��
�=

�
�

�
��

�=
�
�

�
A
:�
��




��
	�
��:

9�
��
�:
9�

���

@�
� 

��
��
�

��
��
&�
��
��
	�
�
�
&

�#
�

��
�


��
��


��

��
��	

��
��
��

���
��

J
��
&�
�

;=
�

H�
7=

�
�=

�
�

�=
�
�

�=
�
�

�
D=

�
�

�
A
:�
��




��
	�
��;

��
��
�#

!�

(&
���

�"
��

�
�

��
	�
"�
�	

��
��
�

�	
��

��
��

��
��
��
�


��
��

C
�

+
��

��


�

�=
�

H�
D=

�
�=

�
�

�=
�
�

�
�=

�
�

�
�=

�
�

�
A
:�
��




��
	�
���

��
�#
�;

!��

)&
��
��
��

���
���

�



��
��
�	

��
�

��
���

��	

�
��
�	


��
	�
��
��
��
��
��	

�

&
��
(&

���
��
	�
�	

��
��

�	
��

"�
��

��
��
���

�

��
�

��
�

��
+
��

��


�

E�
$�
;;

$�
��

�E
�$
�9

�$
;�

��
E�

$�
;;

$�
��

� �
E�

$�
;;

$�
��

�
�

�
E�

$�
7D

$�
��

�
�

�
E�

$�
�9

$;
�;

�
�

�
"�
��

��


��
�
�
&

��
��
��

��


�	


�
�	

��
��
��
��




�	

�&

��
��

�

��

�

��

��
	�

&
��

�


��
��
��
�
&

��
�

�	
��
��

�
�!
��*

��
��
.�
��


��
	�

��
��

�

���

���
��

&
��
��	

��
�


�

��
	!
�

��
�

��
�!
!�
	�

�	
��

�
�

�
�

�
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
�

C
�


��
���

���
��

	�
��
��

��
��

�	

�
��	

��

&
��
��

�

&�
K�
�

��
��

*�
�

�


��

C
�

J
��
&�

��
:�

H�
��

��
�D

�
�

�7
�
�

�
#8

�
�

�
DD

�
�

�
A
:�
��




��
	�
��
9!
��

Page 18



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

�9
��
��#

��

��
��
��
��
3
��

�
4�
�5
��
��
��
"�

�	
��
��5
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
6�
��
��
��
	�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�

��

7
��
��

�

�	
!��

�
�	
��
�

"�




�	

�

��
��

��
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

��
��
��
��

(�
��
�

�

%
��

��



��
	�

�
%
��
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
%
&�
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

�
:�
��

��

�
	�
��
�




�	

�
��
�

.
��

��
	�

�
�

�
�

�
�
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
�

"�
��

��
��
��
��
	

�	
��
��
��

&�


��
��
��
�
&�

��
��
��
��
��

	

��

�
��
�


��
��
	�

�&
�


��
��
��
�

��
J
��
&�

C
��

��
8D

=
�

8D
=
�
�

97
=
�
�

�
98

=
�
�

�
98

=
�
�

�
�)

B
��
�


�
�	
��:

;8
��
�;
��

!�)
&�

�
J
��

��
	�

��
��
��
��

���
���

��
	�

�
�	
��
��

��
��
��



�	

��
��
��

&�


��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
$�

��
���

�

�	
��
��
	�


��
	�

��

��
	�

!��
)&

��
(�

�	
��
��&

��
�	
��
�

&�

��
��


��
	�
��


�

��

�
 �

��
�&
�


��
��
��

��
��
��
�

��
	!
�C
�

��
	�

���
$��

��
&�

��
��
��

	�
��
�#

=
��	

��
��

��
��	

�
&�



��
��
�	

��
��
��



��

��
��

�
�

��
�

��
��

�$
��
	�

�
&
��
���
�


���
��
��

�
�	
�>

��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
!��
*�

��
�.

��
�

��
	�
��
��

�

���

���
��

&
��
�

�	
��
�


�

��
	!
�

J
��
&�
��
��
��


��
&�

��
�	
��
��
�	


�
�

��
��
��

��
��

�
&
�	
�7
��

��
 �
��
��

��
��

��

��

���
��
���

��
	

�

��
��
��
�

��
	�

��
J
��
&�

C
��

�
7D

=
�

7�
=
�
�

�
7;

=
�
�

�
7;

=
�
�

�
79

=
�
�

�
�)

B
��
�


�
�	
���
��

;�
��
��

7!
��

4�
	�
!�

��

�
�

�
�

�
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
�

��
��
��

��
�


��
	

��
��

�


��

�
 �

	�

�
�


� 
��
��
��
���
��

��
��
�	

��
	�
	�

�
�

��
	�

��

��
��
�


��
�

��
J
��
&�

�9
��
��

��
�

H�
�8

!D
�

��
��
�

�8
!�
8�

��
��
��
�

�8
��
��

��
�
�

�
�8

��
��

��
�
�

�
�9

!9
��
��

��
�
�

�
�

Page 19



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

�8
��
��#

��

��
��
��
��
3
��

�
4�
�5
��
��
��
"�

�	
��
��5
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
6�
��
��
��
	�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�

��

7
��
��

�

�	
!��

�
�	
��
�

"�




�	

�

��
��

��
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

��
��
��
��

(�
��
�

�

%
��

��



��
	�

�
%
��
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
%
&�
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

�
:�
��

��

�
	�
��
�




�	

�
��
�

4�
	�
!�

��

�
�

�
�

�
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
�

��
��
��

��

�


��

�
 �

	�

�
�


� 
��
��

��
���
��

��
��
�	

��
	�
�&

�	
��

��
�	
��
�

��
	�

��

��
��
�


�	

,
��

��
��
�


�

�	

��
��
�

��
+
��

��


�

;�
��

��
��

H�
8�
��

��
�

;!
�8

�
��

��
��
�

9�
��

��
��
�

�
8�
��

��
��
�

�
8�
��

��
��
�

�
�

:�
��

��

�
	�
��
��
��

��
��
	�

��
��

	�
��
��
��
��
��

�
�

�
 

 
 

 
 

�

"�
��
��
��
��
	�
	�

�D
��
��


��
��
&�
�&

�
��
��

��
��

�2

(*
-$
��	

��
��

�	
��

-	
��
��
&�
�	

��
+
�

&�

��

C
�

J
��
&�

;�
=
�

;�
=
�

00
0�
�
�

;�
=
�
�
�

00
0�

�
�

;�
!�
=
�
�
�

@�
�
��
�
&

�	
��
.�

��

�
��
2
(*

-�
��
��

�
�
��	

�;
��
�

��
���

��
��
��

	�
��
��
��
&�

��
�!
�*
��

��
���

�
�


��
�

��
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
�	
�

��
��
��


�	

��
��	

�

�

&�



�

��
��

�	
�D
��
�&

��
��
�0�
�	
��
��

�	
��
��
��

=
�

��
��

��

�@

�


��
�J
��


&
�*
�&

��
�!�

*�
��
�.

��
�

��
	�
��
��

�

���

��
��
�

&�

���
	�
��


�

��
	!
�

"�
��
��
��
��

��	
��
��
��

��:
��
���

��
��

�
�	
�-
	�

���
&�
�	

��
+
�

&�

��

�

&�

�
�	

��
��
��
*�

��

C
�

J
��
&�

9:
!�
=
�

9:
!D
=
�

00
0�
�
�

9D
=
�
�

�
9D

=
�
�

�
9D

=
�
�

��

)&
��
��
&�
��

�

�	


��
��

�
��


�
��

	�
*-

C
��
�	
�	

�*
-C

�
��
��
�	
��
��
��

��:
��
���

��
��

��	
�

-	
��
��
&�
�	

��
+
�

&�

��

�

&�

��
	�

�
��
��
*�

��

C
�

+
��

��


�

D;
!#
=
�

H�
D�

=
�

00
0�
�
�

00
0�
�

�
DD

=
�

�
�

DD
=
�
�

�
)&

��
��
�
��
��
���

��
�

��
	�
�	
�
&

��
	�



��

���
���


�

�


�	


�
��

�&
���

��
	�
��
���
	�

��
��
��

�
&
��

��
	�

&

��
 !
�)
&�
��
��
���

�

��

&
��

&�
�&

���
��

���
��

��
��
�	
��

��
��
��

&�
��

��
&�

�

!�*

��
��
.�
��


��
	�
��
��

�

�

��
���
��

&
��
��	

��
�


�

��
	!
�

Page 20



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

�7
��
��#

��

��
��
��
��
3
��

�
4�
�5
��
��
��
"�

�	
��
��5
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
6�
��
��
��
	�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�

��

7
��
��

�

�	
!��

�
�	
��
�

"�




�	

�

��
��

��
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

��
��
��
��

(�
��
�

�

%
��

��



��
	�

�
%
��
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
%
&�
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

�
:�
��

��

�
	�
��
�




�	

�
��
�

:�
��

��

�
	�
��
��
��

��
��
	�

��
��

	�
��
��
��
��
��

�
�

�
 

 
 

 
 

�

(&
���

��
	�
��
��
��
��
���

���
��
��

��
&�

��
�


��
��
��

&�
��
�&

��
��

�
DF

�G
0(
��

�2

(*
-�
��

��
��

��
;�

C
�

+
��

��


�

�8
!9
=
�

#�
=
�

00
0�
�
�

00
0�
�

�
�8

!�
=
�
�

�
�8

!�
=
�
�

�
��

��
��
�
&

��
��

��
�$
��
��
��
�


�	
��

�
�	
�+

�

&�

��
��
��
��

��
��
��

$�

&�
��

�
��
��
��

��

��
��
��
��
��
	�

�	
��

��
�	
�


�
��
��
��

	�
��
��
��
&�

��
�!
�*
��

�
�.

��
�

��
	�
��
��

�

���

���
��

&
��
�

�	
��
�


�

��
	!
�4"

��
��
��

��
��

��
��

�

��

��	
��
��
��
��	

�A
#5
�

)&
��
	�



��

���
���

��


��
��

��
&�

��
��
��

��
�
�	
�

��
	�

���
��
��
�

�

�	

��
��
��
�

C
�

J
��
&�

7�
��

00
0�
�
�

00
0�
�

�
;�

�
�

;�
�

�
)&

��
	�



��

���
���

�&
��

��
���

���
	�

�
��

��
�
�	
�

��
	�

���
��
��
��

�
	�

��
��

�
&�

��
��
���

	�
��
�


�7
�
�

�;
�
&

��
��
��

�!
��

L
��

&�

���


��
	�
	�

��
�&

��
��
$��

	�
�

&�
��
�	

��
�8
��
�;
��
��

���
!��
��
��

��
&�

��
��
&�

��
��
��

	�
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��

��
���

�

��
��
�

��
��
�	

��
��
��

�.
��

�

��

�
�
��
��
��

��
��
���

��
�

��
��

���
	�
��

��
!*
��

��
.�
��


��
	�

��
��

�

���

���
��

&
��
��	

��
�


�

��
	!
�

(�


��
�

��

&
��
��

	�

�
��


��
	�

�&
��
��
��
�)
��	

�
�
�*
�&

��
���
��

�

��

&�
���

��
+
��

��


��

C
��

�
��

��
��

��
�
L
	�

�
��
 �
�

(�


��
�

��
�
�

�
(�



��
�

��
�
�

�
(�



��
�

��
�
�

�
�

��
�	

��
��

��
��
��
;0
�7

��
&�

��
��
�

C
--

)�
C
�

J
��
&�
�

:!
:=

�
:=

��
:!
#=

�
�

9!
8=

�
�

�
:!
:=

�
�

�
:!
:=

�
�
 

��
��
��
	�

��
�


�
�	
���

�D
��
�:
;;

:!
��

C
�

��
	�

���
&�

	�
��
�
�

�
&
��
�
��

��	
�

�
&�
�&

�C
--

)�
���

��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�

��

�&
��

��
�


��
�

��

�
	�

��

��

��
��
�	

�
&
��
��
��
�	


�

��

	�
��
�>

��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
���
��

��
�!
��*

��
�

Page 21



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
��
��
�#
��

��
��
��
��
3
��

�
4�
�5
��
��
��
"�

�	
��
��5
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
6�
��
��
��
	�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�

��

7
��
��

�

�	
!��

�
�	
��
�

"�




�	

�

��
��

��
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

��
��
��
��

(�
��
�

�

%
��

��



��
	�

�
%
��
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
%
&�
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

�
:�
��

��

�
	�
��
�




�	

�
��
�

�.
��

�

��
	�
��
��

�

���

���
��

&
��
�

�	
��
�


�

��
	!
�

3
��

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
�

"�
��

��

��

	�
��
��

��

�
��
��

��
��
��
��

��


��

�

��

��
��
��

��
��
�

��
+
��

��


��

:�
=
�

:�
=
�

:D
!8
=
�
�

:#
=
�
�

:7
=
�
�

�
:;

=
�
�

�
A
��
'
�A
#�
��
��

�
�
�


�	
��

��
�
�
&

�
��

	�
��


��
���

��
�
�

!�)
&�
��
��
��

�
�
��
�

��
��

��
��

I�
�

�
�

��
&�

	�
��
�	

��
�

���
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�

��

��
��
B
-<

%�
!��

M�
���

�

��

���
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

�
��

�B
-<

%�
���
�


��
�

��
>
?(

��
�

�

�	

�
�>

��

�
�B
�

��
<�
��

�4>
B
<5
!��

@�
��

���
���
�


��
$��

�

��


��
��
	�

�
��
��
��

��4
��
��
�

��	

��
��	

�
&
��

��
��

�?
��


��
	�
)�
��

���
��
��

�	
��
��
	


�	

�
���
	�

��
�

��
�5
��

��
+
��

��


�

32
��

�,
�

32
��

�,
�

C
�

�

��
��
�!�
�

U
�

32
��

�,
�
�

32
��

�,
�
�

�
32
��

�,
�
�

�
�

 �
�	
	�
	�

�
�

�
�

�
�
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

�

��
���

��
��

��
���

	�
��
��

��
��
��
�

��
��

��

�
��
��

��
��

�&
��

��
	�

��
��

�
��

��
+
��

��


�

C
�

�

��
��
��
��
��
�

D�
��
��

00
0�
�

�
00
0�
�

�
00
0�

�
�

D!
��
��

��
��
�

�
�

��
��


�

&�

�@
��

��
�B
��

��
��



�	


�
<�
�


��
��
 N
��
��

��
��

�
�

��

��
��

C
�

J
��
&�

C
�

�

��
��


�
��
�

+
��
�

��
��

�
L
	�


�
��
�

�
�

>
���
�	
�

��
��

��
��
!��
�

�
>
���
�	
�

��
��

��
��
!��

�
�

>
���
�	
�

��
��

��
��
!��

�
�

)&
��
�.

�

�	
�

��
	�
�	

�
�
&

��
(�

��
�

*

��

�
��

�&
��
��
��

	�
��

��
�	

��
��

��
�
&

��
"�
�	

	�
	�

�6	
��

��

�
��


��
��
��
�
�
&

��
(�

�	
��
��

�


��

�
�

��
�

���

��
��
��
��

��
��
���
��
��

�
��
��

�	

��

�
�
&

��
*�

�

��
	�

��
��

��

��
��
��
��
���
�*

�
�

��

��
�

-	
��
��
	


�	

�
���

��
��
�


�	

�

Page 22



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
��
��
�#
��

��
��
��
��
3
��

�
4�
�5
��
��
��
"�

�	
��
��5
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
6�
��
��
��
	�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�

��

7
��
��

�

�	
!��

�
�	
��
�

"�




�	

�

��
��

��
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

��
��
��
��

(�
��
�

�

%
��

��



��
	�

�
%
��
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
%
&�
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

�
:�
��

��

�
	�
��
�




�	

�
��
�

�
��
 $
���

���
�
�	
��
��
J
��
&�
(�

��

�

I�
��

�

�	


��
	�
+
��
�&

��
��

�!
�)
&�

�
�.

�

�	
�

��
	�
�
���
�	
�

���

��


��

�	

��
�<
��

��
��
��
��

��
$�

&�

��
��
��
�


&
��
(�

��
�*

�
�

��

��
�
���
�	
�

��
��

��
��


�
��
��

�+
��
�&

��
��

�!
��*

��
�

�.
��

�

��
	�
��
��

�

���

���
��

&
��
�

�	
��
�


�

��
	!
�

��
��
��

��
	�



��

���
���

��
��

�
�

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
		

�	
��
��

��
��
�

��
	�

4�
��
��

��
	�
1�

��

�
���

�
��

��
��


�	

��
5�

��
J
��
&�

9!
9�
��

��
��

D�
��

��
�

��
��
��

��
� �

��
��
��

��
�
�

9�
��

��
��
�

�
;�
��

��
��
�

�
)&

��
�	

��
�0
��

��
��


�	

��
��

��
�

��
��

�
��
��
��
�	


��
��


��
	�
K�
	�

��
��

��
��

!��
)&

��
�&
��
��
�	
��

��
��

	�
��

��
�	

�
��

�
!��
*�

��
�.

��
�

��
	�

��
��

�

���

���
��

&
��
��	

��
�


�

��
	!
�

 �
�	
	�
	�

�
�

�
�

�
�
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

�

"�
�	

	�
	�

��
��

���
�

��
	�

�
��


�
�


�	
��

��
�
&

�	
�
&

��
��

��
�	


�	


��
��
��

��	
��
�4�

��
��

�
�	

�1

�
��
��
��
��
�


�	
��

5/�
��

•
3


�I
��
,��
;�

=
��

�
&
�	
��
#�

�
��

 �
��

•
3


�	
��
,��
;D

=
��

�
&
�	
�8
�

�
��

 �
��

•
3�

&
��
,��
9D

=
��

�
&
�	
�8
�

�
��

 �
�

��
J
��
&�

� � � 3

�I
��
,�:

;=

� 3

�	
��
,�:

;=

� 3�

&
��
,�8

#=

��
��
��
�

�	
��
�!
�


�
��
�

��
�

L
	�

��
��
���

��

�
��
�

�

��
���

��
&�



��

��
��
��

L
	�
��
��
���

��

�
��
�

���

��
��

�&
�



��

��
��
�

�
"�
��
���

��

�
��
�

��
�
���
�

	�

��

��


�

!�

�
�

"�
��
���

��

�
��
�

��
�
���
�

	�

��

��


�

!�

� 

�I
��
,��

8=
�

� 3

�	
��
,��

;=
�

� 3�

&
��
,��

:=
�

�
�

B
��

��
��
	�

���
���

��
���
�

��
	�

�
��

�

�


��

��
�	
��

��
�K�

	�
��
��

��
��

��
��
�


��

�	

��

&
��

��
��
��


�	

��
�
�

��
�

��
��

!
��

J
��

��
��
$��

��
�
�

�
&
��
��

� 
��
��

��
��
��



��
��
�	

��
��
��
��


��

&
��
�

��

�
$��

��
�
���
��
��
�	

��
��
�
�

�


��


�

&�

��
��

���
	�

�
�
��
�

!��
*�

��
�.

��
�

��
	�
��
��

�

���

���
��

&
��
�

�	
��
�


�

��
	!
�

)&
��
��
��

��

��

	�
��
��
��
		

�	
��

��
��

��
��
��

&�
�&

��
��
��
�&

��
��

��
J
��
&�

#8
=
�

H�
#D

=
�

�7
=
�
�

�9
=
�
�

��
=
�
�

�
�:

=
�
�

�
�)

B
��
�


�
�	
���

7�
��
��

#!
���

4%
��

��

�
��
��

��
��


�	

��
���

��A
�$
�

Page 23



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
��
��
�#
��

��
��
��
��
3
��

�
4�
�5
��
��
��
"�

�	
��
��5
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
6�
��
��
��
	�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�

��

7
��
��

�

�	
!��

�
�	
��
�

"�




�	

�

��
��

��
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

��
��
��
��

(�
��
�

�

%
��

��



��
	�

�
%
��
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
%
&�
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

�
:�
��

��

�
	�
��
�




�	

�
��
�

��


��

��
��

�
�
&

��
	�


��
	�

��
��

��
��

��
A
�$
�'

�A
#5
��

��
��	

��
��
��


��
��

�
�
�

�	
��
��
��
��	

�
&
��
��

��
��


�	

��
�

��
��

�

�
�

��
�!
�)
&�
��
&�

��
	�

�
�

��
�	

���
�

���
��

��
	�

��
��
	�

��
��
��

��
��	


�
�	
��
��
��

�
!
�

.
��
�$

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

�

"�
�	
��
��

���
��

��
	�


�
��
 �
�	
�

	�
��

��
���
��

��
���

��
+
��

��


�

D=
�

D=
�

00
0�
�

�
00
0�
�

�
00
0�

�
�

D=
�
�

�
�

��
��
��

��

�


��

�
���

��
���
��

�

��
�

���
�&


�	
��
��
��

$
��

&�
��
�
&

��
��
��

��
��
�	

��
��>

?(
��
�	


�
��
�

��
+
��

��


�

;!
D�
��

��
��

H�
9�
��

��
�

;!
��

�
��

��
��
�

;!
�9

��
��

��
�
�

;�
��

��
��
�

�
;�
��

��
��
�

�
�

.
��
�$

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

�

(�


��
�

��
I�
	�


��
	�

�

��
��

�

�	


�
�
�

��
:�
��
@�
	�

��
��

J
���
��	

�(
��
��


��

��
J
��
&�

C
��

�
C
��

�
��

��
�

L
	�


�
��
�

�
�

L
	�

�
��
�

��
�

(�


��
�

��

��
�

�
(�



��
�

��

��
�

�
�

6	

�
��

��
��
��

���
��
��
��

� 
�	
��



��
��
��

��
��
	�

��	
�C
��

��
��
��

��
J
��
&�

C
��

�
L
�

�

��
��

�
L
	�


�
��
�

�
�

L
	�

�
��
�

�
�

(�


��
�

��

��
�

�
(�



��
�

��

��
�

�
(�



��
�

��

�L
�

��

��
��
��

�!
�

Page 24



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
#�
��
�#
��

��
��
��
��
3
��

�
4�
�5
��
��
��
"�

�	
��
��5
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
6�
��
��
��
	�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�

��

7
��
��

�

�	
!��

�
�	
��
�

"�




�	

�

��
��

��
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

��
��
��
��

(�
��
�

�

%
��

��



��
	�

�
%
��
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
%
&�
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

�
:�
��

��

�
	�
��
�




�	

�
��
�

"�
�

��
��

�
�

�
�

�
 

 
 

�
 

�
 

�

C
�


��
���

���
��
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
��
��

��
	�

��
��
��

��
�

��

��
��
>
?(

�
C
�

+
��

��


�

�$
D#

D$
9;

;�
�!
D


�
#7

7$
9:

��
�

97
8$
#D

#�
�

�$
��

;$
:#

9�

�
�

�
�$
D7

:$
�;

D�

�
�

�
�

"�
�

�


��
�;
��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
�

(�
	

��

�(

�	

�
��
��
���
��
	�

�
��
��

�
�
�
&

�	
�#
��
��
��

	�
��

��
J
��
&�

97
=
�

8�
=
�

9:
=
�
�

99
=
�
�

�
9;

=
�
�

�
9;

=
�
�

�
�)

B
��
�


�
�	
���

�9
$:
�9

��
�

�;
9$
�8

D�
��
���
!�6
	�

��
��
��

�
��



�	

��
��
	�

&
��
��
��
��
��
�	

��
��

��
��

�

��
	�
�	
�
&

��
��

�
��
��
&


�	

�

&�
��

�
�
�

��

�
&
��
��
��
���

	�
��
��
�


&
��
��
��
��
�!
��*

��
��
.�
��


��
	�

��
��

�

���

���
��

&
��
��	

��
�


�

��
	!
�

��
��
��

��
1�

��
�	
��

�


��
��
���
��

��

�
���

��
��
��
��
��
���

��
J
��
&�

;�


�	
��

H�
8�


�	
��

:!
97

�


�	
��
�
�

:!
79

�

�	
��
�

:!
7#

�

�	
��
�

�
:�


�	
��
�

�
N)
&�

�1
��

��
	�

�
�


��
��
�&
��
��

&�


�
��
���

�

��
��

�$
��
��
��

�
�
&

��
	�



��

���
���
��

�0

�
0�
��

��
&�

��
	�

�
�	
��
��

��
�!
���

��
��
��

�O
��
7$
D�

7�
�

��
��

��
��
O�
��

$�
#8

�

"�
�

�


��
�;
��
��

�
�

�
�

�
�
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
�

-	
1�

���
���

��
��

��

	�

�


��
��
��

��
��

�
�
���

��
��
��
��
��
���

��
J
��
&�

7�


�	
��

H�
��

�


�	
��

8!
7�



�	
��
�
�

7!
;�


�	
��
�

7!
8�


�	
��
�

�
7�


�	
��
�

�
�

"�
��

��

��

	�
��
��
��


�


��
��

��

�	

��
(�

	

��

�(

�	

�
��

��
�

�


��
��
��
��
��
�3�

��
�,
��
��

3�
.�
��
��
	

,!�

��
J
��
&�

77
=
�

7D
=
�

7:
=
�
�

7�
=
�
�

�
7:

=
�
�

�
7D

=
�
�

�
�)

B
��
�


�
�	
��D

:�
��
D9

!��
��

��
��
�

��
���

��
��
��

��
� 
��

��
��
�

��
��

�
�
��
��
	�


&
��
��
��
��
��

�	
�

�

��

�
�	
�	
��
��
��!
��)

&�
��

&
��
�
�

��

Page 25



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
:�
��
�#
��

��
��
��
��
3
��

�
4�
�5
��
��
��
"�

�	
��
��5
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
6�
��
��
��
	�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

��
�

��

7
��
��

�

�	
!��

�
�	
��
�

"�




�	

�

��
��

��
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

��
��
��
��

(�
��
�

�

%
��

��



��
	�

�
%
��
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
%
&�
8�
(7

9�
��




��
	�

�
��
��
��
	�

�
��




��
	�

�
:�
��

��

�
	�
��
�




�	

�
��
�

��
��

�
�
��
��
�


�
&
��
��
��

��
4�
��
�	
��

�5
�	
�

��
��
	�

�
��
��

��
��

!P
5�

>
��

��

�
��
��
��
���


�	
��
��
�>

��

�

?�
� 
�&

��
��
(�

�	
��
���

��
��

�
�

4*
��

�


�?
�


�
��
(�

		
��


�
��

*�
��
��

5�

��
+
��

��


�

#�
�

��
��

#�
�

��
��

00
0�
�

�
00
0�
�

�
00
0�

�
�

#�
�

��
��
�

�
�

Page 26



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
D�
��
�#
��

� ��
��
��
��
3
��

�
4�
�5
��
��
��
"�

�	
��
��5
��
��
��
��

	

��
��
�

��
��
��
��
6�
��
��
��
	�

�6
��
<�
��

�
�	

��
��
��

�
�

��
��
��

��

�
=�
��
>�


��
��
��
��
��
��

�
��

�
��

�
:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

+
��

�

�:
��
��
��"
��
��

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

K�
	�
-�

�	
��

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
���
�

�*
(�
#�

6	
��
��

��
�
&

��
	�



��

���
���

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
	�

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
�	
��
*�

���
B
���

�

��

�*
��

��
�

�4�
	�

��
��
	�

�"
��
��

	�
��?

��
��


�
5�

��
D�

=
�

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

� ���
    

)�
��
�

�%
��

� ���
    
    

)�
��
�

�%
&�

� ���
    

)�
��
�

�%
?�

� ���
�

(�
��
�

�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

4J
��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

A
��

�

��
�:
�

�7
=
�

4D
D�

��
��
$7
#D

5�

��
=
�

4;
#;

��
��
$8
88

5�

�:
=
�

4;
7�

��
��
$8
�7

5�

�8
=
��

49
�D

��
��
$D
9:

5�

D�
=
�

+
��

��


�

)'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
��

6	
�
�
��
�
�

��
�

��

��
��
��
��

��
	�

&
��
�	

�
��

��

��

	�
��
��
��

�
��



��	

��
�"
��
��

	�
��?

��
��


�
��
��
��

��
�
&

�

�&
��
��
��

	�
��

��
��

��
��

��

�
���


�
�

��
��
��

��

�
!��
��

��

��

	�
���

$��
��

�
�
�

��
��
	�

��
��
�	
�
&

��
��
	�

�
�
�


��
��
��

�
�


��
�	

��

&
��
��

��
�

�	
��


��

��
���

�

��
�

��
�$
�
&

��
��
��

��

�
�
�

��
�


��
�

��

&
��
��
��
��

��

�
�


��
��
�.

��

�	

��
��
��
	

��
�	


�
�*
��
��B

���
�

��

�
*�

��
��

�4
*B

*5
�&
��
��
��

	�
��
�

���


�
�!
�

)'
"#

�
�
'1

7
'7

�+
"(
*#
1
��

(�
	

�	
��

�
�
��
��

��
��

��
�	
��

��

�
��



��	

��
�"
��
��

	�
��?

��
��


�
��
��
��

��
$��

��
	�

���
��

��	
�+

��
��
��

�!
��)

��
��


��
��

��
�
��

�
�


��
��
��
��
	

��
�	


�
�*
B
*�
��
��

&�

��
��
���

	

��
�
�
&

�
&
��

��


��
��
��
��
��
��

� 
��

��
��
	�

��
&�

��
�
&

��


��
 �


��
�	

��
��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�	

!��
�

� ��
��@
��

��
��
�

&�

��

��
��
�	

��
��
�

�


�

��

��
�


��
�.

�
�
��
���
�	
 �
	�

��
��
��

��
�
�

��
��
 �
��
���

��
��	

�	
��
��
$�6
)�
�	

��
��

��
��


�	

��
��
��

�


��
�	

��
�	
���

��
�	

�
�
�	

�
�
��
�

���

���
��

�0
�#

�
&�

��
��

�	
��
�I
��


�
��
��

�
	�

��
��

�
�
���

���
�

�	
�

��
	�

���
	�

���
��
���

���
��


��
��
�	

��
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
��
��

���
��
�!
��(

��
��

��

	�
��
���

��
�
�

���
��
��
��

��
	�
�

�

�

��
��
B
��


��
��J

��
�
&

�
��
��

�

�!
���

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��

C
�


��
��
��
���

���
	

��
�	

�*
��
��B

���
�

��

�*
��

��
�

��
&�

��
��
��

	

�	
��

�
�
��	

��
��

��
��
��

�
�
��
�1
��
� 
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�
�
��
�

��

���
��
��

�!
���

)*
:�
:�
+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�+
"(
*#
1
:�
�

C
��

��
��
��

��
�	
�

��


��
�


�	

�
��
1�

��
 �
��
�	

��
�&

�
�
��	

��
��

��
�
&

��
	�



��

��
��
��
�.

��
�

��

!��
(�
��
	

��
�
���
��
�	


�	
��

�
�
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��

��

&
��
��

&�
��
��





��
��
�	

��
�

��
��

��
�!
��L

	�
��
	�

���
� 
��
�	
��
��

��
��

��
�	


��
�

�	


��
���

	�
���


�
��
���

��
���
&�

���
	�

��
��
	�

�I�
��
��
��
���

��
��

�$
��
��

��

��

	�
���

�

�	

��
�	
��
��

�	
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

��
	�

��

�
��
�	
��

��
��

��

�
$��

��
�	

��
��
��
	�

���
��
��




�	

!�
��

�

Page 27



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
;�
��
�#
��

�
:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

��
�

��
:�
��
��
��
��
	�

�"
�




��
��
�	

�	
��

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

K�
���

�>
��
�


�	
�

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
�

�(
�7
�

6	
��
��

��
�
&

��
��
��

���
���

�



��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
��	


�
��
�	


��
	�
��
��
��
��
��	

�
&
��
(�

"�
��
��
�

��
�

��
��

��
�=

�

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
��
�

�(
7
�� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
&�
�

�(
7
�� ���

�

)�
��
�

�%
?�

�(
7
�� ���
�

(�
��
�

�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

4J
��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

A
��

�

��
�:
�

E�
$�
;;

$�
��

��

F�
�=

�

E�
$�
;;

$�
��

��

F�
�=

�

E�
$�
7D

$�
��

�

F�
#=

�

E�
$�
�9

$;
�;

�

FD
=
�

E�
$�
9�

$;
��

�

F�
�=

�

+
��

��


�

)'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
��

)&
��
��	

��
��

�
���

��
�

��
�
�

��
��

��
��



�	


�
��
��
��

��

�
��
�
�
&

�
&
��
��
��

��

��

���
�	
��

��
��

��
	


�	

��

��
��
��	


�
��
�	


��
	�
��
�	


��
&�
�&

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
���

��
�0
��

$��
	�

�
��
��
��
��

��
���

	�
��
��
��
��
	

��
�
�
&

��
��
�	
��
��
��
�	


!
�)
&�

���
	�

�	
��
�
��
��	


�
	�

��
�
�

��
��

��
�

��
.�
�

�	
��
��
��

��
��
	�
��
	�

��
�
&

��
��

&�
��
�	


�
$��
��

&�
��
�(
&�
��
��
	,
��
(�

	

��
�$
��
��

�
��
���

��

&
��
��

��
��
�


�	

��

��	
��

��
��
��
��
�	

$�)
&�
��
�
��
��
	�
��

��
�

�	

�
�
�
�

��
.

�	

��
��


&
�
&

��

�
��

��
���

��
��
��	


�
��
�	


��
	�

��
��

���
��
��
�	

��
��
��

��
��
��
��

���
��
�	
��

&
��
�$
�

�	
��
��

�	
��
��
�


�
&
��
"M

6��
��


�
�!
��
�
�

��
�

��

��
��
�

�
&

��
��
��
��

�
��
�


�	
�

��

�
��
��
�




�



�	

�

��
��
��


�
���

��
���

��
�

&
��	

�
&
��
��
��


�
��

��


��


��
��

��
��
���

��

��
�!
�C
��

�
�	
�
�
�

��
��
�
�

�

��


� 
��

��
���

��

��
��
�
��
��
��

��
��
��

�$
���

���
.�


��
��
��

��
��
���

��

��
�

�	

��
�


��
��

��
��
��

��
��
	�
��
��

&�

�<
�


���
�6	


�
��
�	


��
	�
"�

�

	�

��
&�
�!
�J
��

��
��
�
&

��

�
��
�

��

��
�	
�

��
�&

��
��

��
��
���

�	
�


��
���

���
��

��
	�

��

•
C
��

��	
�
�
�

��
��
�
�

� 
���

	�
��
�
�

��
��
��

��
��
	�

��
���

��
�


��
��

��
�

��
	�

��

&�

	�
�.

��
�

��

$��
��

���
���

.�


��
��

�
���

��
��




�	

�

�


��
��
��
��
��
�
&

��
��
��

��
��
!�

•
)&

��
��

��
��
�


�	

��

���
��
��
�	


�	
��
��
��

�

��
	�

��
���

��
�

��
�
�

��
��
�

��


��
��
��

���

�
��
	�

���
	�

��
�	
�
&

��
��
��

��
��
	�
��
��
��
�	


�	
��
��

��
��

��

��
��
�




��
�
�

� 
�


��
��


&
�	

��
�.
�


�	

&
��

�
��
��
��

��
��

$��
&�
�&

��	
�
�

�	
��


��
�

��

��
	�
��
��
��




�	

��

	�
��
��
		

�	
��
��
��
��
�	


�	
��
��
��

��




��
��
��
�
&

��
���

�

�!
�

•
)�

�
��
��

�
&
��
��

�
���

��

��

��

&�

��
��

���
�	

��
�	
��
��

��

��

��
��
��

	�
��	

��

&
��
��
��
��
���

��
�
�

��
�	
��
��
�	


�	
��

	�
��
��

��
��

�&
�
�

��
��

	�
�	
��
��
�


�
&
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��
��
��

�
��
��

��
�

��

&
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
!�)

&�
��
��
��

��
�
�

��
��
&�

��
��
���

��


�	

��
��
�
��
��
��

��
�
�

��
��

$��
��
��
.�


��
�$
���

���
��

�
�
�	

��
��
��


�
��
���
	�

��
�	

��
	

�<
�


���
�

2
��
��

�(
�	

��
��
	�

��
��

0�
��
�	
�

��
�!
�

•
)&

��
��
�
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
�
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��

�
��
�
�
&

��
	�

��

�
 �
	�

�
&
��
�
��
 �
��
��

�
��

�
��
�	


�
��

�	

��
��
��

�
�
	�

���
�


��
�

��
�	
��

&
��
��
��

�
��
��

&�

��
��
��
��

��
��
��

•
��


��
�
�
��
�
�

��
��

��
��

�
&
��
��
��
��M

(*
�


��
 �


�
��
��

���
�	


��
��
��
��
	�

��
���

���
��

&
��
��

��
 �

�
��



��
�

��
��

�
�
�	

��
��
��
��
��

��
��	


�
�
&

��
��
��

��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
�
&

��


��
��

��
��

��
���

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
	�

��
��

�&

!
�<
��
��
.�


��
��
I�
�	

��

��
 �
�
�
&

�&
��

�
&
�
�

��
��

��
��

��
��
��

��

�	


�
��	

��
��
&�



�!
�

)'
"#

�
�
'1

7
'7

�+
"(
*#
1
��

)&
��
��
��
�	

��
&�

��
��
��

	�
��
��
	�

��
��
�


��
	�

��
�	
�


��
���

���
�

��
	�

��

��
�


�	

�
�!
��
��
�




��
��
�	

�	
��
��
�


��
��
 �
��

��
��
�	

��
	�
�	

	�
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
 �
&�

��
��

�	
�

��
��

��
��

�$
��


��
�


�	

�

��

	�
��
��

&�
�&

��
���
��
���

�
���

��

&�

���
	�

��
���

��
��	

�
�


��
��
��

���
���

1�
���

��

�
�


��
��
��
�


��
�




��
��
�	

�	
��

�
��
��
��

��


�	


��
	�

��
�	


�
��

��

��
��
��
��

Page 28



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
9�
��
�#
��

��
��	

��
��
��
��

	�
�0
��

��
��
�	

��
&�
�&

�1
��

��

��
�	
�
�
�

��
��
!�*

�

��


�	

��
��
��
��
�	

��
��	

��
��

���
���
��
��
��
��

��
��

	

��	

��
��

�0
�#

!�B
��
��

��
��
	�

�&
��

��
��

�	
�&
��
��
�
�
&

�M
(*

�(
�"

�
<�

��


��
��

�

�
�

��
�

�	
��
	�

�
��
��
��
��

��
��	


�
�
&

��
��
�

���


��
	�

��
��

��
�

���

��

&�
��
��

��
��

!�+
�	

��
��
&�

��
��
��

	�
��
�

���

�

��

��
���
��
�	


��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�	


��
��
��
��

�
�
�


�$
�

�.

�
	�

�	
��

&
��
��
��

��

�
�
�

��
	�

��

�
 �

��
��
�&

��
�	
�0
��
��

�
��
�
��
 �
�	
��
�


��
��
��

&
��
�
��
��
��

�
�

��

��
��
�




��
��
�	

�	
��
��

��
��
�&


�

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��

6

��
��

��
��
��
		

�	
�$
�


�	
�
�

��	
��
�	

��
��

��
��


�	

��
�


�	
��

�

�	


!
�

�)
*:
�:
�+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�+
"(
*#
1
:�
�

@�
	�

��
�
�

�

��
��

��
	


�	

��
�	

��
	�

���
��

��
��
��
��

��

�
��
�
�
&

��
��
��
��	


�
��
�	


��
	�
��
��
	�

��

�
�	
�


� 
�	
��
�
�


��
��
��
��
��
��

�

��
��

��
��


��

��


�
�

�

��
�	


�
��

�
!�

�

Page 29



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
8�
��
�#
��

�
:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

:�
��
��
�"
��
��
"�





��
��
�	

�	
��
@
�.
��

��
	�
�

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

K�
	�

�2
��
��

��
�

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
���
�

*(
(J

��
"�

��
�	


�
��

��
���

��
��
��
��
��
�	


�	
��
��
�&
�


��
��
��
�
&�

��
�
&

��
&�



��
��
�	

��
��
&�

��
��

�	
��
��
��

	

��

��
���

��
��
��

��

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
��
�

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
&�

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
?�

� ���
�

�(
7
�

(�
��
�

�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

4J
��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

A
��

�

��
�:
�

8:
=
�4�

#�
��
D;

5�
9:

=
�4�

��
��
;#

5�
9D

=
�4�

��
��
:8

5�
98

=
�4�

�:
��
��
##

5�
98

=
�4:

;8
�;
��

5�
8D

=
�

J
��
&�

)'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
��

)&
��
J
��

��
	�

��
��
��
��

���
���

��
	�

��	
��
��

��
��
��



�	

��
��
��
&�



��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
$��
��
��
�

�	
��
��
	�


��
	�

��

��
	�

!��
B
��

�
�
�
&

��
��

	�
��

���

��
�


��
�	

��

&
��
��

��
�	


��
��

	�


��
��
��


�

�$
�
&

��
��
��

�	

��

	�

�
��
��

&
�

�&
��

��
��

�	
��
��

��
��
��
���
	�

&
��
��

�

��
��
��	

��
��

��
	�

��
��
��

�

�	
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�$
��
!�
!�


��

��

���
�

��
��
	

��

��
��
�




��

�

��
	�
��
��

��
���

��
��

�
&
��
@�

��
��J

��
��
	�

�
��
��
�
�	

��
���

��
��4
�	

��

&
��

��
	�

��
��
��

��
�5
��
	�

���
	�

��
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��

��
	�

��
���

��
�

�	


�

��

�
 �

��
��

���
�	


�
��
	�
��

	�
��

�$
��
��

&
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
	

���

	

��
�


��
 �


��
	�
>
?!
��)

&�
��
��
��

��
�
&

��
(�

�	
��
���

�
&
�	
��
�

&�

���
�

��
	�
��


�

��

�
 �

��
�&
�


��
��
��
��

��
��
�

��
	$
��
	�

��	
��
��

��
	�

��
$��

��
���
�	


�
��

&�
��
��

��
��
&�

&
��
(�

�	
��
���
��
��
��
��

�
	�

��
�
��
&�

�
�


� 
��
�	

��
��

���
�

��
	!
�6

��
&�

��
��

��
�	
�

��

�
&
�

�
&

��
���
��
�	
�

��
	�

��

��
	�

$��
�
&

�(
��

	�
���
���

��
�

�	
��
��
�#

=
��	

��
��

��
��	

�&
�


��
��
�	

��
��
��

��
��
	�
��

��
��
��
��
��
	�

�
�
���
��

��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
B
(@

2
��	

�B
��

�

��

�$
��
	�

�	
�

�>

��

�

?�
� 
�&

��
�0
��

��
���
�!
��

)'
"#

�
�
'1

7
'7

�+
"(
*#
1
��

)&
��
J
��

��
	�

�*
��
��
��

��
�	


�	
��

��

�
���

��
��
�	

��
��
��

	

��
	�

�
��
��
��
�
&

��
���
�

��
��
��

	�
��

�
��
��

��
��
&�

��
��
�


�&
��

��
&�

��
��
�
&�

��
��
�
&

��
�

�	

��
��

�
&
�&
�


��
��
�	

��
�!
���
)&

��
��	

��
��

��
�

	�
��


��

�	

��
�
�
&

���
	�

��
��
�$
��
��

��
�

�	
��
��

��
��
�	


�
��

�
&
���

	

��
��

��
�
�

��
	�

���
	

��	

��
��

�	
��

$��
	�

��
&�

���
	�

�	
��
�	
��

��
��


��
��
��
��

��
��	

�

��
�!
�J
��

��
��
$��

��

&
��
���
��
�	
�

��
	�

��

��
	�

��
	�

�
��

�
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	


�	
��
��
�&
�


��
��
�$
���
��
��

�	
��
��
�
&

��
(�

�	
��
�,�
��
�	


�
��
!�)

&�
��
��
��
���


�
�

��
��

��

	�
�
&

�

��

��
��
	�

�
 �

$��

&
��
�
&

�	
�
�

��
�	


�	
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

	

��
	0
��
��

��
��
��
�!
��)

&�
�
�

��
�

���

���
��

��
�#

�&
��
��
��

	�
��

�

��


��
	

��
	�

&
��
��
��

���
�&

��
��

��

&
��
��
��

���
��
��
�

�	
��

&
��
��

	

�	
��
	�

��	
��
��

��
��
��



�	

��
�	

��

&
��
��

��	
�
�
�	

���
��	

���
	�

��
�
&

��

�

�

�
��
�

"�
-�
&�

��
�	
��
��

�
�	
��
�	

��

&
��
��
��
��
��
	�
	�


��
��
�


�	
��

��
�	

��
�
���
��
���

�
��
��

�
��
��

��
��
��

�
��
��
�	

�&


��
 !
�

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��

B
��

�
�
�
&

��
�	

��
���

�	
��
��
�

��
�$
��
	�

���
�

&�

���
	

��
��
�

��

��
&�

	�
��
��	

��
��
��
��
��
�	

��
�
�

$�

&�
��
�	
��
��

��
	�

�
�
�	

��
��
��
	

��
��
�

��

�
�
��
�	


�	
��

!�"
��
��

	

��
	�
�
���
���



��
	�

&
��
��
��

��
��


��

��
��

�	

��

��
�

��

�
&
�

�
&

��
��
�
���
��
��
��
��
�

&�

���
	�

��
��
��
�	
��
��

���
�

��
	�

!�

)*
:�
:�
+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�+
"(
*#
1
:�
�

C
�	

�!
�

Page 30



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
7�
��
�#
��

�
:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

'�
��
�

��
	�

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

6�
	�
"�

��
��

	�

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
���
�

-B
��

6	
��
��

��
�
&

��
��
��

��

��

	�
��
��
��

���
��
��
	�
	�

�D
F�

G0
(�
�

�2
(*

-$
��	

��
��

�	
��
-	

��
��
&�
�	

��
+
�

&�

�
�
�;
�=

�

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

)�
��
�

��
%
��
� ���
�

)�
��
�

��
%
&�
�

)�
��
�

�%
?�

(�
��
�

�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�4J

��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

A
��

�

��
�:
�

0�
;�

!�
=
�

0�
0�

;�
=
�

J
��
&�

)'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
���

L
��

��
��$
�2
(*

-�
��
��

�
�
��	

�>
��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
��

��
��
��
��

��

��
��
���


��
��


��

��
��
��
��

�
&
��

��
��
&�
��

�	
��
D�
F�
�G

�0�
(�
��
��

��
$��
	�

��
��
	�

�-
	�

���
&�
'
�+

�

&�

!�;
�!
�=

��
�&

��
��

��

&
��
�


��
��

��
$��
	�
��



��

���
�	

�
�
��
�	
�

��
	�

���
��
��
��
��
�D
8!
��

=
!�>

&�
	�

&
��


��

��
��
���
���

��
��

��

�
��
�


��
��
D�
F�
�G

0(
�
&

��
>
��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
���
��

��
��	

��
��

��
��

�
�

;�
!8
=
$��
	�
��



��

���
�	

�
�
�D
8!
9=

�	
�

��
	�

���
!�

>
&�

	�
2
(*

-�
3�
1�

��
��
�	


,
�1
��

���
��
�

��
	�

��
��
��

�
��
��

��
��


��
��

&�

��

�

��


��
�$
�>

��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
,�
�2
(*

-�
D�
�G

�0�
(�
�	
��
��

�	
��
-	

��
��
&�
�	

��
+
�

&�

��
��
��

	

��

��
��

��
���
�

D8
!:
�=

$��
�


��
;=

��
��

��
�
&

��
	�


��
	�

���
��
��
��
��
�D
�!
:�

=
�

��
��

��
���

��
��

��
��

�
��
��

��
$��

	�

&
��
� 
��

�

��

��
��
���
�
&

��
��
��

��
��
��

�
��

	

��


� 

��
�!�

!�

&�

�I�
��
	�

��

&
��

�&
��

��


��

��
��
�


�
&
��
�	

��
��
��
*�

�
�
�2
(*

-�
��
��

�
�
��

�


&
��
�	

��
��
��
*:

!�

�
��
	�

�
&
��
�


��
��

��
$��

��
��
��
��

��
��
��	

�>
��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
���
��
��
��

��

�

��
��
��

��	
�-
	�

���
&�
�	

��
+
�

&�

!�

��
��
��
	�
��

��
��

	$
�	
�

��
	�

���
$��

��
��
��
��
�	
�+

�

&�

���
��
��
��

�
&
�

��	

�-
	�

���
&$
�


&
��

�&
��
	�
��


&
�


��
��

��
�$
�>

��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
��
��

��
��
�
��
���

��
��

�
&
��
	�


��
	�

��
��

��
��

�!
�

�@
��

��

��
�,
��
2
(*

-�
+
�

&�

���
��
�
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��

�	
��

��
��
�&

��
��
$��

�
&
��
�


��
��

���
��
�	
��
��
��
�	

���
��
	

��


��
��

�

�	


!
��
	�
��

�
	�


�
��
�&
��

��
��
$��
��

���
��
��

��
��
&�

��
��
��
��
��

��
��

� 
$��

&�
�&

�&
��

��
�	
��

�

��
��
�


��
�

��
	�
��

��
��
���

��
��
�


�	
��

!��
��

)&
��
�


�


�
���

��
�
&

��
��

�I
��


��
���

��
��

��
�

��
L
��

��
��
�
�'
�*
��
�

�	
��
(�





��
��
�	

���
��
��

��	
�<
��

��
��
��
��

��
!�

� ��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�	


��
��
��
�	
�
&

��
��
��
&�

��
��
��
��
�	


�
��
�

�	
��

�
���

�
��
��
��
��
�


�	
��

��	
��
��

��
�

•
@�

��
��
�&

��
��
	�

�

�	

��
�


�	

��

��+
�

&�

�
•

A
��

��

��
��
�
�

��
&�
	�

��
	�

���
��
	�
	�

��	
��
�


��
��
��

��
�

�
=
�


� 
�	
��
�.

��
�

��

��
��
��
��
��

�
-	

��
��
&�

+
�

&�

�

-	
��
�	

��
9�

!8
�=

�
;:

!8
�=

�

>
��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
�

9;
!#
�=

�
;8

!;
�=

�

Page 31



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
��
��
�#
��

•
6	
��
��
�

��
��


�	

�
�
��	

��
�	

��
��

��
��


��
	�
��
��

�
��

	

��
��
��
��
��

•
�
	�
��
��
��
��
��


�
$��
	�

��
��
	�

��
��

 �


��

��
�

��
	�

•
@�
� 
��
���

��
��
��
��

�
��	


�
��
�	


��
	�
��
��


&�
��
��

�
��

	

��
�

���
� 
��
���

	�
��
��
&�
��

�

�	


�
•

��
��
�	

���
��
	

�	
�


��
���

���

�
��

	

��
��
��

��
��
��
��
�&

��
��
	�

��
�(
��
��
��

��	
�


�

&�
��
�

��

���
��
�&

��
��

��
��
B
��
��
��

�

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��

•
B
��

��
�


�	

��

��

&�

��
��

0

�


��
@�

�+
�

&�

��
��

�	
��

�*
 �
���
�)
��

�&
��
�4�

*)
5�

��
��

��
��

�

&�

�J
��

��
��
�B
��

��




�	

��

	�
��

�
��
�
�

��

��
��

��

&
��
1�

��
�
�

��
��


�
��
&�
	�

!�
•

�*
)$
��
��

��
�

��

��
��

&
��
*�
&�

��
�6


��
��

�

�	


�"
��

	
��
�4*

6"
5��

��
 �
	�

��
�
&

��

�
��
��
	�

�
��
 �
	�

$��
��
��
��
��
�	

��
	�

��	

�
��
�	


��
	�
��
��

��




��
!�

•
%�

��
��

��
�
&

��
��
&�
��
��

	�
��
��
��
���

��
��
�

���

��
�
�

���
���

��
�!
�

>
��
��
��

�	
��
��

&
��
�


��
�

�	

��
��
���

&�
��	

��
��

��
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�&

��
��
/�

&�

��
*)

���
��

��
��
J
��

��
��
�+

�

&�

�C
�

�
��
 $
��

&�
��
�
&

��
��

��
�	


��
��

��
���
��
	�

@�
��

��
�&

��
��
	�

�+
�	

��
�


�	

!
�)
&�

�

��


��
��

�	

�


��

�	

��
�	
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
	

�

��
	�
��
�


�)
��	

�
�
�*
�&

��
�$�

�
��
&�

��
�&
��

��
��
�
&

��
��
��
��
��
�
��
���
	�
��
�

��
��

�,
��
�*

:�
��
��

�
�
$��

	�
���
�


��
�?
��


�	
�&

�

��
�&

��
���

&�
�&
��

��
��

�	
��
��
	�

��
�


��
�	

�
��
�	


��
	�
�
��
 !
�

)�
��
	�
	�

���
��)

��
�&

�	
��
��

��
�

�	


�
�4)

��
5��

&�
��
��

��
�

��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
$��

��
���

�	

��
��
��
��

�+
�

&�

�J
��

��
��
��B

��
��




�	

��

��
��
	�

��
!�)

&�
�@
��
��
��
��
��
	

��
��	

�

&
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
�	

��
�	
��

&
��
�
�

��
	�
	�

!�

)&
��
�


��
�

�	

��
��
���

��
��

��
��
��

	�
�	
��
�	
�+

�

&�

��

�"

��

��
��
��
��

���
��
 �

��

�
���

��
�	
��
�

�	

��
��
��
�	
��
��

�	
��

��
��
�&

��
��
!�6
	�
��

��
��

��

��

&�
�$
�>

��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
�&
��
�

�	

&
��

��
�

��
��
��
��


��
��
��

��
�	
�

��
	�

���
��
��
�




��

�
�
�
��
	�
"�
�


��
��
+
�

&�
�*
��

��
��
��

�
!�)

&�
���
��

��

�&
��

��

�

��
�

��

�
&
��
���

8�


�	


&
�
�
��
	�
	�

��
��
��
�




��
�	
�

B
��

�

��

���
��

�!
�)
&�
��
&�

��
��
��

��
��

��
;�

�
��
	�

��
��

��
��
���

�
$��

&�
��

���
�	
��

��
��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
�


��
��
��
&�

��
��
�	
�>

��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
�
�

��
&�



��
�	

$��
	�

��
��
��
	�

�
��

��
��

�+

�

&�

�
�
��
&�
	�

!��
���

�

&�

���
�&

��

��
��
��

��
�	


��
��
��
	�

�
�
��
	�

��

�
�$
�
�

��
��
��
��
��

	�
��
��


�
���

��
��
�
�

!�

)*
:�
:�
+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�+
"(
*#
1
:�
�

��
��
�&

��
��
��
�	

��
�

�
�

��
��
��



��
�

�

��

�
&
��
@�

���
��
��
�
�

��	
���

�	
��

��
	�
�


��
��

�	
��
�

�	

��
��
�!
�)
&�

��
��
��
��
��
��
���

 �
��
��
��

��

�
��
�
�
&

�
&
��
��

�
	�

�Q
�	
��
��
�
&

��
*�
&�

��
�6


��
��

�

�	


�)
��



��
��

�
�
�
&

��
(�

�	
��
�,�
��
��

��

�
��
��
�	

�

��
�	

�
��
��
��
��

��

�
���
��

�
�

�&

��
!��
)&

��
��
��
��

��
���

��
�	

��
��
��
�&

��
���
��
��

��

��
��
��

�
���

���
��

��
�&

��
��
��
��
�	

���
��
	

��	

��
��

��
���

��
��
�

��	

��
��
&�
��
&�

��
!��
)&

��
���
��
.�

��

�
��

�
�&
��

��

&
��
	�


��
��
��


��
���

�


�	

��

&
��
��

��
��

�

��

�>
��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
���

��
�
�
��

� 
��	

�
�
�


&
��

�
��
1�

��

��
��
	�


��
	�

���
!�

�

Page 32



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
��
��
�#
��

�
:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

'�
��
�

��
	�

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

6�
	�
"�

��
��

	�

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
�

-B
#�

C
��
��
�
�
&

��
��
&�
��

�

�	


��
��

��
�

�
��

	�
*-

C
��
�	
�	

�*
-C

��
��

��	
��
��
��

��:
��
���

��
��

��	
�-
	�

���
&�
�	

��
+
�

&�

��

�

&�

��
	�

��
���

*�
�
�

�D
�=

�

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

)�
��
�

�%
��

)�
��
�

��
%
&�
� ���
�

�'
�� ���
�

(�
��
�

�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�4J

��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

A
��

�

��
�#
�

0�
0�

DD
=
�

DD
=
�

HD
�=

�
+
��

��


�

)'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
���

)&
��
��
��

�

��
	�

�
��
�

��
��

��
��
�
�

�&
��

��
��

�	
��
��

���


��

��

��
$��

�

�
&

��
��




��
	�
�&
��

��
�	

��

��
��

�

�	


��
���

!#
=
��
��

��

&�

��
��
��
��

��
��

��
!�4
��

��
��
��
��




��
	�

D;
!#
=
5!�
�)
&�

�

��
	�
��
��
�	

���
��	

�

��
�&

��
��
	�

�
&
��

�
��
�

��

��
��
���

��
�

��
	�
�	
�
&

��
	�



��

���
���


�

�


�	


�
��
�&

���
��
	�
��
���
	�

��
��
��

�
&
��
��

	�
&


��
 !
�)
&�
��
��
���

�

��


&
��
&�
�&

���
��

���
��

��
��
�	
��

��
��
��

&�
��
��

&�
�

!��

��
��
�

��	

��
��	

��
���

��
	

�L
��

�
��
��
��

�

��
	�
*-

C
$�	

�

��
	�

���
$�

&�

��

�
	�

��
��
��
�*
-C

��
��
��
��
�	

��	
�


��
	�


�
��



��
�&

��
���
��
��
��
��

	�
��
��
��

��
!�+

��
&�
��
�
&

��
���
��
�

��


��
	�


��
	�
��
��
�


��
�	
��
��
��

��
��
��

���
�.

��
�

�

��
	�

��
��
	�

�
�
��
��
�
��
	�

��
���

� 
��
���

��
�	

��

��

��
	�

��
�

�	

��
	�

��
	�

��
�
��
�	

��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��

�
��	


�
��
�	


��
	�
�

�	
��
�

��

�
��
��
!�)

&�
��
���
��
��
��
��
���

���
�

��

��	
�>

��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
$��

��
	�

��
��

�
&
��
��
�

��
��
��
��

��
�

��
	�
&�

��
��
��

�	
��
��
��

��
��
��


��
��
��
��

��
�	
��

��
$��

	�
�&
�	

��
$�

��
��

�	
��

&
��
��

��
��

��


��
�&
��
��

�!
�

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��

)&
��
	�

�
��	

��
��


��
	�
��
�


��
��
 �
&�

��
��
��

��
��

�
��
��
��

��
�	

�
&
��
��
��

��
��
��
��*

-C
��
��

���
$��

&�
�&

��
���
���

�

&�

���

�
�	

�

&�

	�

&
��
��
��
���

���
��
�

��
��



�	


��
	�
��

�	
��

��
��

	�

�
�*
-C

��	
��
�

&�
�


�
�	


�	


��
	�

��
��
��
��
��
4�
�&

��
��



�	


5
!�

@�
��
��

��
�

��
	�

��	

�
��
�	


��
	�

��
���
��	

��
��

��
	�

��
��	

��
��

��
�

•
>
��
��
��


��
�


�	

�

��

	�
��
�3�

�&
��
��



�	


��
��
��
��,
$��

�	
�

��
	�

���
��
��
�




�$
��
��

��
�

��

��
��

&
��
B
�-
$��

&�
�&

���
��

��
��
�	

���
��
�	
��

&
��
��
&�
��

�

�	


��
��

*-
C
��
��

���
!�

•
*�

��
��

��
��
��
��
�
�

��
	�

�
�
��
	�
	�

��
��
��
��

��
��

�
&
��
*-

C
�*
�&

��
��6


��
��

�

�	


��
��

��
��
��
	�

�
&
��
*�

��
��
��C

��
��

�*
��

��
�

�)
��



�

•
*�

��
���
��

�
��
	�
	�

��
	�


�	

�
�
��	

��
��
��

��
��
$��
�


�	

��
��
��
��

��

�
�
��
�

��
�	

��
�	

�
��
�	


��
	�
��

� 
��

��
!�

•
��

��
��

��
	�
��
��

��
��

��
�	

��
�

��

�
��
��
�

•
*�

��
��

�	

��
*�

��
��
��-

��
��

��

	�
�C
��

��
�(
�0
��
��
	�


�
��
�4*

-C
(L

�5
��	

��
�&

��
��
!�

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
���
<�

�

&�

���
��

��
��

&
��
*-

C
��
�	
�	

�*
-C

��
��

��
��
�


��
��

�	
��
*-

C
��
��

���
,��

�&
��
��



�	


�

)*
:�
:�
+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�+
"(
*#
1
:�
��*
�&

��
��6


��
��

�

�	


��
	�

�*
C
*)

��
��

��
�
�

$��

�
��
�	
��
��
��

��
��
	�

��
.�

��

��

��
�	
��
�&

��
��
��
	�

�
&
��
	�

��
���

���
�&

��
��
�
�

��
��
��

��
�

�


�
	

��
	�
�	

�*
-C

��
��

���
��
��

��
��
!�

Page 33



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
��
��
�#
��

�
:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

'�
��
�

��
	�

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

6�
	�
"�

��
��

	�

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
���
�

-B
D�

6	
��
��

��
�
&

��
��
��

��

��

	�
��
��
&�
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��

��
�&

��
��


��
��
��

&�
��
�&

��
��

�D
F�

G0
(�
�

�2
(*

-�
��

��
��

��
;�

�
�#
�=

�

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

�

)�
��
�

�%
��
�

�(
7
�

)�
��
�

�%
&�
�

�(
7
�� ���
�

�'
�
� ���
�

(�
��
�

�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

4J
��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

A
��

�

��
�:
�

0�
0�

�8
!�
=
��

�8
!�
=
�

#�
=
�

+
��

��


�

)'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
���

)&
��
��	

��
��

�
���

�1
��
��
��
��

��
��
�
�

�&
��

��
��
&�
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
��(

��
���

��
��

��	
�-
	�

���
&�
�C

B
�+

�

&�

��

�2

(*
-!
�

%�
��
��

�	
��
��




��
��
��

��
��
��

�
�
��

�
��
��
��
��
�

&�


�
��
��
��
�

&�

��
��

��
$�
��

��
��


�	

��
��
	�

+
�

&�

��
��
��

��
��
��
��

!�
)&

��
��

��
��

��

��

��
��
��
��

��
	�

�	
��

��
�	
�

�
��

>
��

�

?�
� 
�&

���
��
��

�	
��

��
��
�&

��
��
��

�
&
��

�

��


��
��
��
��
��
	�
���

�	

�<

*+
��
�&

��

�
��



��
	�
	�

��
��
���
	�
-	

��
��
&$
��
�

��
��
��

��
�=

��	
�+

�

&�

!�

�	
�

&�

��
��
��

��
�
&�
�&

�&
��
���

��
�
�

��
�	
��
	�

��
�&
��


�	
��

&
��
��

��
�
�

��
�

��

��
�
&

�

��

&�
��
��



��
	�
	�

��
��
���
	�
+
�

&�

�4�
	�
��
��
��
��

�	
��

��
��
�&

��
��
�
&

��
��

��
�D
�=

F�
�	

��
�	
��
	�

�
9D

=
5�

&�

��
�


��
	�

��
�	
��
��

�
���

��
�


��
&�
��
�
��
��
��

��
��
�
&

��
��


��
��

��
��
��
��
�	
�

��
�&

��
��

��
�(
��	

�-
	�

���
&!
�

>
&�
��
�
&

��
��



��
	�

��
��




��
	�
�
��
��
8!
�=

$�

&�
��

��
��

�	
��

��
��
�&

��
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
�


��
	�

��
��
��

�
�
��
��

��

&�

�#
�=

�
�
��
�

!�

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��

6

��
&�

��
��
��

�	
�

��

�
&
�

��
�&

��
��
�3�

�
	,
�
&

��
���

��
��

�
��
	�

��
�	
�


��
��&

��
��
�	
��
��

�
��

&
�

�
&

��
��
��
��
��
��

��

�
��

�
��
��
��




��
��	

��
��

�!
�

��
��
��

�

��
	�
2
(*

-�
+
�

&�

��
��
��
�


�	
��

��
��
��
�	

��
��

��
��
��

�L
��

��
��
�
��
	�

�*
��
�

�	
��
+
�	

��
�


�	

�
(�





��
��
�	

��
	�
��

�<
��

��
��

�!
�6

��	

��
��

��
��
�	
�


��
��
��
��

��
��
�	
�

�
&�
�&

�
&
��
��

�	
��
���

��
��
��

 �
	�

�
�
���

��
��
�

�	

��
��
��
�	
��
��

�	
��

��
�4�

	�
��
��


��
�5
��
�&

��
��
!�

�	
�

&�

��
��
��

��
��
��
��

��
�
��
��
	�

��
��
�
��
��

�
���
��

��

�
��
��
��
��

&
��

�

��

�

��

��
&�

�
��
�&

��
��
�&

��
��

��
��

�

&�

��
��

�
�
�	

��
��
�	

��
	�

�

��

��
��

��
��
��
��

��
�

&�

��
��
��
	

�

��
��

�	


�	


�

&
��
��

&�

&
��
3"
��

���
"�
�


��


,$�
�
&�
�&

��
��

��
���

��
��
�

��
��


�
�<
*+

��
��

���
��
	�

���
��
�


��
��

�
��
��
�	
��

&
��
��
��
&�
��

�

�	


!
�6

�


��
��
��
��
	�

��
��
��
��
�

&�
��

�
��
��
��

��

�
��
��
��
�

�	
��

�
��
�!
�

)*
:�
:�
+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�1
'3

�)
'�

'7
*+
A�
+
"(
*#
1
�

<�
��


&�
��
��
��

��
��
��

��

	�

�
�
�
�	

��
�

��
�	

�
��


��
��

��
��
��
��
�


�	
��

��

��

���
���

1�
���

��
��
��
��

��

��

��
�
��
 �
�
�
&

��
�&

��
��
��
	�

��
� 
	�

�
��
��

�

�	


��
���

&�
��
��
	�

�&
��

�
�


��
��

�

�	


�
��
�	

��
��


��

�!
�>

&�
��
�
&

��
���

��
���

���
��

��
�

��
	�

��
&�

���
	�

��
��
��
��

���
��
�$
��

��

���
��
��

�	
��
�	

�3�
��

0�	
,��
��


��
���
��
&�

��
�$
��	

��
��

�	
��
��
��

�

��
��

&
��
��

&�

&
��

��
��
��

	

��
��
��
��

���
��

���
��
��



�	


!
�

Page 34



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
#�
��
�#
��

�
:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

'�
��
�

��
	�

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

6�
	�
"�

��
��

	�

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
���
�

-B
8�

%�
��

��
�
&

��
	�

�!
��
���

��


��
��
��
&�

��
��
��

��
�
�	
�

��
	�

���
��
��
��

�
	�

��
��

���
�


�7
�
�

��
�

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

)�
��
�

�%
��

)�
��
�

��
%
&�
� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
?�

(�
��
�

�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�4J

��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

A
��

�

��
�:
�

0�
0�

;�
�

0� �

��
J
��
&�

)'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
���

)&
��
	�


��
	�

���
��
��
��

�
	�

��
��

���
���

��

��
��
��
&�

��
��


��

	�
�


��
��

&
�	

�;
�=

��
���

��
���
��
&�

��
��
��

&�
��

��

&
��
�

�	

��
��
��
��3
��
��

���
��

�,
��	

��
�

&�
-	

��
��
&�
�	

��
+
�

&�



�

��
��
�	

��


��
��

��
��
��
�
&

�	
��
��

��
��

�

� 

��

&
��
�.

��
�

��

���
��

��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��


�
��

	�
��

��
*

��

��
��
�	

��
��

��
*

��

��
�!
�

>
�
&

�	
�>

��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
$�

&�

�	
�


��
���

���
��


��
��
��
&�

��
��
��

��
�
�
&

��
	�


��
	�

���
��
��
��

�
	�

��
��
��
���
��
�


�7
�
�

�;
��
�&

��
��
��	

��
��

��
�
&�
�&

���
�
&

��
���

&

��
���

�

��
	�
��
�
�

��
��
!�

)&
��
��
��
&�

��
��
��
��
4�
5�<

���
)�
��

�"
��


��
��
4�
5�)

&�
�>

�	
�&

��


��

$�4
�5
�>

&�

�
��
	�

��
"�

� 
$�4
�5
�)
&�

�>
���
��

�$
�4�

5�*
&�

��
��
��
�	

��
4�
5�(

&�
��

��
�
��

&
�4

&�

��
���




��
��
��
�&

��
��
$��

�
&
��

�&
�

��
��

��

�
��
��
��
��
�	
��
��
��
&�

��
�&
��

��
��

�	
��
��

	

��

��
��

��
�

��
�5
!��

��
�$
��

�
&
�	
��
	�

��
��

&�

��
��
�&

��
��
�
&

��
��
��
��
�	

��
�8
��
��

��;
��
��

���
$�


��
	�
	�

��
��
��
��

	

��

��


��

��
��
���
�	
�

�

�

�

��

��

��
��
��
��
	�
���

�	

��
��
�	
�

��
	�

���
�

��
��

��
��

��
!�

)'
"#

�
�
'1

7
'7

�+
"(
*#
1
���

��
��
	�

��
��
��
�

��
	�

�&
��

��
��
��
��

��
��

�	
��
	�

��

�
 �

	�
�	
�;
��
�(
��
��
 �
�

��
�$
��	

��
��

�	
��

&
��
��



�	
��
��

��
���

	�
6	

�
��


�-
.�

��

��

��
?�

��
�$
�
&

��
��

��
�	




�	

��

���
�	
��

�&
��

�

��

�&
��
�

�	
��
�

��
	�


&
�	

�	
��
��	

 �
��

�
&
�)
��	

�
�
��
	�

��
�	

	�

�*

�&
��

�!�
)&

��
&�

��

�
��
&�

���
���

�	
	�


�*
�&

��
���
��
��
��

��
&�

��
��
��

&�

��
�&

��
�,�
�6	


�
��


�-
.�

��

��

��
?�

��
�!
��

��
	�

�
�&
��

�

��

�&
��
��

��
��
��

��
	

��

��	
�3

��

�
��
	�

��
 �
�5
��	

��
�




��
��
��

��
��
�	

��
�
�
&

��
�	
��

��
&�

���
��
��
��

��
	�

��
���

���
�

�


	�
��

��
!�

?�

&
�;
��
�(
��
��
 �
�

��
��
�	

��
3
��

�
��
	�

��
 �
�5
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
�	


��
��
��

��

��

&�

�6

��
��

�	
��
*�
&�

��
��
"�
��

��




�!
�)
&�
��


��

	�
�
&

�

�
&

��
�&
��

��
��

��

��

	�
��*

�&
��

��6


��
��

�

�	


�
��

��
��
���

��
��

�

/��
��

I�
�

��
��

��
�

!�)

&�
��
&�

��
�
�

�

��
�


��

�	

��
��

�
&
�
&

��
*�
&�

��
�6


��
��

�

�	


��
��

��
��
$�*

�&
��

��6


��
��

�

�	


�+
�	

��
��
��
	�

�-
	�

���
&�
�	

��


�

&�



�

��
��
��
��

�

�
���

��
��

��
�

��
�	

��


� 

��
I�
��

�

�	


�
��
	�
��
��

��
��
�
�

��
&�

���
	�

�	
��

�
��
�

�!
�6	

��
��

�
�
�	

$��
��
��
��

��
��

��
�

��

��
��
���
��

��
�
��

��
��
	�

��

�
 �

	�
��

�
&
��
��
&�

��
��


��
��

�

�	


�

��



�

�	
�*
��


�


��

���
��

��
�	

��
��
��
�

&�

���
	�

��
��

���
��
��

���
��
�&

��
��
��

��	
�K�

	�
��
��

�!
��
��
��
��

���
��
��

��
��
��
��
���

��
��


��
	�
3
��

�
��
	�

��
 �
�5
��	

�C
��

�

��

���
	�

��
���

�

&�

���
��

��
�
���
�

��
&�

��
��
��
�	
�+

��
�&

��
��

�!
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
��

���
��
�&

��
��
��

��	
�
&

��
>
�	
�&

��


��

�*
�&

��
���
	�
*�

�

�


��
���

��
��
�	

��
�
��
 �
��
��
	�

��
	�

��
�
&

�
&
��
��
&�

��
�
�

���
��
��
�

�	

��
��
�!
�

:�
�!
!�
��
��
	�

�"
��
��

��
$
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��

�

��
��

&�

�6

��
��

�	
��
*�
&�

��
��
"�
��

��




��
�	

��
*�
&�

��
�6


��
��

�

�	


��

�
��
��
��
��

��
 �
	�

��
�
&

�
&
��
J
��

�

��

�&
��
�
�

��
	�

��
��
��
��


�
��

�&
��
��
	�

��
�	

��
��

��
��

��

��
��
��
��
��

��
�	
��
*�

!��

(�
��
3
���
�$

��
��
��

��
 �
	�

��	
��
��

	
��
�&

��
��

�
&
�J
�


��

�
��

�C
��
��
��
$��

��
�&

��
��I
��

��
��

�
��
��
�	

��
�

�

�	

��
	�

��
�&

��
���

	�
��	

��
��

��
�
��
��
	�

��
��

&�

�&
��
&�

�

��



��
	�
	�

��	
�
&

��
��

�	

�
�!
��
��

��
>
���
��

��
��
��

�
�
��

��
��
��

�

��

�
�
��
��
�	

��
	�

.�
��


�
��
��
�!
�)
&�

��
�&

��
���
��
��
��

��
�	
��
��

��

��

	�
��*

�&
��

��6


��
��

�

�	


��
��

��
��
��
��

��
�

�
�

��
	�

��
��
��

��
�
�

��
�

��

��
��


�

!�

Page 35



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
:�
��
�#
��

��
��

��

	�
���
��

��
�

���

���
��
&�
��
�
&

��
��
��
&�

��
��
��
��
.

��
�
�

�
&
��
D�
��

��
�*
6�
��
��

��
�

$��
	�

��
��
	�

��
��
��
�


�	
��

�

�	

��
�


�	

��

��

&�

�&
��

�

��

�&
��
$��

&�
�&

��
�&

��
��
���

��
��
��
��
��
��

�

��
�
&

��
@�

��
��
��
��

���
��

���
��
��



�	


!
�-
��
��
���

�	

��
��
�

��
	�
��
���
� 
���

�

��
��
�	

��

&
��
��

��
��
�

��
	�
��
��
&�

���
	�

��
�	

��
��

��
��

�&

��
��
��
��
��
�!�

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��

;�
��
(�
��
� 
��


��
��
�
��
��	

��
��


�
��
�	
�L
�

��

��
��
��

��
�	

��
I�
��

��
�
�

��
��
��
��

��

��
�

��
��
��
&�

��
!�)

&�
��
�&

��
���
��
�	

�
�
��
 �

�
��
��
��

��
��
���

��
��	

��
��

�!
�

(�
��
3
�	
��
��


��

��
�&

��
���

��
��	

��
��


�
��
�	
�C
��

�

��

��
��

��
��
	�

�I�
��

��
�
�

��
��
��
��

��
��
�&

��
�!�
)&

��
��
&�

��
���
��
	�

�
��
 �

�
��
��
��

��
��
���

��
��	

��
��

�!
�

(�
��
3
���
�$

��
��
��
�3�

��
�,
��
�&

��
���

	�
��

��
�.

��
�

��

�
�

��
��
��

��
��

&
��
���

��
�
�

��
�

��	

��
��

�!
�

3
��

�
��
	�

��
 �
�5
���

��
��
��

��
	�
J
+
6�


�	
�
�

��	
��
��
��

��
	�
K�
	�

��
��
��

��
��
	�

��
��
�I�

��
��

�
�
��
��


� 

�	
��
��

��

��
�

��
��
��
��

��
��
!�)

&�
��
�&

��
���
��
�	

�
�
��
 �

�
��
��
��

��
��
���

��
��	

��
��

�!
�

:�
�!
!�
��
��
	�

�"
��
��

��
$
��

�
��

��
��
�	
��

��

�
��
�	
�K�

��
��
��

��
�	

��
I�
��

��
�
�

��
��
��

��

��
�

��
�!
�)
&�

��
��
��
�	

�
�
��
 �

�
��
��
��

��
��

&
��
���

��
�
�

��
�

��	

��
��

�$
��
�

��
	�
��
&�

��
��
�

��


��
	�

��
��

��
�;
��
�&

��

��

��#
��
��
�
���
��
��
�.

��
��

��
���
�


��
	�

�	
�

��
	�

���

�

��


��
��
4	
�

��
�	
�
&

��
��
��
��
��

�&
��
&�
��
��
��

	

��
��
��#

#!
=
��
��

&�

��
�&

��
�,�
��
��

��
5!�

)*
:�
:�
+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�+
"(
*#
1
:�
�

C
�	

�!
�

)&
��
��
��


��
	�
��
�
&

��
*�
&�

��
�6


��
��

�

�	


�+
�	

��
�


�	

�?

��
��
$��

&�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�	

��
+
�


��
��
��
�	

���
��
��

�
&
��
��
�	

��
�	

��
	�

��
��
��
��
�&

��
��
��

��

�

�	


��
���
��
 $
�
�

��

&
��
��

�
&
�

��
��

�$
�
�
��
��

��	

�
��
�	


��
	�
�

��

�
��

�&
��

��
��
��

�
��
��
���

���
��
��
�

��
��
�	

�
��
�	


��
	�

!�

�

Page 36



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
D�
��
�#
��

:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

��
�

��
�	
��
"�





��
��
�	

�	
��

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

K�
���

�>
��
�


�	
�

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
���
�

-B
��
#�

%�
��

��
��

&
��
��
��

��

��

	�
��
��
��

	�
��
��

��
��
�;

0�
7�
�
&�

��
��
�C
--

)�

�
�:
=
�

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
��
�

�(
7
�� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
&�
�

�(
7
�� ���
�

)�
��
�

��
%
?�

�(
7
�� ���
�

(�
��
�

�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

4J
��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

A
��

�

��
�:
�

:!
#=

�

4�
9�

��
�:
$�
�:

5�

9!
8=

�

4#
��

��
�:
$�
�:

5�

:!
:=

��

4�
��

��
�:
$8
�8

5�

:!
:=

��

4�
�D

��
�:
$;
;:

5�

:=
�

J
��
&�

)'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
��

)&
��
��	

��
��

�
��&

��
��
��

	�
���

��
��

��

��

	�
��

���
��

�
��

��	
�
&

��
��

��
��
��
�	

��

&
�

��
&�

��
��
��

��


�	

��
��
��

�
	�

��
��

��
��

��
��


��
���

�
�
�	
�

��
	�

���
&�

	�
��
�
�

�
&
��
�
��

��	
��

&�
�&

�
C
--

)�
���

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��

�
�$
��

&�
�&

�&
��
��


��
�

��

�	
��

�

��
��
��
�	

�
&
��
��
��
�	


�

��

	�
��
�>

��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
���
��

��
�!
�6	

��
��

�
�
�	

�
&
��
��
&�

��
��

�	
��
��
��
	�
���

�	

��

��
��


��
	�
�	
�

��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��
��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��	

��
�


�

��
	$
��
��

��
��
�	

��
��

��
�	

��
���

���
��

	�
��
��

��
��
��
	�

��
��

��
��
��

���
��

��
.�


�

��
��
#�

=
!�6
	�
��

��

��

	�

&
��
��

��
�	


��
��

	�


��
�

��
�


�

��
��
�


� 
�	
��
�
�
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��

	�
��
��

��
��

�
���
	�

��


��
��



�	


��
	�

��	
�
&

��
���

��
��


�>
��

�?

��
 �
&�
��
,�
��
��
��

	

��

��
�	
��
��

��
���
��


��
��
��


&�
	�

&
��
	�


��
	�

��
�	
��
��

��
��	

��
��

	�
��
	�



��
��

��
��
��

��
�!
�)
&�

�:
!:
��
�


�
�	
��
1�

�

��
�
�

��
8�
��
�
��
��
��

	�
��
��

��
��
	�


��
	�
�
��
 �
��
���

��
	�
	�

�
&
�	

�
&
��

�
��
�

!�

)'
"#

�
�
'1

7
'7

�+
"(
*#
1
��

)&
��
��

��
�	


��
�	


�
��

��
��
�6�

2
���

���
��

	�
��
��

��
��
��
��
��
��
	

��
��
��
	�

���
0

�	

��
��
��
�	

��

&
��
��
��
��
��

��
�	

��
��

��

�
	�

�
�
�

��
	�

��
��

&
�

�>

?(
���

	�
��

��
��
��
��
�	

���
�
�

��
�

��

�
�

�
&

��
��
�
&�

��
��
�C
--

)�
��
��

��

��
 �
��
�C
--

)!
�6	

��
��

�
�
�	

��
&�

	�
��
�
�

��

�
��


�
��
��
��

��
��


�
��
��

�

&�
��

��
��

��

���
��
	�

��
��

&
�

���

��
��
��

��
��
	�
��

��
��
��
��
��
�

��
��
��

�
�

��
��
��
��

&
��
	�

��
��
��
�
&

��
��
��
��

!�)
&�

��
�	
��

��

�
��
��
��	

 �
��
�	
�
�

��
��
��
��
��

	
��
�&

��
��
�

��
�
�

��
	�

��

&
��
��	

�
�
�

��
��
�
&

�

��
��

��
�

���



���
��
��	


�
��

��
 $
��
��

	�
��
��

��
�,
��

�


�
	�

�	
��

��

��

�&
��

�$�
��
��
��
��
��
��

��

	�
��
	�

��
��

��
��
�
&

��
��

��
��
��
�
�

��
��

	�
��
��

��
��

�
 �
	�

��
��
��
��
	�
	�

��
	�

�I�
��
��

��
�

�	

�
�
��
!�*

��
��

�

���
�


�
&
��
%�

��
�	
��

"�
�

��
��
�

��
	�
"�

�

	�

��
&�
��
&�

��
	�

�
��
��

	�
��

��
��

���
�


��
�




��
��
��

��
�	

�
��
��

!�

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��

)&
��
��
&�

��
��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
���

�	

��
��
�

��
	�
�	

��
��
��

��
��
	�
��
��
��
��


��
��

�
��
�

��

��
��

��
�

��
���


��
��
 �
��
��

��
��
	�

��	
��
��
��

��
�!
�

)*
:�
:�
+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�+
"(
*#
1
:�
�

J
��

��
��
�
&

��
��

��

��

��
�


��
�

��
���
��

��
��
�

��
	�
�
���
��
��
�


��
�

��

��
��

&
��
��
��
���

��
	�



��
��
�	

��

��

	�
�
&�
�&

��
���
��
��
��


�I
��

��
��

��

�
	�

��

�!
�

<�
���

��
��
�#

�
&
��

�
��
�

�&
��
��
��

	�
��
��
��

��
��
�	

��
��

���
��
�	

��
��
�


��
��

��
��
��
��
��#

�

& �K
�	

��
��
�4A

:5
�
�

��
��
��
��


��
��
�

��

��
��
	�

��
��
��
�

��
��
�

��
�!
�<
��


��
��

#�
�:

�
�	

�
��
��

$�)
&�

�%
��
��
	�

��
��

&�

�"
��

��

��
�

��
	�
�	
�
�
�

��
��
�
���
�


� 
��

&
��


��

��
��
$��

��
�
�
�

�	

��
$��
��

�	
��

	

!�

Page 37



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
;�
��
�#
��

:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

 �
�	
	�
	�
��
	�

�"
��

	

��
��
��
�

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

2
��
��
@�

��
�

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
���
�

"@
(�
��

<�
���
(�

�	
��
��

��
��

��

�@

��
��
�B
��

��
��



�	


�<
��


��

��
 ,
��
(�

��
�*

�
�

��

��
��

�+
��
�&

��
��

��

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
��

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
&�

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
?�

� ���
�

(�
��
�

�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�4J

��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

A
��

�

��
�:
�

L
	�

�
��
 �

*�
��

�	
��

��
��

�
&
��

"�
�	

	�
	�

�
6	
��

��

�
�!
�

0�
0�

��
��


��
��

+
��
�&

��
��

��
J
��
&�
��
)&

��
"�
�	

	�
	�

�"
��
��
��
)�

�

��
��
��
	�

��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��

&
��

(�
��
�*

�
�

��

��
�	


��
�
&

��
��
��

�&
���
���

�

���
��

!��
<�

�

&�

�

��
��

&
��


�
�


��
��
��
	�

��
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
�

&�

��@
B
<�
��

��


�	


�
��	

��
�

��
��

�	

��
��
��

&�

�


��
��
�
&

��
(�

��
�*

�
�

��

��
��
��
��

��
��

�!
�

)'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
���

)&
��
�.

�

�	
�

��
	�
�	

�
�
&

��
(�

��
�*

�
�

��

��
�
��
��
��

��
	�

��
��
��

&
��
"�
�	

	�
	�

�6	
��

��

�
��

��
��
��
�
�
&

��
(�

�	
��
��

�


��

�
���

�

���

��
��
��
��

��
��
���

��
��
&�
��
��

�	

��

�
�


&
��
*�

�*
-�

��
��
 �
��
���

�
�	
��
��
J
��
&�
(�

��

�K
��

�

�	


��
	�
+
��
�&

��
��

�!
��)

&�
��
.�


�	
�

��
	�
��
��
	�


��
��
�


��
�	


��
�<
��

��
��
��
��

��
��

&�
�&

�

��

	

��

��

��
�	
�

�

��
��
��
��
�
�

�

��


�

&�

�
�
��
�

��
���

��
�

�	
��

&
��
(�

��
�*

�
�

��

��
��

�+
��
�&

��
��

�!
��

<�
�

&�

��&
��

��	
��
��
��
�	
��

��
�&

��
��
��

���
���

D

& �+

��
�
�

���
�

�#
��
��

��
�
�
&

�
&
��
��

��
��
���

�
��
���

.

��
��
��

��
��

�	
��
��

��
��
�	
�
&

��
��
���

�
�	
��
�
��

 !
�

)'
"#

�
�
'1

7
'7

�+
"(
*#
1
��

)&
��
(�

�	
��
��	

��
��
�
�

���
�

���

�
&
��
��
��

�&
��
	�

�&
��
��
	�

��

�
 �

	�
��
��
�

&�

���
�	

��
�
�


��
	�
�	

�
&
��
��
��
��
��
*�

�*
-�

!�)
&�

���
��

�
�
��
��

&�

��
�	

��
�
�


��
	�
�
��
��

��
��

�

��

�
�
�<
��
��(

��
	�

���
�	
�K�

	�
<�

��
��

��
!��

��

&
��
��

��
��
�
��
��
��

�	
��

&
��
��

	

��
���

��

&�

�(
��

	�
���
�
�
��
��





�	

��
��

&
�

��	

���

�
��
�
�

��
�

��
�&
��

��
��
��
��

��
��
�

��

��

	�
�
&

�

��
��
��

�
&
�	
�
&

��
(�

�	
��
�,�
��
�	


�
��
!�

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��

)&
��
��

��
��
�	
�
&

��
��

��

��

	�
��
�
&

��
(�

��
�*

�
�

��

��
&�

��
��
 	

��
 �
�	

��
��
��


��
	�

&
��
��
��

��

��

	�
��
��

&
��
�@
B
<�
��

��


�	


�
!�

)*
:�
:�
+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�+
"(
*#
1
:�
�

)&
��
(�

��
�*

�
�

��

��


��
&

��

��
���

��
��
�	

��
�	

��
�	

�!
�

Page 38



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
9�
��
�#
��

:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

 �
�	
	�
	�
��
	�

�"
��

	

��
��
��
�

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

2
��
��
@�

��
�

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
���
�

"@
(�
#�

��
&�
��

��
�	

��
��

��
��

��
��D

��
��

��

�
���

��
�

��
��
��
��
		

�	
��
��

��
��
�

��
	�
��

�A
:�
4�
��
��

��
	�
1�

��

�
���

��
��
��
�


�	
��

5�

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
��

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
&�
�

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
?�

� ���
�

��
��
��
	�

�
(�
��
�

�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

4J
��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

A
��

�

��
�:
�

��
!�
��
��

��
7!
8�
��

��
�

9!
��
��

��
�

;!
��
��

��
�

��
!�
��
��

��
D�
��

��
�

J
��
&�

� )'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
��

)&
��

�
�


�&
��

��
��
��
�	


��
��


��
	�
K�
	�

��
��
��
<�

��
��

��
!��

� )'
"#

�
�
'1

7
'7

�+
"(
*#
1
��

M�
��
	

��
��


�	
��

���
��
��

�
��

�
��
	�

�	
��

��
��


�&
��
��

���
��
��

�	
��

�
��
	�

�!
�6

���
��
���
��
��

�

��
��
��
�
���

���
	�
��
��
��

	�
��

��
	

��
��


�
��
��
	�

��
�I
��




�	


��
	�

&
��

�
��
�

�

��
���

��




�	

��
�!
�

� *�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��

)&
��
��

&�
��


��
���

��
���
�

��
	�
���
�	
��

���

�
�	
�	
��

�
�
�

��
�

���

��
�!�

� )*
:�
:�
+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�+
"(
*#
1
:�
�

@�


�
�

��
���

 �
��
��	

��
��

��
��
��

��
��
�!
�

�

Page 39



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
8�
��
�#
��

:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

 �
�	
	�
	�
��
	�

�"
��

	

��
��
��
�

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

2
��
��
@�

��
�

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
���
�

"@
(�
:�

"�
�	

	�
	�

��
��

���
�

��
	�

��
�

��


�	
��

��
�
&

�	
�
&

��
��

��
�	


�	


��
��
��

��	
��
!�

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
��

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
&�

� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
?�

� ���
� �

��
��
��
	�

�
%
?�
��




��
	�
!�
��

��
��
��
��
>�
��
�	
��
�

��
��
��
�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

4J
��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

+
�I
��
��

��
�
�


�
��
��
���
�
�

��
�
�


�
��
��
���
��

�

��
�
�


�
��
��
���
��

�

��
�
�


�
��
��
���
��

�

�B
,
�

)�
��
�

��;

�=
��

��
��

�


�
��
��
���
��

�

J
��
&�

+
�	
��
��

��
�


�
��
��
���
�
�

��
�


�
��
��
���
�
�

��
�
�


�
��
��
��	
��

�

��
�
�


�
��
��
���
��

�

�/
,
�

)�
��
�

��;

D=
��

��
�
�


�
��
��
���
��

�

J
��
&�

L

&
��
��

��
�


�
��
��
���
��

�

��
�


�
��
��
���
��

�

 �
�
�


�
��
��
���
��

�

��
�
�


�
��
��
���
��

�

�?
,
�

)�
��
�

��9

D=
�

�!
�
�


�
��
��
���
��

�

J
��
&�

)'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
��

��
���

��
��
��
	�
�


��
��
�	

��
��

���
�

��
	�

��
��



�


��

��
�	
��

��
�

�K�

	�
��
��
��
��
�.

��
��

�	
��

&
��
��

��
��


�	

��
�
�

��
�

��
��
���

��
��
��
	�

�

��

��
�	
�8
��

��
 �
�
&

�

��

��
��

��
��

��
��
���

��
A
:�
�	
��
��

��
��

�4;
D=

���
��+

�	
��
�/
�9
D=

��
��L


&
��
�/
��
	�

�;
�=

��
��+

�I
��
��
�
�
&

�	
��
#�
�
��

 �
5!�
)&

��
��
��
�$
�&
��

��
��
$��
�


��
��

��
��
�

��
	�

��
��



�


��

��
��
��
��
��

�K
�	

��
��
�


&
�

$��

��
��
��

��

�
��
�	

��
��
��

�

��

���
�

�1
��

�

��
$�&

��
��
��
��
�
�

��
�	
�
&

��
��

�
��
���

��
�

��

��
��
��
�


�	
��

��
��
	�

���
��
�
&

�	
�
&

��

�
��
�

�!
�J
��

��
��
$��

��
��
��

��
��

��
�

��
��

��
��

$�

&�

��
�	

��
�

��

��
��
 �

�
��
��
��
�
&

��
��

� 
��
��
��

�
&
��
�	

��
��
�A
:�
&�

��
��
��

	�

&
��
�	

�
	�

��
���

�	
��


��
	�

&
�

��
���

�
��
	�

.

��
��

�N�
�4�

��
��
�#

5��
��
��
�


�	
��

�
�
�

��
&�
��

��
��
��

&�

�
�
��
�

��
�	
�
&

��
�
��

�
&
�

���
��
���

��
��
��

�	
��
��
&�
��

��
���

���
��

���
�

��
	�

��
��
	�

��
��



�


��

��
�	
��

�K�
	�

��
��
��

!
�

��
���

��
�

��

��	
�A
#$
�
&

��
��
��

��
��
�
�

��
�

��
��
��


&�
��
��

��&
��

��
	�


��
��

	�


�

��
��

��
��
��
���

��
��
���

���
��

��
��
��
��

	

�!
�)
&�

��
��

��
��
	�
�	
�
�
��
��
���
��
��

�
��
��

��
	

�	
��
��

�
�
��
��


�


��

��
��
��

�
��
�
�

��

�
�

�&
��
��
	�

��
�
&

�
&
��
��

� 
��
��
�	

�$
��
�

��
��
��

��
	

�	
��

&
��
�$
��
	�

���
�

��
��
��
��


� 

�	
��
�	

��
��

	

���

�

��
	�
�	

��
��
��
�

&�

���
��

��
	



�	


��
��
��

��
�

&�
��

�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��


!
�

6	
���

��
��


��
���


&
��
��
�

��

���
&


�	

��

��
�	

��
��
��
��
	�

���
���

�$
�
&

��
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
��
��	


�
�	
��
��
��

��
	



�	


�
��

&�
�&

��
��
�

��

���
�

&�

���
��
�	

��
��
��
��
��

&�
��
��	

�
&
��

*�
��
��
�!
�

6	
���

��
�	

��
�
�

��
�	

��
�	
��
.�

��
��
��

��
��


�


��
��
$�

&�

�
�


�	
��
��
�
&

��
�

��

��

��

&�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��

���
��


�

��

��
�
�

�3�
��
�0�
	,
��
��

���
�

��
	�
�
�

�(
�




�


��

$��
��
�

��

�
��
��

�
��
��
	�

��
��
�
�
&

�
&
��
��
��
��

��

	�
��
�
&

��
��
��
�
�

��
	�
��
���

��
���


&
��
�
&

�	
���
�


�
&
��
��


�
�
&

�

�
&

��
��

��
��
�

��
	�
���
�

��
��

���
��
��

��
	�

&
��
3�

��
 �
��
���

,
!�)

&�
��
&�

��


��

	

�
&

�

�
&

��
��

���
��

��

�

��
��

��
&�
�&

��
��

��
��
	�

��
��

��
��
��


��

��
�	

��
���

��
��

�

��

��
��

��
�$
��

��
��
.

�	

��
�!
��
�

��
	�

�
 �

	�

�
��
��

��
��
��
��
 �
��

��
�	
�%
��

��

�
�

��
	�

Page 40



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

��
7�
��
�#
��

&�
��

��
���

�
��

��
��

�
���

�	
�

�

��

&
��
	�

�

��
��
��
�

��
��
��

�
&
���

��
��
�
�

�3�
��

 �
��
���

�
,��

	�
�
&

��
�	
��
��
	�

��
��
��

��
��

&
��
��

��

��

	�
���

��
��

�
�
�
&

��
��

��
��
�	

�

� 

�	
��
��

���
��


&
�

�&
��

��
��

�

��
	�

��
��
��
��
�	

��
�
�
&

��

�&

��
�	
��
�	

��
�


��
�

��
	�

&
��
��
��0
�	
�
�


��

&
�

���
��
��

���
��
��

�
�


�

��

��
!�

)&
��
��

��
��
�


�	

��
	�

��

�
��
��
1�

��

�
��

&
�

�	
��

�

��

��

	�
�	

��
�


�	
�


�	

�
��
��
��
���

�
��

��
��

���
���

	�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�


��

&
�	

���
��
���

�
��

��
&�

	�
�

���


�8
��
	�

��
#�
�
��

 �
��

��
��	

��
��
��
��


��
��
�!
�)
&�
��
&�

��
��

�	
���

��
��

�

��

��	
�
&

��
�	

�
��
�

��
��&

��
��
	�

��
��

	�


��
���

��
��

��
��
	�

��
��

��	
��
�
�
&

���
	�

���
		

�	
��
��

��
��
�

��
	�

��
�
&

��

�

&�

�	
��

��

�
���

��
�

�
�

�
&
��
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
!�?

�

&�
��
�
&

��
��
�&

�	
��

��
��


��
��

��

��

�

��
�
&

��
��
��

��
��
�
�

��
�

��
&�

��
��

�	
��
�

!�

)&
��
��
��

��
��
��	

��
��
��
�


�	
��

��	
��

��
��
��
��
��

��
�	
��

&
��
��
��
��
	�



��

���
���

��
���
�

��
	�
��

&�
�&

�&
��

��
��

	�
&�

��
��
��
�	
�
&

��
��

� 
��
�!
�J
��

�	
��
��

��
��
��

�
&
��
��
��
�	
��
�

��
��
��
��

��
��

�

��
��


��
��
��
��
�
�

�

��


��
�&
��
&�
��

��
�	


�
��

��
���

��
��
��
	�

�
��
�

��
�
�
&

�	
�
&

��
��

��

��
��
�!
��



�	


��
	�
&�

��
��

�	
��
��
�	

�
�
��
��
��
�	
��
��
�


�	
��
��

��
��
�

��
	�

�

&
��
��

&�

&
��
��
�

�


��
��
��

��
��
��
��
	�

�
&
��
�&
��
��


��
�

��

��
	�
��

��
�	


�
��

��
��
��
�


�	
��

��

�

��


��
�!
�

)'
"#

�
�
'1

7
'7

�+
"(
*#
1
��

��
��

�	

�
��

�


��

��
��
���

��
��
��

�
�
��
��

���
�
&

��
��
 �
��

�
&
�

���

��
�
�

��
��
�


��

�
��
�
�

�	
��

��
��
��B

��
��
��



�	


�(
�	


�
��
��
��
��
��
���

��
��
�	

��
�	
�
&

��
%�

��
�

��

��

	�
)�

�

!�6
��

��


���

���
���

�

�

�	

��
��
��
��
��
�	
���


�
��
��

���
���

��




�	

��
��

&
�

���

��
��

��
�
�

��
�

��
��
��
	�


��
�

��

��

��
&�
�	

��


��

��

��
���

��
�$�
��

��

��

	�
��

�


��
��
��
���

��
��
��

���
�

��
��

�&

��
	�
��

���
��
�
�

��
���

�
���

���
	�
��
��
��

	�
��
��
��
���
��
��

��
��
�	

��

�
��
��

��
��	


�
�	
��
���

��
��




�	

�4
��

��
��
�

�	
��
��

��

��

	�
���
	

��
	�

���
��
�	

��
��
5!�

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��

��
��
��

��

	�
�	

��
%�

��
�

��

��

	�
��

� 
��
��
��
�


�	
�

��

!�(
��
��
��
���

��
��
��
 �
��

��
&�

��
��
��

��
��
�	

��
&�
�&

���
��

���
��
��
�


�	
��

���
���

0�
�

��

���
&�

��
�	
���

��
��


��
���

��
���
�

��
	�

�
��
��

��
��

��
�	
��

��
�

�K�

	�
��
��
��

��
!��

���
��

��
��
�

��
	�

��	
�
&

��
��

� 
��
��
&�

��
��
��

	�
��

��
��

��
��

�
&
��
�	

��
��
�A
:$
��

&
��
�
&

�	
�
&

��
��
�
&�

��
��

���
��
��
��

	

�
�

��
��

�

��


��
��


�

��

�
�
&

��
��

��
��
�

��
	�
�	
��
��
��
�
�

��
�&

��
��

�
&
��
��


�

�


��
�

��



�!
�)
&�

��
��
��
�	
��
��
	�

��
��
	�

��
��
 �
��

��
��
��

��
��
�

��
	�

��
�

�

�	

��
	�

��
�


��
��
��

��

�
���

��
��
��
	�

�
��
��

��
!�

)*
:�
:�
+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�+
"(
*#
1
:�
�

@�


�
�

��
���

 �
��
��	

��
��

��
��
��

��
��
��
���
��
��

�

��
	�

��	
�	
��

�

��

��

	�
��


��
	�
���

��
�
�
�	
��
	�
�	
��
��

��
��	

���
��
��
��
!

Page 41



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

�#
��
��
�#
��

:�
��
��
��
�
	�

�

"�
�

�


��
�:
��
��
��
��

 *
�#
$
	�
��
�

*�
�	

��
	�

��
��

	�

*	
��
��

�
��

7
��
��
��

�
�	

��
!�*
	�

��
�

��
���
�

(�
*�
��

(�
�

�


��
�*
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
	�

�
��
��

���
�
&

�	
�#
��
��
��

	�
��

 �
��
��

��
)�

��
�

�%
��

� ���
    

)�
��
�

�%
��
�

�(
7
� � ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
&�

�(
7
�� ���
�

)�
��
�

�%
?�

�(
7
�� ���
�

(�
��
�

�

:�
��
��
��
*


��
�

�

4J
��
&�

+
��

��


�@
��

5�

A
��

�

��
�:
�

9:
=
��

4�
7$
�#

��
��
#7

$�
:#

5�

99
=
�

4;
�$
7�

��
��
97

$D
:�

5�

9;
=
�

47
�$
�;

;�
��
��

�$
:7

:5
�

9;
=
�

4�
�9

$:
�9

��
�;

9$
�8

D5
�

8�
=
�

J
��
&�

)'
+
:#

1
�;
#
)�
)'
7
���

�	
��	

��
��

��
��	

��
��
��
�&
�	

��
��

��
	�

��
���

��
�

��
	�
�	
��
�

��

���
&


�	

��

��
��

�
��
�	
�
&

��
�
�

��
�

�	
�

��
��
	�

�

�

!��
6	
�
&

��
��

�

���

��
�1
��

�

��
��

&
��
��
��
��
��
&�

��
��

��
��
��

���
��
��
��
��
�	

��
��
��

��
�&

��
��



��

��
��	


�
��

��
��

�

��
���

��
	�

���
��

��
��
�
�

��
�

��

���
&


�	

!
��

�

&�

��
�


��

�


��

&
��
��
&�

��
��

�	
���

�

&�

���
��
��
��
��
��

��

�
��
	�
�	
��
��

��
��	

��
�


�	
��
��
��

��
��
��
��
��



��

��
��
��
��


�
�


�

�&

�	
��

�.
��
��
��
��
�

�
��

	�
J
��

��
	�

�?
�	

��
�
�
�	

��
>
��
 �
	�

�<
�


���
��
�)
�.

�(
��
��

$
��

&�
�&

��
��

��
	�

��
��
��
��
	�
���

�	

�	

�

��

��
��
��
�	

��
�
�
��
��


�!
�6	

��
��

�
�
�	

�
&
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
	�
���

�	

��
	�

��
��
��
�	
��
��
��

��
��


��
��
��
��
��

	�
�1

��
	�

��
��
�1
��

���
��
��

��

�(

��
	�

���
)�

.�
B
��
��


�B
��

�
�
��
	�

��
��

�

�
&

��
	�

�
��

��

�
��
��
��
�

��
	�
��
��
	�

�

�	


�
!�J

��
��
	�

�?
�	

��
�
�
��
��


��
�	

��
��

�

���

��
��

��
�

��
��
	�

�

�	


�
���

���
��
��
�	


�
��	

��
��
��

��
��

�
&
�(
��

	�
���
)�

.$
��
	�

���
��

	

�J
��
&�
>
�	
��
>
��


&
��
��
�	

��

��

	�
�&
��

��
��
��

��
��

��
�
�

��
��
���
��
�


��
��
	�

��
��
��

	

��

�
&
��
��
��
��
��
��
&�
��

�	
��

&
��
�


�
��
�

!��
>
&�
�

�


�	
��
��
�
&

��
��

��
��
&�

��
��
��

	�
�	

�	

��

��
�

��

�
&
��

��
��
��

	�

�

�

��
��
��
��

���
���

�	
��
�

�	


��
	�

��
��

���
��
���
��

��
�


�	
��
��
��
��

��
��

��
�
&

��
��
��

��
��
&�

��
��
��

	�
��
��
�	

��
��
�

��
��

�	
��

��

�
���

�

��

�
&
��
���

��
�

��
	�
�	
��
�

��

���
&


�	

��

��;
�

��

&
��
�
�

��
�

�
�

�

��

�
&
��
��
��
���

	�
��
��
�
&

��
��
��
��
��

)'
"#

�
�
'1

7
'7

�+
"(
*#
1
��

)�
��
�

��
��

��
��
��
��
&�
��

��
��
�&
��

��
��
�
&

��
��
��

��
��
	�
��
��

��
�&

��
��

��
��

�3�
��

&�
	�

,��
	1

��
���

��

�
�
&

��
3�
��
 �
��
���

�,
!�)

&�
��
�
��

��
�	
��

�

��
��
��
�


��
�

��
	�

&
��
��
��

��

�
��
��

&�

��
��
��
��
��

��
�	

��
��

��
�	


�
��
��

�
�
&

��
��
�	
��
��
��
�
&

�

��
��
�

��

�(
��


�


��
�*
��
��
��

��
���
!�
!�8

�=
��
���

	1
��
��
��
��

�	
��
��

��

��

�
&
��

�

&�

���
��

��

��
	

��
���

�	

�
�

!�6

��

��
��
��
��
��

	�
�1

��
	�

��
��
��


�
��
���
�&


�

��

�&
�

��
��
��
��
�
&�
�&

��
��

��
��
	�

��
�

��

��
���

��
�
�

�
&
��
��

��
��
�&
�	

��
�	
��
��
��	

��
�


�

��
	�
�	

��
�	
��
��

��
��

��
 �
��

��
�	
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
!�

L
��

��

��

	�
���

�
&
��
��
��
��
��

�&
��
��
��

	�
�
��
 �
	�

��
�

��
��
��

�
��
��
��

�	
�
&

��
 	

��
��
��

��
�	

��
� 
���
��
��
��

��
��

��
��

��
��
�
&

��
���
��
��
��
��
	�

��
�


��
��
���

.�
��
��
��
��

��
��

�
&
�

��
�	

��
��


��

���
��
��

�
�


&
��

��
&�
�&

��
�


�	
��
��
��

�!
�)
&�
��
��

���

�
�&
��
�&
��

��
��
��
��

	�
��


�	
��
&�

��
��
���

��
��
��

�
�
��
��

��
��
�

��

��
��

	

�	
��

�
�
��
��

��
��

�
&
��
� 
���
��
��
��
��

��
��
��

�
�


��
	

��
	�
���

.�
��
��

�!
�

>
�
&

��
���

��
�

��
	�
�	
���

��
��
��

��
	�

��	
��
��

��
	�

��
�


�	
��

&
��
�
�

��
�

��

���
��
�	


�	
��

�
�
��
��
�&

��
��
	�

�!
�)
&�

�1
��

��

��
��
��
��
���

��
�	

��
��

���
���



��
	�
��
��
��
��


��
��
��
�	

��
�
�
&

�
&
��
��
��

��
��
��

�	
�
�
�	

�
&
�

���

��
�	

��
��

	�
��
���
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
��
��


�
�


�!
�2
��
�	

�
&
�

��
�

��
�

��
��

��
��

��
�
��

��
���

� 
�
�

��
��

��
�
�
&

��
�
�

��
�

��	

��
��

��
�#

��
�
&

��
��
��
�
�
�

��
��


�
��
	�

��
���

�	
��

��
��

��
	�

��
��
�


��
��

��
��
��
��

	�
���

��
�	

��
��

	�
��
��
	�

�1
��

��

��
��
��
��
��
��

!��
)&

��
��
��
��
��
&�

��
�	
�

��
�

��

��
�	
�


��
��
��
��	

�
�
�

��
��
��	

��
��
��
�
�

��

��
��

��
��
��

��

�
��
��
��
��
��

��

�
��
��

��
��
��
	�

�
�
�
&

��
�


��
��

��
��
�!
��

B
��
��

�
�
&

��
��
��
��
�


�	
��

��
�&

��
��



�	


��
	�

&
��
��
��
��
&�

��
��

��
		

��
���

��
��
��

	�

�
��
��
��
��
��
��

��

��
��

��
��
	�

!�@
��

 �
	�

��
&�

��
�
&

��
��
��

��
��

���
	�

��
��

��
�
���
��	

��
���
��
��

��
���

�
��
�	


�	
��

�
�
�

��


�	
��
&!
�

*�
 +

"(
�#
;�
+
"(
*#
1
��6
���

��
�

��

�
&
��
��
�

��
	�
�
��

��
��
��
�	

��
�
&

��
��
1�

���


�	


��
��
��
���

��
�	

��
��

��
	�

��
��
��


��
��
��
��
��
�!
�

)*
:�
:�
+
::
#
"*
+
('
7
�3

*(
.
�+
"(
*#
1
:�
�C
��
���

 �
�&
��

��
��

�	
���

�	

��
��
��
�
�
&

�
&
��
��
�

��
	�

Page 42



��
��
��
��

�	

�
��
��


��

��
��
��
�	

��
��


��
�
�
��
��
��

��
��

���
��

�

��
�	

��
��
��
��
��
��
��

��
��
	�

�

��
��
��
��
��
��
�


��
��

�
��
 �
!�
��

!�
 �
��

��
��


�	

��
�

"�
��

�#
��
��
�#
��

E
n

d
 o

f 
re

p
o

rt
 

Page 43



Page 44

This page is intentionally left blank



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Title of Report: 
Scrutiny review into the process in place 
for the repair of pot holes 

Report to be 
considered by: 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 

Date of Meeting: 31 July 2012 
 

Purpose of Report: 
 

To outline the results of the investigation into the 
processes in place for the repair of pot holes. 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

That the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Commission endorses the recommendations of the 
Task Group prior to their consideration by the 
Executive. 
 

 

 
Task Group Chairman 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Brian Bedwell – Tel (0118) 942 0196 
E-mail Address: bbedwell@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: David Lowe 
Job Title: Scrutiny and Partnerships Manager 
Tel. No.: 01635 519817 
E-mail Address: dlowe@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 9.

Page 45



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Executive Report 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 Following receipt of a Motion to Council by Councillor Keith Woodhams on 22 
September 2011 on the Council’s approach to dealing with potholes, the Overview 
and Scrutiny Management Commission (OSMC) agreed at its meeting of 22 
November 2011 to conduct a review of the subject. 

 
1.2 This report provides the findings and recommendations arising from the review and 

provides detail on its Terms of Reference and methodology. 
 
1.3 For the purpose of brevity, the term ‘potholes’ used throughout this report includes 

reference to sunken drain covers.  

2. Terms of Reference 

2.1 The Terms of Reference for the task group were to review the Council’s approach 
to filling potholes and attending sunken drain covers and in particular: 

• The systems and processes currently in place; 
• Alternative operational models and practices in use elsewhere; 
• The most effective method of obtaining value for money; and 
• Report to the OSMC thence the Executive with recommendations as 

appropriate. 

3. Methodology 

3.1 The review has been conducted by a small, cross-party task group, working with 
Council officers. The members of the working group were Councillors Brian 
Bedwell, Keith Woodhams and Emma Webster.  Councillor Bedwell was elected as 
the Chairman. 

3.2 The task group held the meetings outlined in the table below. 

Meeting date Meeting focus 
Thursday 29 
March 2012 

• Election of the Chairman 
• Agreement of the Terms of Reference 
• Presentation of Councillor Woodham’s pre-

review research 
• Briefing on the operational practice in West 

Berkshire (Melvyn May, Highway Manager) 
• Briefing on the trends for insurance claims (Ian 

Priestley, Chief Internal Auditor) 
Tuesday 22 May 
2012 

• Follow up on the matters arising from the first 
meeting 

• Consideration of the findings from the national 
review of pot hole repair 

• Draft formulation of recommendations 
 

Page 46



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

3.3 The minutes from these meetings are shown at Appendices A and B respectively. 

4. The national report – Prevention and a Better Cure 

4.1 During the course of the review, a national report (Prevention and a Better Cure) 
was issued by the Department for Transport. The task group considered the 
findings and recommendations of this report and they were incorporated into its 
own work. 

4.2 The recommendations arising from the Department for Transport’s review are 
structured around three key messages: 

(a) Prevention is better than cure – intervening at the right time will reduce the 
amount of potholes forming and prevent bigger problems later 

(b) Right first time – do it once and get it right, rather than face continuous bills. 
Guidance, knowledge and workmanship are the enablers to this 

(c) Clarity for the public – local highway authorities need to communicate to the 
public what is being done and how it is being done. 

5. Acknowledgements and thanks 

5.1 The Chairman and Members of the task group would like to acknowledge and thank 
all those who supported and gave evidence to the review, including Councillor Keith 
Woodhams for his preparatory work. 

6. Findings 

6.1 The findings of the task group are outlined below. 

Background 

(1) West Berkshire Council’s highway network comprises: 

• 1,270 km or approximately 6 million m2 of road (610km of 
classified A, B and C roads, and 660km of unclassified roads) 

• 850 km or approximately 1.3 million m2 of footway 
• 29,000 road gullies 
• 2,800 kerb weirs. 

(2) The Council has in place a Term Contract for Highways and 
Bridgeworks based on the New Engineering Contract 3 (NEC3) Term 
Maintenance form of contract to deliver the following highway services: 

• Response to emergencies 
• Routine highway and footway maintenance 
• Major highway and footway improvements 
• Cyclic maintenance (gully cleansing etc) 
• Drainage maintenance 
• Winter service 
• Bridge maintenance. 

Page 47



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

(3) The Council’s Term Maintenance contractor is Volker Highways Ltd 
which is a major player within the UK’s construction industry. The 
majority of maintenance schemes are managed through this contract. 

Reporting potholes 

(4) In order to identify the location of potholes, the Council employs routine 
highways inspections, reports from the public, elected members and 
officers. Non-inspection reports from members of the public play an 
important part in allowing the authority to understand where potholes 
are located outside of surveyed areas. All known pothole locations are 
recorded on to an electronic mapping system. 

(5) Although the authority does not actively promote the methods by which 
the public can report potholes, they are able to do so directly to the 
Council by telephone (through Customer Services), via the website, e-
mail and by letter. Defects can also be reported through the websites 
Fix My Street, Fill That Hole and Directgov. There may however be 
scope for improved communication with the general public and specific 
groups. 

Dealing with potholes 

(6) There are four broad approaches that can be taken to the fixing of 
potholes. These are: 

• Resurfacing to full width sections of road greater than 100m in 
length, carried out as part of the Three Year Highway 
Improvement Programme 

• Machine patching, used to deal with targeted larger scale patches 
within the road where a machine planes away the defective 
section and a new surface is re-laid 

• Hand patching, undertaken by the Council’s contractor squaring 
the hole, or pothole plug, cleaning, filling and compacting the 
material 

• Plugging the hole, used when an instant fix is required for safety 
purposes to enable the Council to meet its duties under the 
Highways Act 1980. 

(7) The occurrence of potholes increases during periods of bad weather. 

(8) Following the 2009 and 2010 severe winter weather events the Council 
introduced a dedicated pothole repair team to carry out permanent 
repairs to potholes through a prioritised programme. This change of 
approach has led to the number of potholes being reported to the 
Council falling year on year. In 2011/12 the number was 794, a fall 
from 1426 the previous year and 1842 for 2009/10. The practice of 
other highway authorities around the country is coming broadly into line 
with that in West Berkshire. 

(9) Based on the current evidence, providing a dedicated ‘find and fix’ 
team would be difficult to justify in the current economic climate in cost 
/benefit terms, however, with additional funding, there could be scope 

Page 48



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

for the introduction of one to supplement the proactive and reactive 
programmes currently in use. The introduction of any such team could 
however never ensure that the Council would always be aware of the 
existence of every pothole on every road. Any expectation to the 
contrary is unrealistic. It should also be borne in mind that the Council 
cannot repair potholes the existence of which it is unaware. 

(10) Guidelines issued by the Department for Transport stipulate the factors 
that must be taken into account when determining whether action must 
be taken on a pothole and the time within which it should occur. They 
include: 

• the size and depth of the pothole  
• traffic type, speed and volume  
• road alignment  
• visibility  
• the position in relation to road width. 

 
(11) If the circumstances of the pothole are assessed by highways 

inspectors as requiring immediate action then it will be made safe, by 
plugging, within either 2 or 24 hours. Lower risk potholes are 
programmed for repair as part of the planned schedule.  

(12) As the Council retains, through its contractor, control of all of the 
resources required for repair (plant, labour, material and traffic 
management), it is able to push down operating costs. The cost of 
addressing potholes in West Berkshire is around £40/m2 which 
compares extremely favourably with the national average of around 
£75/m2. This is achieved in large part by non-reliance on expensive, 
branded/proprietary materials. 

(13) It is assessed by Highways officers that only around 5% of pothole 
repairs fail and the term contract with Volker incorporates 
arrangements for the making good of sub-standard work identified 
within three months of completion. The figure highlighted at (11) above 
indicates that even if the cost for rework is included within the price of 
the contract, the Council is still achieving good value for money.  

(14) All Council officers and contractors have received appropriate training 
in the use of the materials and techniques used for repair that are 
recommended by national guidance. 

Page 49



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

(15) As the number of pothole reports has decreased, through the 
combination of less severe winter weather and improved maintenance 
practices, so has the amount of materials needed by the Council to 
plug them.  

Tonnes of repair material used. 2008/09 
t 

2009/10 
t 

2010/11 
t 

2011/12 
t 

Canadar 526 628 740 325 
3mm Bitumen Macadam 99 158 197 68 
Viafix - - 2.5 0.8 
Instarmac - - 25 25 
Totals 625 786 965 419 

 
(16) To some extent this reduction has however been offset by the 

introduction in June 2011 of the dedicated hand patching team, which 
for the part of 2011/12 during which it operated applied some 452 
tonnes at a cost of £35/m2. This structured, ‘right first time’, 
programmed approach to pothole maintenance has further reduced 
operating costs. 

(17) The Council is already complying in large part with the 
recommendations made by the Department for Transport in its report 
Prevention and a Better Cure. Further detail is shown as part of 
Appendix B. 

(18) Customer satisfaction with the Council’s performance in the prevention 
and treatment of potholes is not monitored. This gives rise to the risk of 
anecdotal evidence being given undue credence. 

Insurance claims 

(19) The number of insurance claims made to the Council for damage 
caused by potholes to vehicles is falling, after rising to a peak of 237 
during 2009/10. Despite any perception to the contrary, the 
expenditure by the authority on the settlement of all highways claims is 
very modest and has reduced drastically – with a continuing downward 
trend – from a peak in excess of £20,000 in 2007/08 to only £260 in 
2010/11 (the last full year for which figures are available). The 2007/08 
figure included settlements for two personal injury claims that were 
unrelated to potholes. The average payout is around £250 per claim. 

(20) Comparison by the Chartered Institute for Public Finance and 
Accountancy (CIPFA) of West Berkshire Council data for public liability 
claims for highways – an element of which will encompass those 
relating to potholes – shows that the Council’s performance is well 
above the average for highways authorities. 

(21) The Council is only liable for payment for damage arising from potholes 
if it does not have a robust maintenance programme in place or if it has 
been made aware of a pothole and not taken the required action within 
an appropriate timescale. 

Page 50



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

(22) The administrative overhead for the processing of claims for damage 
caused by potholes is not significant, it being absorbed within the 
duties of a single member of staff. 

7. Conclusions 

7.1 Although anecdotally there appears to be some public concern about potholes in 
the district, generally the Council is dealing with them. Specifically, and in relation to 
the Terms of Reference: 

• The systems and processes in place in West Berkshire are effective at 
mitigating the effect of potholes; 

• Systems in operation by the Council are generally similar to those in operation in 
other highways authorities and in some cases in advance of them. The Council’s 
practice is in line with the national thinking as articulated in Prevention and a 
Better Cure; 

• The Council is obtaining significant value for money. 
 
7.2 There is however, as always, scope for improvement, particularly in the Council’s 

communication with the general public and specific groups. 

7.3 Prevention and a Better Cure, provides a sound framework for the Council to 
continue to drive upwards its performance in the way that it seeks to prevent rather 
than cure, get it right first time and provide clarity for the public. 

8. Recommendations 

8.1 The Task Group recommends that the Executive Member for Highways should: 

(1) Comply fully with the recommendations arising from the Department for 
Transport’s report Prevention and a Better Cure. 

(2) Establish and promote a ‘spot the pot hotline’ for the public reporting of 
pothole locations. 

(3) Develop and deliver a communications plan to engage the public in the 
reporting of potholes. This might be achieved through the publication of 
leaflets, through the Council’s website or through advertising. Any 
materials should be written in ways that do not required prior technical 
knowledge. 

(4) Arrange for the authority’s approach to the handling of potholes to be 
explained to parish councils at the District/Parish Conference. 

(5) Arrange for the authority’s approach to the handling of potholes to be 
explained to Members of Thatcham Town Council. 

(6) Arrange for the authority’s approach to the handling of potholes to be 
explained to Members of the Council at a Member Development 
Seminar. 

(7) Produce and distribute to all Member of the Council guidance on the 
methodology in place for pothole maintenance. 

Page 51



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

(8) Give consideration to the introduction of a permanent ‘find and fix’ 
team to complement the existing proactive schemes already in place. 

(9) Give consideration to the Council taking part in the national MORI 
survey every two years, in order to monitor the public’s satisfaction with 
the Council’s pothole maintenance activities. 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Minutes of the task group meeting held on 29 March 2012 
Appendix B – Minutes of the task group meeting held on 22 May 2012 
 

Page 52



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Appendix A 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK GROUP 

 

The Process in Place for the Repair of Pot Holes 
 

MINUTES 
Thursday 29th March 2012 

 

Present: Councillors: Brian Bedwell (Chairman), Keith Woodhams 

Others: Ian Priestley (Chief Internal Auditor), Melvyn May (Highway 
Manager), David Lowe (Scrutiny and Partnerships Manager), Elaine Walker 
(Principal Policy Officer) 

Apologies: Councillor Emma Webster 

 

1. Election of Chairman 

 Councillor Keith Woodhams nominated Councillor Brian Bedwell to be Chairman. 
This was agreed and Councillor Brian Bedwell was elected Chairman. 

2. Agreement of the scope and Terms of Reference 

 Councillor Brian Bedwell began by stating that this meeting was intended to 
discuss and agree the Terms of Reference for the Task Group including what 
information would be required, who would be invited to participate and where 
agreed activity might sit. 

Melvyn May queried this approach, stating that several changes had been made to 
the procedures for reporting and responding to pot holes since a previous review 
approximately a year ago. 

It was agreed that a discussion would be held to understand whether the changes 
that had taken place were sufficient to address the concerns stated in the motion 
that had been raised at Council by Councillor Keith Woodhams.  Any outstanding 
issues would be included in Terms of Reference for this Task Group. 

3. Background Briefing 

 Councillor Keith Woodhams presented a summary of a report he had compiled, 
explaining that evidence to support his statements had been provided anecdotally 
by local residents and garages.  They key points raised in his report were: 

•••• The need for early reporting of pot holes; 

•••• Streamlining the administration of processes; 

•••• Altering the materials used to repair pot holes; 

•••• Reducing the number of claims being received; 

•••• Reducing the cost of claims; 

Page 53



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

•••• Improving the Council’s reputation; 

•••• Reducing the cost of administering the claims received. 

4. Pot hole repair practice in West Berkshire 

 The Task Group received a report from Melvyn May regarding the current 
processes in place for the reporting and repair of pot holes.  He reported that the 
information supplied was reflective of the changed processes that had come into 
effect as a result of a previous review approximately one year previously. The 
processes are currently in line with those used by Hampshire County Council. 

Melvyn May drew attention to the statistics in his report showing a significant 
reduction in the number of reported pot holes from 1842 in 2009/10 to 794 in 
2011/12, also reflected in a reduction in the cost of materials required for repair. 

Following some discussion, it was understood that the current process meant that 
once a pot hole had been reported, either to the Council directly, through 
inspection, or via third party reporting, an assessment would take place of the 
relative urgency for repair.  Repairs were categorised to be undertaken within 2 
hours, 24 hours or 28 days as appropriate. 

In all cases, a temporary repair would be undertaken initially, with the location 
being built into a rolling programme of works for a later, permanent, repair.  The 
order of repairs would be largely dependent on a risk assessment and location. 

Councillor Keith Woodhams stated that residents had brought to his attention a 
number of instances where a significant amount of time had passed between the 
pot hole being seen, and a white line being marked around it.  He quoted two 
examples which had not been reported so they could be monitored.  Melvyn May 
responded that pot holes must be reported, as there was no guarantee that routine 
inspections would locate them quickly.  Councillor Keith Woodhams believed that 
there was a lack of confidence that the Council would repair the pot hole 
successfully even if it was reported and suggested that this may be why not all pot 
holes are reported.  He suggested that it would be beneficial to promote reporting 
to the public.  Melvyn May responded that the Council would need to be prepared 
for a potential increase in workload, and therefore costs, to deal with the additional 
pot holes reported.  He also pointed out that pot holes reported to the Council were 
generally less specific about severity, and so further work was often needed to 
confirm how quickly a response would be required.  However, on balance, he 
considered that it could be beneficial to produce a leaflet explaining the reporting 
and repair process. 

Councillor Keith Woodhams further stated that he had been told of incidents where 
the repair to pot holes had been dislodged within a short time by heavy vehicles, 
and these had not been refilled.  He asked whether the materials used were 
suitable for the job.  Councillor Woodhams asked why the Council did not use 
Viafix as he understood that this was used elsewhere as a permanent repair and 
could be used quickly.  Melvyn May responded that Viafix does not provide a 
suitably sound permanent repair, and is prohibitively expensive to use in high 
quantities; the Council’s amended processes are now able to capture hand 
repaired pot holes within three months. He agreed to contact Islington Council for 
their conclusions from a trial of Viafix. 

Melvyn May explained to the Task Group that where issues were identified in the 
current process, these were addressed.  For example an individual contractor had 

Page 54



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

been identified as requiring further training and this was undertaken. 

Melvyn May reported that a ‘Find and Fix’ team were now operating reactively to 
temporarily repair identified pot holes.  Evidence had been received in the form of 
public comments that this was resulting in improvements. 

Councillor Brian Bedwell asked whether it would be possible to undertake a 
permanent repair on some occasions rather than always undertaking a temporary 
repair and following up with a permanent repair.  Melvyn May responded that 
consideration was being given to providing a permanent repair in the first instance 
for any pot hole allocated a 28 day order.  Whilst it would be possible in most 
instances to allocate this within the rolling programme of works, there would be a 
budget implication which might prevent the plan from going ahead.  Ian Priestley 
explained that a planned maintenance programme was cheaper to run than a 
reactive programme.  Melvyn May agreed to confirm with Hampshire County 
Council whether they were able to undertake any permanent repairs in the first 
instance.   

Councillor Brian Bedwell requested further information about the possibility of a 
greater number of permanent repairs being undertaken initially in order to reduce 
the cost of following a temporary repair with a permanent one.  Melvyn May 
responded that aside from the costs, the conditions were often prohibitive – the 
weather being a key factor in when a permanent repair could be carried out.  He 
was also concerned that making ad hoc changes to the new process, which had 
shown improvement, would be confusing and difficult to maintain.  Melvyn May 
explained that the increased cost associated with immediate permanent repairs 
should be considered against the risk of a claim arising from the pot hole.  Current 
information suggested that the increased cost could not be justified. 

David Lowe suggested that it might be useful to compare the unit costs of each 
method and benchmark these to another area, with a similar rural/urban 
environment. 

Councillor Brian Bedwell queried the number of roads in Thatcham that appeared 
to have more requirement for repair than other areas.  Melvyn May responded that 
many roads in Thatcham had been built using concrete with a layer of bitumen and 
tar on top.  These suffered from delamination where sections of the top layer came 
away.  Although not dangerous, they were aesthetically displeasing, and the public 
often appeared to judge a road’s safety by its appearance. 

Melvyn May informed the Task Group that a Members seminar had been held in 
November to clarify the processes and issues around pot holes.  He suggested a 
further seminar may be of use to new Members and those who had been unable to 
attend.  He also queried whether this may be a suitable subject for a future District 
Parish Conference.  Councillor Keith Woodhams suggested meeting with 
Thatcham Town Council to explain directly. 

Melvyn May explained to the Task Group that an annual road condition survey was 
undertaken which provided a holistic view of areas needing attention.  He 
explained that advances were being made to allow more accurate locating of pot 
holes as opposed to other anomalies.  Councillor Brian Bedwell asked if there was 
any equipment available that would help improve the road condition.  Melvyn May 
responded that although there were improved processes that could be put in place, 
the cost of these would be high and would need to be weighed against the risk of 
not implementing them. 

David Lowe asked whether it would be possible to benchmark the condition of 

Page 55



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

West Berkshire Roads with those in other, similar, areas to understand whether the 
area has an actual problem or a perceived problem.  Councillor Keith Woodhams 
stated that he believed this to be an actual problem and quoted two specific cases: 

• Northfield Road 

• Mini roundabout at Bowling Green Road and Northfield Lane 

Melvyn May agreed to check these cases specifically. 

Councillor Brian Bedwell asked how the size of a pot hole was determined.  Melvyn 
May responded that the easiest and quickest method was to use a spirit level and 
tape measure as this could account for any size, shape and location of pot hole.  
He further confirmed that a sketch of the pot hole was included on the report form 
which was signed and may form part of the evidence in a claim.  Additionally, a 
photograph was taken where a claim is made. 

Councillor Keith Woodhams expressed concern that some pot holes may not meet 
the nationally set criteria to require intervention, but they still posed some risk to 
drivers.  He asked whether an inspector would consider how likely the condition or 
size of a pot hole would worsen, and not rely solely on the measurement of the pot 
hole at the time he was there.  He asked whether an immediate repair could be 
undertaken to prevent a pot hole from worsening.  Melvyn May responded that 
these pot holes would still be recorded, and where possible and appropriate, they 
would be included in the rolling programme of maintenance.  He added that there 
currently was no client ‘find and fix’ team (working proactively).  This could be 
explored; however there would be associated costs around health and safety, 
training and insurance. 

Actions: 

• Melvyn May to confirm with Hampshire County Council whether they are able to 
undertake any permanent repairs in the first instance. 

• Melvyn May to contact Islington Council for their conclusions from a trial of 
Viafix. 

• David Lowe to compare the unit costs of each method and benchmark these to 
another area, with a similar rural/urban environment. 

• Melvyn May to check the specific cases quoted by Councillor Keith Woodhams. 

Proposed Recommendations: 

• To engage the public and promote the reporting of pot holes. 

• To publish an information leaflet about reporting pot holes 

• To communicate the processes of reporting and repair of pot holes: 

o through holding a second Member’s seminar 

o at a future District Parish Conference 

o by meeting with Thatcham Town Councillors. 

• To instigate a permanent client ‘Find and Fix’ van for proactive repair. 

5. Insurance Claims 

 Ian Priestley informed the Task Group that the figures that had been provided to 
the Task Group detailing insurance claims were based on the insurance year which 

Page 56



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

ran from November to October.  He further noted that the number and value of 
claims had dropped significantly since 2007; however he noted that the high value 
paid in 2007 did include two personal injury claims that were not related to pot 
holes. 

Ian Priestley agreed that there was still potential for the value of claims in 2010/11 
to be significant as there was a number outstanding, however he explained that 
there was an expectation of 96% or more of claims to be repudiated, and on 
average £250 to be paid per claim upheld. 

Councillor Brian Bedwell asked what were the staffing costs for processing claims.  
Ian Priestley did not have this information available, but agreed to provide it at a 
later date. 

Confirmation was requested on when a claim could be repudiated.  Ian Priestley 
explained that this would happen when the Council was found to have correctly 
dealt with a pot hole according to national standards, ie: 

• if the Council was not aware of the pot hole and it had a robust maintenance 
programme in place, it would not be liable for claims resulting from it;  

• if it was aware of the pot hole and had processed it correctly for appropriate 
repair within the appropriate timescale, again, it would not be liable for claims 
made. 

Councillor Keith Woodhams raised a concern about the time between a pot hole 
appearing, and it being reported to the Council.  He was concerned that during this 
time, the pot hole could cause damage to a number of vehicles, the drivers of 
which would not be able to make a claim.  He queried whether it would be possible 
to address this. 

David Lowe questioned whether the Council should allow residents to believe they 
are entitled to payment in all cases. 

The Group recognised that there had been a reduction in the number of pot holes 
recently.  Melvyn May suggested that this could be due to improvements in the 
process and methods of repair, in addition to less severe winter weather 
conditions. 

David Lowe asked if there was information available to benchmark the level of 
insurance claims against other areas.  Ian Priestley responded that the information 
was being collected through a CIPFA benchmarking exercise, but would not be 
available for some months. 

Actions: 

• Ian Priestley and Melvyn May to investigate staffing costs for processing claims. 

6. Refinement of the scope and Terms of Reference 

 Councillor Brian Bedwell summarised the meeting, stating that a lot of information 
had been received and it was clear from the figures provided as well as anecdotal 
evidence that both the number of pot holes, and the number of claims resulting 
from pot holes, had reduced over the past year.  He suggested that no further 
analysis would be required for this Task Group, and he requested that actions 
agreed during this meeting be undertaken prior to one further meeting, and that 
should any further recommendations be forthcoming, they be raised at the final 
meeting.  This was agreed. 

Page 57



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

7. Agreement of future meeting dates and activity 

 Councillor Brian Bedwell requested one further meeting to summarise findings and 
agree final recommendations.  A meeting date was to be agreed towards the end 
of April. 

 
 

Page 58



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Appendix B 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY TASK GROUP 

 

The Process in Place for the Repair of Pot Holes 
 

MINUTES 
Tuesday 22 May 2012 

 

Present: Councillors: Brian Bedwell (Chairman), Keith Woodhams 

Others: Mark Edwards (Head of Highways and Transport), Ian Priestley 
(Chief Internal Auditor), David Lowe (Scrutiny and Partnerships Manager), 
Elaine Walker (Principal Policy Officer) 

Apologies: Councillor Emma Webster, Melvyn May (Highway Manager) 

 

1. Minutes and Matters Arising 

 Councillor Brian Bedwell welcomed everyone to the meeting and introduced the 
scrutiny review subject for the benefit of Mark Edwards who had not been present 
at the previous meeting. 

Mark Edwards reported the results of Melvyn May’s enquiries to Hampshire County 
Council and Islington Council into repair methodology and materials.  He explained 
that Islington Council had used Viafix for some years but due to its expense it was 
only used where another material was not suitable, such as heavily trafficked 
roads.  Hampshire County Council used a range of materials dependent on the 
circumstances, reflecting West Berkshire’s approach.  Mark Edwards continued 
that the quality of a repair was dependent on the work of the contractor, and 
recognised that weather conditions or other circumstances might prevent a repair 
being made to the expected standard. 

Councillor Keith Woodhams stated that contractors required guidance as to how to 
repair pot holes to the required standard.  He believed that confidence needed to 
be built with the public that materials were suitable and repairs were being 
undertaken rapidly as they appeared to fail too quickly.  Mark Edwards informed 
the group that a relatively small number of repairs failed (estimated to be 
approximately 5%), and where this happened, the contractor undertook to repair 
the pot hole for a second time at no cost to the Council.  He further noted that 
should a claim arise between the first and second repair, these would be directed 
to the contractor.  Councillor Woodhams concluded that if this was an issue of the 
public’s perception of incorrect materials or inadequate repair, then this needed to 
be addressed.   

Mark Edwards disputed the fact that this was an area of significant concern for 
members of the public due to the fact that only a few reports were being made.  

Page 59



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Councillor Woodhams responded that members of the public would often report pot 
holes to local councillors as they did not have confidence that the Council would 
make a repair appropriately. 

Councillor Bedwell asked what information was available regarding the cost of 
processing claims.  Ian Priestley presented estimated information from the past five 
years.  He stressed that the basis for working out the financial values had been 
estimated through speaking with the officer who dealt with claims.  He noted that 
the Council were rarely required to pay claims due to the methods used by the 
Highways Service to manage pot holes.  He further drew attention to the fact that 
should the number of claims be reduced, it would not save significant sums of 
money as only one officer dealt with the workload and this was alongside other 
work. 

Councillor Woodhams stated that the number of claims was weather dependent.  
Mark Edwards agreed relating that in March, a dry month, there had been two 
claims, and in April, a wet month, there had been ten claims.  He also noted that 
sometimes the weather contributed by obscuring the pot hole from sight for 
example if it was full of water or snow. Councillor Woodhams noted that whatever 
the reason for the pot hole, and whether or not a claim was successful, the motorist 
would still have potentially sizeable repair bills for their car, and this was what he 
wanted to address. 

2. National Pot Holes Review Report 

 Councillor Bedwell introduced a national report that had been published in April 
2012 entitled ‘Prevention and a Better Cure – Pot Holes Review’.  David Lowe 
explained that although the group had been aware that this work was being 
undertaken, it had been fortuitous that the report had been published to coincide 
with the Council’s scrutiny review.  He suggested that the group consider the report 
and its recommendations, and decide how it might impact on this scrutiny review.  
He asked whether Highways were considering the recommendations outside of this 
review.  Mark Edwards responded that Highways had been expecting this report for 
some time, and welcomed it as there had never been a code of practice around pot 
holes before.  He noted that this would provide a common approach to national 
activity, and was pleased to note that many of the recommendations reflected the 
Council’s current or planned practice, for example around hand-patching. 

Councillor Woodhams asked Mark Edwards to explain the different types of repair 
that could be made.  Mark Edwards replied that there were four broad categories of 
road maintenance in use: 

1 – Plugging the hole.  This was undertaken in situations where an instant fix was 
required for safety purposes. 

2 – Hand Patching.  This involved the contractor squaring the hole, or pot hole 
plug, cleaning, filling and compacting the material.   

3 – Machine Patching.  This was intended to deal with larger scale patching repairs 
but not full width resurfacing.  A machine would plane away the whole section of 
road and relay the surface.   

Page 60



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

4 – Resurfacing, or other surface treatment. 

The Group requested further information about hand patching.  Mark Edwards 
explained that there was a dedicated vehicle and crew capable of hand patching 
approximately 30 small areas each day.  The vehicle was owned and managed by 
the contractor, and they were given a map that all pot holes had been plotted onto, 
including those previously plugged, and instructed to deal with the worst areas first.  
This has been ongoing for the last year, and funding would allow this to continue 
until October.  It was noted that despite the increased use of hand patching, there 
would remain a need for pot hole plugging to be carried out. 

Councillor Bedwell asked whether there would be any benefit in the Council owning 
its own vehicle for this purpose.  Mark Edwards explained that a decision had been 
taken 12 years previously that the best approach would be for a contractor to 
undertake repairs, whilst the Council concentrated on inspection, management and 
design of the highways. 

Councillor Bedwell requested further information on how the pot hole map was 
managed.  Mark Edwards replied that all reported pot holes were mapped.  Areas 
for repair were decided by removing from consideration areas that were due to be 
resurfaced in the next year (approximately 50 roads), and working around the rest 
of the area.  He commented that the process would never be complete as pot holes 
continued to arise.   

Councillor Bedwell requested that the process be circulated to the group to clarify 
what happened. 

Councillor Woodhams informed the Group of two pot holes situated by the Bear 
Hotel on the A4 in Hungerford which had been there for at least a week without 
being repaired or highlighted with a white line.  He believed that the public felt that 
the Council had responsibility for repairing each pot hole instantly, and when this 
did not happen, they lost faith in making the report.  He also believed that when the 
public saw what they felt to be a bad repair, or a plug being dislodged, they lost 
confidence in the process.  In his opinion, this lack of confidence needed to be 
addressed by correcting the public’s perception, and circulating a leaflet to explain 
the process and encourage reporting.  Mark Edwards confirmed that this section of 
road was due for resurfacing in the summer but reported pot holes would continue 
to be repaired until that time. 

The group discussed the public’s reticence in reporting pot holes and agreed that 
people needed to take some responsibility for the matter, and that it was 
unreasonable to expect pot holes to be repaired if they were not reported.  Mark 
Edwards noted that public reports were relied upon between inspections. 

Councillor Woodhams requested clarification on the claim that if a repair failed, 
then the second fix would be at the expense of the contractor.  He asserted that the 
cost of the second fix would merely be absorbed elsewhere in the contract.  Mark 
Edwards responded that only completed work was paid for and this was measured 
by the metre.  He clarified that the second fix was only free if the original repair 
failed within three months and there were no extenuating circumstances not within 
the control of the contractor. 

In response to a questions, Mark Edwards explained that pot holes that had been 

Page 61



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

plugged were more likely to fail than those that had been hand patched, however it 
was possible for these to fail too.  Councillor Woodhams asked whether it was 
sensible to continue to plug pot holes if they failed easily and asked if this was 
exacerbating the problem.  David Lowe responded that the national review 
addressed this in recommending that pot holes were repaired properly first time 
wherever possible.  Mark Edwards confirmed that this was the approach used.  
David Lowe continued by asserting that public perception appeared to consider 
that plugging the hole was the routine response, but the reality was that this was 
only undertaken in emergency situations.  Councillor Bedwell requested a written 
description of the different types of repair to be circulated to Members to assist 
them when they were approached by the public.  Councillor Woodhams also 
requested that a simplified version be produced for the public. 

Councillor Woodhams asked for further information regarding the inspector’s role.  
Mark Edwards explained that the inspector would assess pot holes that were 
reported and those on their inspection routes, and would instruct contractors to 
repair them if appropriate.  He noted that reports, particularly those received from 
members of the public were often not accurate in respect of location or dimension 
and needed to be inspected before allocating resources to repair them. 

Returning to the national review and its recommendations, Councillor Bedwell 
recognised that they were in line with the Council’s review and asked David Lowe 
to lead the group through a discussion of each one. 

Taking the recommendations in the order they were presented in the report’s 
executive summary: 

THEME: PREVENTION IS BETTER THAN CURE  

Recommendation 4 - Economic Benefits of Highway Maintenance  

To evaluate and justify the need for investment in maintenance of the local highway 
network, the Department for Transport should work in conjunction with local 
highway authorities to develop advice on determining economic costs and benefits. 

Response: This was a national recommendation and not one for the Council. 

Recommendation 5 - Commitment of Highway Maintenance Budgets  

The Government should commit to establishing budgets for highway maintenance 
for the full four years of Comprehensive Spending Review periods. This will provide 
greater budget certainty for the highway sector. Local highway authorities should 
ensure their funding for highways maintenance is aligned to this time period.  

Response: The majority of this recommendation related to national policy.  
However Mark Edwards explained to the group that the DfT used to set a fixed 
grant for one year, with further finance being provisional.  This year the government 
had confirmed a three year grant providing certainty for activity within this 
timescale.  The Council’s MTFS was for three years which did not fully align. 

Recommendation 6 - Prevention is Better than Cure  

Local highway authorities should adopt the principle that ‘prevention is better than 
cure’ in determining the balance between structural, preventative and reactive 
maintenance activities in order to improve the resilience of the highway network 

Page 62



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

and minimise the occurrence of potholes in the future.  

Response: Mark Edwards confirmed that this was already the Council’s approach. 

Recommendation 7 - Informed Choices  

Local highway authorities should ensure that appropriate competencies are 
available to make the right choices when designing and specifying techniques and 
materials for the maintenance and repair of highways. These competencies can be 
secured through training, collaboration with neighbouring authorities or external 
advice.  

Response: Mark Edwards confirmed that all inspectors and contractors were fully 
and appropriately accredited.  Training was maintained and included updates on 
new materials as they became available. 

Recommendation 8 - Guidance on Materials  

Comprehensive guidance should be made available in the design, specification 
and installation of materials for the maintenance and repair of highways, to ensure 
the use of appropriate materials for the right site. This guidance should be 
produced by the sector for the sector.  

Response: Mark Edwards informed the group that the intent was for the trade to 
produce this guidance.  Councillor Bedwell referred back to his earlier request for 
guidance to be produced by Highways. 

Recommendation 15 - Co-ordinating Street Works  

All parties undertaking works on the highway should share and co-ordinate short 
and long term programmes of work for up to four years in advance, based on good 
asset management practice.  

Response: Mark Edwards confirmed that this was already the Council’s approach 

Recommendation 16 - Minimising Highway Openings  

All parties involved in reinstatements must consider the need to minimise long term 
damage from the installation, renewal, maintenance and repair of utility and 
highway apparatus through alternative and innovative ways of working. Trenchless 
technology should be considered as part of this decision making process.  

Response: Mark Edwards confirmed that this was already the Council’s approach 

THEME: RIGHT FIRST TIME  

Recommendation 14 - Quality of Repairs and Reinstatements  

To drive up standards, a quality scheme similar to a National Highway Sector 
Scheme should be developed by the sector to cover all aspects of manual 
surfacing operations, including pothole repairs and reinstatements, and its use 
specified by local highway authorities and utility companies. 

Response: This was a national recommendation and not one for the Council. 

Recommendation 13 - Guidance on Repair Techniques  

Local highway authorities should consider the guidance provided in the ADEPT 
report Potholes and Repair Techniques for Local Highways and adopt as 

Page 63



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

appropriate to their local circumstances.  

Response: Mark Edwards advised that this was a technical version of the national 
report intended for use by highways management.  It had only just been published 
and the Highways team were still working through the findings. 

Recommendation 11 - Inspection and Training  

Local highway authorities should utilise inspection manuals to support 
implementation of their inspection policies. They should also ensure that highway 
inspectors are trained, qualified and competent in the identification and 
assessment of defects, including potholes, through a scheme accredited by the 
Highway Inspectors Board.  

Response: Mark Edwards explained that this recommendation had been included 
as, in some areas it was possible that some contractors and employees were not 
accredited.  He confirmed that anyone undertaking this work for the Council was 
accredited and drew the group’s attention to the results of an internal audit which 
found the contract to be well controlled. 

Recommendation 12 - Technology  

Local highway authorities should consider using proven technology and systems 
for the effective identification and management of potholes.  

Response: Mark Edwards explained that as part of the routine safety inspections 
GPS hand held technology was used to record all pot holes on a single WDM 
system. 

Recommendation 17 - Research and Innovation  

The sector will benefit from supporting, co-ordinating, contributing and 
disseminating research on all aspects of pothole operations. Innovation from such 
research may continue to provide opportunities for improvement of pothole 
management and operations.  

Response: The group did not consider this to be a recommendation requiring 
action. 

THEME: CLARITY  

Recommendation 3 - Public Communications  

Local highway authorities should have an effective public communications process 
that provides clarity and transparency in their policy and approach to repairing 
potholes. This should include a published policy and details of its implementation, 
including the prevention, identification, reporting, tracking and repair of potholes.  

Response: Councillor Bedwell summarised earlier discussions by requesting that a 
leaflet be produced for the public which explained how to report a pot hole, and 
what they could expect from the Council.  He further requested a slightly more 
detailed document for use by Members including the different levels of repair, and 
particularly asked for information about the white lines drawn around pot holes. 

Mark Edwards informed the group that a draft leaflet had been prepared with the 
intention of making it available to the public on the website as well as in normal 
leaflet distribution areas.  He agreed to distribute this to the group for comment.  

Page 64



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Ian Priestley requested that the leaflet included some information about the 
Highways Act in order to manage the public’s expectation around claims and 
compensation. 

Mark Edwards confirmed that Customer Services, who receive reports from the 
public, were aware of how to record them and that the system was able to identify 
repeat reports. 

Councillor Bedwell requested the subject be taken to the next District Parish 
Conference. 

Recommendation 2 - Public Opinion Surveys  

Local highway authorities should monitor public satisfaction with road, footway and 
cycleway condition and repair annually through the National Highways and 
Transport Public Satisfaction Survey or their own surveys. The findings can be 
used to benchmark performance and taken into consideration in local highway 
maintenance policies.  

Response: David Lowe stated that there was no longer a Council survey from 
which to draw results.  Mark Edwards informed the group that a national survey 
was run by MORI which the Council had been involved in one year; however it was 
prohibitively expensive to take part every year.  He reported that Councillor David 
Betts had recommended that the Council take part every two or three years.  
Councillor Bedwell agreed that this group could recommend this approach. 

Recommendation 10 - Permanent Repairs Policy  

Local highway authorities should adopt permanent repairs as the first choice. 
Temporary repairs should only be used where safety cannot be managed using 
alternative approaches and in emergency circumstances.  

Response: Mark Edwards confirmed that this was already the Council’s approach 
as had been discussed earlier by the group. 

Recommendation 9 - Definition of Potholes  

To provide clarity, local highway authorities should adopt dimensional definitions 
for potholes based on best practice as part of their maintenance policy. Response 
times and treatment of potholes should be based on local needs, consideration of 
all highway users, and an assessment of risk.  

Response: Mark Edwards confirmed that this would be explained in the document 
circulated to Members. 

Recommendation 1 - Strengthen Well-maintained Highways  

Well-maintained Highways should be revised and strengthened to include all 
recommendations of this Review which are relevant to local highway authorities. 

Response: The group accept this recommendation. 

Councillor Bedwell drew the group’s attention to Councillor Woodhams’ draft 
recommendations noting that they were broadly in line with the national report.  He 
asked whether Councillor Woodhams thought his recommendations had been 
addressed, or whether he would like to raise any further points. 

Councillor Woodhams noted in particular his recommendation to engage the public 

Page 65



West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

with a ‘Spot the Pot’ hotline, stating that he believed this title would be beneficial. 
Councillor Bedwell did not believe that the reporting line could be renamed and 
suggested that a press release be prepared using this phrase, at an appropriate 
time to highlight the work being undertaken. 

Councillor Woodhams continued by saying that the national recommendations did 
cover what he was looking to achieve. 

4. Final Recommendations and Activity 

 Actions: 

• Mark Edwards to circulate to the group the processes involved in repairing pot 
holes. 

• Mark Edwards to circulate to the group a draft leaflet for the public which 
explained how to report a pot hole, and what they could expect from the 
Council.   

• Mark Edwards to produce a document for distribution to Members which 
included the different levels of repair, and use of white lines. 

Recommendations: 

• A leaflet be published by Highways to inform the public of the pot hole repair 
process. 

• An information pack be distributed to Members to provide greater information 
about the process of pot hole repair. 

• Highways to take part in the national MORI survey every two years in order to 
monitor public satisfaction. 

• A press release be prepared including the phrase ‘Spot the Pot’ to highlight 
highways work. 

• The next District Parish Conference agenda to include an item on pot holes to 
support improved communication with the public. 

 

Page 66



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission  31 July 2012  

Title of Report: 
The management of the transition from 
District Council provision of youth clubs 

Report to be 
considered by: 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 

Date of Meeting: 26th June 2012 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To advise the commission of the process undertaken 
to manage the transfer of youth clubs from local 
authority control and the arrangements in place 
resultantly 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

To consider the content of the report and scrutinise 
the matter accordingly 

 
Task Group Chairman 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Brian Bedwell – Tel (0118) 942 0196 
E-mail Address: sellison@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Julia Waldman 
Job Title: Commissioning, Strategy and Partnerships Manager 
Tel. No.: 01635 519810 
E-mail Address: jwaldman@westberks.gov.uk 

Agenda Item 10.

Page 67



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission  31 July 2012  

Executive Report 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 At their meeting of 29 May 2012, Members of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Commission agreed to scrutinise the process that had been 
undertaken to manage the transfer of youth club provision in the district out of the 
Council’s control, following the decision by the Executive to do so, and the 
subsequent impact on the running of the clubs. 

1.2 This report gives information on the transfer process at each of the seven youth 
clubs for which the Council ceased providing and sets out their current position or 
status. It also outlines other activities that have been undertaken in support of 
‘Open Access’ or a universal youth service. 

2. Transfer and current position 

2.1 The transfer process and current position is set out in the sections below. 

Moorside Senior Club – Thatcham 

Day Wednesday 
Time 1830 – 2030 
Frequency Weekly 
Venue Moorside Community Centre 
Number of YP atttending 15 – 35  
Age 14+ 

 
Key points 

• An officer attended meetings with Thatcham Town Council to discuss ways to 
maintain this provision within the local community. 

• BACYP received funding from the Council to support the community in 
maintaining the provision and positive links were made between TCC and 
BACYP resulting in the club being re-opened in April 2012. 

• The Council is providing the venue at no cost for the first year. 
• Equipment and resources are also freely available for the club to use.  
• TTC fund 2 part time staff to lead the club. 
• There are volunteers from the community also supporting the club 
• Numbers of young people on the register are 15 
• At the request of TTC a youth worker brought some young people to a Council 

meeting to convey their ideas for provision. 
• The youth service detached team actively refer young people to the Moorside 

provision 
 

The Garage Drop In 

Day Monday and Wednesday 
Time 1830 – 2130 
Frequency Weekly 
Venue The Garage, Linear Park 

Page 68



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission  31 July 2012  

Number of YP atttending Varies but up to 10 
Age 11 – 19 years 

 
Key points 

• An officer attended meetings with Holybrook Parish Council to discuss ways to 
maintain this provision within the local community. 

• The Council donated the equipment and furniture in the ‘garage’ for continued 
use by young people in the community 

• BACYP received funding from WBC to support the community in maintaining 
the provision and positive links have been made  

• A survey undertaken over the summer of 2011 indicated that the young people 
wanted the ‘garage’ to remain as a Drop In facility and the Parish Council were 
made aware of this. 

• The part time and volunteer staff are working together to maintain a fortnightly 
provision at present.  

• The youth service detached team actively refer young people to the ‘garage’ 
provision 

 
Lambourn Youth Club 

Day Monday  
Time 1830 – 2030 
Frequency Fortnightly 
Venue The Lambourn Centre Close End, Hungerford 
Number of YP atttending 10 
Age 13 – 17 years 

 
Key points 

• An officer attended meetings with Lambourn Parish Council to discuss ways to 
maintain this provision within the local community. 

• BACYP received funding from West Berkshire Council to support the community 
in maintaining the provision and positive links have been made.  

• West Berkshire Council donated the equipment for continued use by young 
people in the community 

• The youth service detached team will link their sessions to the provision as and 
when it is set up. 

 
Kennet School DofE  

Day Wednesday  
Time 1530 – 1700 
Frequency Once a week and 2 residential a year 
Venue Kennet School 
Number of YP atttending 5 
Age Yr 9 (13 – 14 years) 

 
Key points 

Page 69



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission  31 July 2012  

• In agreement with the youth work team the member of staff leading on this 
transferred to newly configured D of E team and the provision has continued. 

 
Mobile Provision-‘Blue Bus’ and ‘Rural Navigator’  

Day Wednesday and Thursday 
Time 1600 – 1800 and 1800 - 2000 
Frequency Weekly 
Venue Mortimer, Purley, Beenham Bradfield and Burghfield 
Number of YP atttending 3 – 20 
Age 11 – 19 

 
Key points 

• A service level agreement was made with BACYP to enable the Rural Navigator 
mobile provision to visit the areas above, staffed by a BACYP worker and 
volunteers.  

• The Blue Bus was de-commissioned as part of the savings required from the 
service. 

 
Kintbury Youth club 

Day Monday 
Time 1830 - 2030 
Frequency Fortnightly 
Venue Kintbury 
Number of YP atttending 6 – 8  
Age 11 – 15 

 
Key points 

• An officer attended meetings with Kintbury Parish Council to discuss ways to 
maintain this provision within the local community. 

• BACYP received funding from West Berkshire Council to support the community in 
maintaining the provision and positive links were made between KPC and BACYP 
resulting in the provision being maintained. 

• Kintbury Management Committee applied for and were successful in accessing 
funds from the ‘Community Solutions’ grant.  

• At the request of KPC a youth worker brought some young people to a Council 
meeting to convey their ideas for activities. 

 
John O’Gaunt  

Day Monday and Wednesday 
Time 1900 - 2100 
Frequency Weekly 
Venue Hungerford 
Number of YP atttending 30+ 
Age 13 – 19 

 
Key points 

Page 70



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission  31 July 2012  

• Public meeting held to hear community opinion on the sustainability of the centre. 
• BACYP offered to support organisations wishing to take on the youth provision at 

the centre. 
• Community members negotiated a service level agreement allowing them to run the 

centre for a pilot year (2012/13). 
• Financial support provided by the ‘Community solutions Grant’. 
• 1 evening youth club session maintained. 

 
3. Other activity 

3.1 In addition, the Councils is giving the following support Open Access provision in 
communities  

• Greater Greenham Youth project – Awarded £15k for development of provision in 
2012/13. 

• Riverside youth and community centre – Awarded £12k from the ‘Community 
Solutions Grant’ which has supported provision at the centre 

• BACYP were successful in winning the ‘Quick Quote Process’ to continue work in 
developing and maintaining Open access provision across West Berkshire and 
manage a small grants award scheme to enable communities to support provision 
for young people. 

 
4. Recommendation 

4.1 It is recommended that the Members of the Commission note the contents of the 
report and conduct scrutiny on the topic. 

Appendices 
 
There are no Appendices to this report.   

Page 71



Page 72

This page is intentionally left blank



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Title of Report: Annual Scrutiny Report 2011/12  

Report to be 
considered by: 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 

Date of Meeting: 31 July 2012 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To present to the Commission the annual Scrutiny 
Report  2011/12. 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

To note the information. 
 

 
 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission Chairman 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Brian Bedwell – Tel (0118) 9420196 
E-mail Address: bbedwell@westberks.gov.uk 
 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Elaine Walker 
Job Title: Principal Policy Officer 
Tel. No.: 01635 519441 
E-mail Address: ewalker@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 12.

Page 73



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Executive Report 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 At its meeting of 26 June 2012, the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Commission requested to receive the annual report of scrutiny activity undertaken 
over the 2011/12 municipal year by the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Commission, Health Scrutiny Panel and Resource Management Working Group. 

1.2 The Scrutiny Annual Report 2011/12 is shown at appendix A. 

Appendices 
 
Appendix A – Scrutiny Annual Report 2011/12. 
 

Page 74



Appendix A 
 

Title of Report: Scrutiny Annual Report 2011/12 
Report to be 
considered by: 

Corporate Board 

Date of Meeting: 22 May 2012 

Forward Plan Ref: EX2307 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To inform Corporate Board of the Scrutiny activity 
undertaken during the municipal year 2011/12 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

To note the contents of this report. 
 

Reason for decision to be 
taken: 
 

N/A 
 

Other options considered: 
 

N/A 
 

Key background 
documentation: 

N/A 

 
The proposals contained in this report will help to achieve the following Council Strategy 
priority(ies): 
 CSP1 – Caring for and protecting the vulnerable 
 CSP2 – Promoting a vibrant district 
 CSP3 – Improving education 
 CSP4 – Protecting the environment 

 

The proposals will also help achieve the following Council Strategy principle(s): 
 Putting people first 
 Living within our means 
 Empowering people and communities 
 Transforming our services to remain affordable and effective 
 Doing what’s important well 

The proposals contained in this report will help to achieve the above Council Strategy 
priorities and principles by: 
      
 
Portfolio Member Details 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Graham Jones - Tel (01235) 762744 
E-mail Address: gjones@westberks.gov.uk 
Date Portfolio Member 
agreed report: 

      
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Elaine Walker 
Job Title: Principal Policy Officer 
Tel. No.: 01635 519441 
E-mail Address: ewalker@westberks.gov.uk 

Page 75



 

Footer to be completed by Strategic Support 
West Berkshire Council name of decision body date of meeting 

 
Implications 

 

 
Policy: None 

Financial: None 

Personnel: None 

Legal/Procurement: None 

Property: None 

Risk Management: None 

Equalities Impact 
Assessment: 

Not Required - Information only 
 

Corporate Board’s 
Recommendation: 

      
 

 
NOTE: The section below does not need to be completed if your report will not 
progress beyond Corporate or Management Board. 
 

Is this item subject to call-in? Yes:   No:   

If not subject to call-in please put a cross in the appropriate box: 

The item is due to be referred to Council for final approval  
Delays in implementation could have serious financial implications for the Council  
Delays in implementation could compromise the Council’s position   
Considered or reviewed by Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission or 
associated Task Groups within preceding six months 

 

Item is Urgent Key Decision  
Report is to note only  

Page 76



 

Footer to be completed by Strategic Support 
West Berkshire Council name of decision body date of meeting 

Executive Summary 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 This report outlines the scrutiny activity undertaken by the authority in the municipal 
year 2011/12. It contains an overview of the year and gives detail on each of the 
activities undertaken. 

2. Overview of the last 12 months 

2.1 Over the last twelve months the Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission, 
the Health Scrutiny Panel and the Resource Management Working Group have 
completed 21 scrutiny reviews and three items were called in for review. 

3. Equalities Impact Assessment Outcomes 

3.1 There is no decision to be made and therefore no Equality Impact Assessment has 
been undertaken. 

4. Recommendation 

4.1 The members of Corporate Board are asked to note the contents of this report. 

Page 77



 

Footer to be completed by Strategic Support 
West Berkshire Council name of decision body date of meeting 

Executive Report 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 This report outlines the scrutiny activity undertaken by the authority in the municipal 
year 2011/12. It contains an overview of the year and gives detail on each of the 
activities undertaken. It includes a commentary, where it is possible to give it, on 
the value that the activity has added. 

2. Overview of the last twelve months 

2.1 In May 2011 the scrutiny structure was streamlined with the Overview and Scrutiny 
Management Commission (OSMC), Health Scrutiny Panel (HSP) and Resource 
Management Working Group (RMWG) remaining. 

2.2 Over the course of the last year, the three Committees have conducted scrutiny 
reviews across all areas of the Council, and have regularly reviewed and 
challenged financial and performance information. 

2.3 Three decisions have been called in to the Overview and Scrutiny Management 
Commission for review.  In all cases, the original decision was upheld. These 
decisions were: 

(1) ID2266: The Three Year Highway Improvement Programme 2011/12 – 
2013/14. 

(2) Provisional Outturn Report 2010-11 

(3) Funding Arrangements Framework for Domiciliary Care and Non-
residential Services 

3. Activity in Detail 

3.1 Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission. 

(1) Transfer of the West Berkshire Council CCTV control room to the 
Royal Borough of Windsor and Maidenhead.  The Commission 
reviewed the processes used during the project following reported 
public concern during the switch over period. 

Added Value: Five recommendations which focussed on learning lessons 
from the project were identified and accepted by the Executive. 

(2) Schools’ Severe Weather Plans. The Commission explored the 
progress being made by schools in preparing severe weather plans in 
order to minimise disruption to pupils and parents in light of recent 
weather conditions. 

Added Value: The Commission was able to explore this issue in a public 
arena and make appropriate recommendations. 

(3) Preparations for the London 2012 Olympics. The Commission has 
received two updates on West Berkshire's preparations for the Olympic 

Page 78



 

Footer to be completed by Strategic Support 
West Berkshire Council name of decision body date of meeting 

Games, including information about the Olympic torch route through 
the district. 

Added Value: The Commission was provided information on the wide 
ranging activities required to be undertaken by the Council in preparation for 
and during the Olympic Games. 

(4) GCSE Maths Results.  The Commission reviewed information relating 
to GCSE maths results in light of quarter 2 - 2011/12 performance 
returns, which had been lower than expected.  

Added value: Members of the Commission were made aware of the wider 
issues impacting on this performance indicator and were able to discuss the 
subject in a public arena. 

(5) Examination of facilities in place for younger people. The Commission 
undertook a review of this subject following an earlier review in 2008/9 
as this remained a high priority for residents of West Berkshire. 

Added value: The Commission formulated a number of recommendations for 
submission to the Executive. 

The following items were also reviewed by the Commission: 

(6) Quarterly Performance Reports. The Commission reviewed the 
Council's performance reports each quarter, enabling issues to be 
examined, and recommendations to be made. 

(7) Preliminary Flood Risk Assessment.  The details of this report were 
reviewed prior to its submission to DEFRA.  

(8) Performance Indicator: Affordable Housing units.  The Commission 
explored the factors causing this indicator to be reported as red in 
quarter 2 2010/11 and were satisfied at the actions being taken by 
officers. 

Scrutiny reviews initiated and due for completion during 2012/13. 

(9) Methodology of repairing potholes.  The Commission is currently 
scrutinising the methodology for identifying and repairing potholes, 
recognising that amendments had been made following a previous 
review a year earlier. 

(10) Housing Allocation Policy. The Commission expressed a desire to be 
involved in the process of amending the Housing Allocation Policy. 

(11) Assessing and assuring the 2012/13 performance 'scorecard'.  The 
Commission have established a working group to help develop the 
measures and targets that will be incorporated into the Council 
Strategy. 

 

 

Page 79



 

Footer to be completed by Strategic Support 
West Berkshire Council name of decision body date of meeting 

3.2 Health Scrutiny Panel 

(1) Review into Dignity of Care for Older People in Hospitals.  The Panel 
commissioned a review of this subject to be undertaken by the Local 
Involvement Network (LINk) in order to understand local issues not 
explored by a similar national review undertaken by the Care Quality 
Commission. 

Added Value: The Panel were able to contribute to and provide direction to 
this public review. 

(2) Ambulance Service Quality Indicators.  The Panel received a report on 
changes to the South Central Ambulance Service (SCAS) performance 
reporting targets. 

Added Value: Members were able to challenge the information provided in a 
public forum. 

(3) Commissioning of General Practitioner Services. The Panel discussed 
the proposed changes to GP commissioning arrangements and how 
this would affect services in the east of the District.  

Added Value: Members were able to explore and challenge areas of concern 
in a public forum  

(4) Update on the "Six Lives" Review: The HSP considered the Council's 
response to a national report on the provision of public services to 
those with Learning Disabilities. 

Added Value: The Panel were able to challenge the Council's response 
ensuring it was appropriate and robust. 

(5) Scrutiny Review of NHS Continuing Healthcare. The Panel explored 
guidelines and directions for continuing healthcare for the district's 
residents.  A subsequent and ongoing review being undertaken by the 
Council is also to be reported to the Panel. 

Added Value: Members were able to question the approach taken by the 
PCT in a public forum.   

3.3 Resource Management Working Group (RMWG) 

(1) Car Parking Charges and Income: Season tickets and PCN payments.  
Officers presented information to the RMWG in order to clarify 
differences between forecast and actual income figures. 

Added Value: The RMWG provided challenge to officers and were able to 
make suggestions for improvement. 

(2) Financial Monitoring. Members examined financial reports throughout 
the year as reported across the Council. 

Added Value: Members were able to explore and challenge areas of concern 
in a public forum and provide suggestions directly to officers. 

Page 80



 

Footer to be completed by Strategic Support 
West Berkshire Council name of decision body date of meeting 

(3) Establishment Monitoring. The RMWG regularly examined the figures 
reported across the Council on staffing establishment. 

Added Value: The exercises provided challenge to officers and allowed 
examination of the Council's establishment in public. 

(4) Strategic Risk Register.  The RMWG examined the assessment of risk 
for individual items on the register. 

Added Value: The review enabled identified risks to be explored in a public 
setting.  The Group recommended that the risk register be scrutinised on an 
annual basis. 

(5) School Academies. The RMWG considered the effect of schools 
becoming academies on the capacity of the Local Education Authority. 

Added value: Ten recommendations were identified for submission to the 
Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission and subsequently 
endorsed by the Executive.  

(6) Geographical Information Systems (GIS).  The Group heard from 
officers how GIS was currently used by the Council and its potential for 
future use. 

Added Value: Members were able to explore potential uses for GIS in a 
public forum. 

(7) Highways Asset Management Plan.  The RMWG were consulted on 
the plan prior to its submission for approval by Individual Decision. 

Added Value: The Group were able to explore the plan and make 
suggestions for improvement.  The public meeting was of additional benefit 
to the consultation process for the plan. 

(8) Timelord Programme.  The RMWG received a closing report on the 
Timelord Programme. 

Added Value: The successful completion of the project was confirmed by 
Members in a public forum. 

4. Recommendation 

4.1 It is recommended that Corporate Board notes the contents of this report. 

Appendices 
 
There are no Appendices to this report. 
 
 
 

 

Page 81



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Title of Report: Health Scrutiny Panel   

Report to be 
considered by: 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 

Date of Meeting: 31 July 2012 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To provide an update on the work of the Health 
Scrutiny Panel. 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

To note the information. 
 

 
 
Health Scrutiny Panel Chairman 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Quentin Webb – Tel (01635) 201435 
E-mail Address: qwebb@westberks.gov.uk  
 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Elaine Walker 
Job Title: Principal Policy Officer 
Tel. No.: 01635 519441 
E-mail Address: ewalker@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 13.

Page 83



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Executive Report 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 This report provides an update on the work undertaken by the Health Scrutiny 
Panel since the report made at the last OSMC meeting. 

1.2 The Committee met on 19 June 2012 and the following items were discussed: 

(1) Dignity and Nutrition in Hospitals 

There was now an agreement to run a survey for 500 people across 
the Royal Berkshire Hospital (RBH). The aim was to begin the survey 
at the hospital in July 2012. 

(2) An update on the Anti-Child Poverty Strategy 

The Panel received a report on the Anti-Child Poverty Strategy which 
the Council aimed to achieve in 2020. 

(3) An update on the Health and Wellbeing Board 

The Panel received information explaining the history behind the 
creation of the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) and an update on 
its progress. 

1.3 The Health Scrutiny Panel are next due to meet on Tuesday 11 September 2012. 

2. Work Programme 

2.1 The latest work programme for the Health Scrutiny Panel is contained within item 
16 of this agenda.   

Appendices 
 
There are no Appendices to this report. 
 

Page 84



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Title of Report: Resource Management Working Group  
Report to be 
considered by: 

Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 

Date of Meeting: 31 July 2012 
 
Purpose of Report: 
 

To provide an update on the work of the Resource 
Management Working Group. 
 

Recommended Action: 
 

To note the information. 
 

 
 
Resource Management Working Group Chairman 
Name & Telephone No.: Councillor Tony Vickers – Tel (01635) 230046 
E-mail Address: tvickers@westberks.gov.uk 
 
 

Contact Officer Details 
Name: Stephen Chard 
Job Title: Policy Officer 
Tel. No.: 01635 519462 
E-mail Address: schard@westberks.gov.uk 
 

Agenda Item 14.

Page 85



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

Executive Report 
 
 
1. Introduction 

1.1 The Resource Management Working Group (RMWG) last met on 2 July 2012.  A 
summary of the main discussions held are as follows: 

Asset Management 

1.2 The Working Group was briefed on the Council’s current Asset Management Plan 
(AMP) and the process for review of the AMP and its procedures.  Information was 
provided to Members on areas including: 

(1) The costs identified and the level of priority given to required 
maintenance in schools/other Council buildings and the actual funding 
allocated.  Following this discussion, John Ashworth agreed that a 
greater level of explanation for the figures provided will be incorporated 
as part of the next edition of the AMP/Capital Strategy and 
Programme.  It will also be circulated to Working Group Members in 
advance of this.     

(2) The criteria for retaining, disposing of and acquiring property.  
Members were advised that this is very much an evolving criteria and 
while the most appropriate use for a property due for disposal is 
considered, the current presumption is to sell the property and 
maximise the capital return for the Council.  An ‘Asset Challenge’ 
methodology was being introduced whereby the use of/need for a 
property was discussed with relevant service areas.  A disposal list 
existed and was updated annually.  It was confirmed that assets for 
disposal were identified as potential capital receipts as part of the 
budget build process.   

(3) Members questioned whether the timescale given for some of the 
subjects in the action plan had been given enough priority, i.e. 
Taceham House and the London Road Industrial Estate (LRIE).  John 
Ashworth was of the view that the introduction of the Asset Challenge 
methodology would help to avoid delays and advised that a report on 
the redevelopment of Taceham House had been drafted/options were 
being actively pursued.  The complexities of the LRIE meant that this 
project had taken time.  

(4) It was felt by Members that the existing AMP served more as a list of 
assets rather than a strategy which was a need.  In response, 
Members were advised that as part of the current year’s refresh of the 
document it was the intention to include a greater deal of direction for 
the Council’s assets.  

(5) A new web based database was soon to be introduced.  The new 
package had been purchased to replace the existing and very basic 
database with a more sophisticated/modern model that would put the 
Council in line with other local authorities.  

Page 86



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

(6) Members gave consideration to the suggestion from the Overview and 
Scrutiny Management Commission to consider the examination of the 
timeline relating to the use and sale of Taceham House.  Members 
were of the view that the report should proceed as planned through to 
the Executive, a decision could then be taken as to whether the item 
should be called-in or whether it should be added to the work 
programme for a future meeting when it could help to create a 
focussed debate for further asset management discussions.  

Establishment Report – Quarter Four 2011/12 

1.3 Members noted this report.  

Provisional Financial Outturn Report: 2011/12 Financial Year 

1.4 Members were advised that the provisional outturn was a £491k underspend.  
However, a view was given by a Member that this should have been reported as a 
much higher figure and the £491k underspend was only achieved by utilising 
2011/12 funds in 2012/13.  Joseph Holmes reported that the view was taken that it 
was more appropriate to allocate funding from the 2011/12 financial year to the 
areas identified in the outturn report in 2012/13 rather than to start the new financial 
year with a potential deficit.  Funding had been allocated to the bad debt provision 
in 2012/13 from the 2011/12 budget in recognition of the double dip recession.  

1.5 The Working Group were also informed that the Council is not to take up the 
capitalisation directive for spreading the costs of statutory redundancy over a longer 
time frame.  Joseph Holmes explained that due to the comparatively small number 
of statutory redundancies/relatively small amount of money involved together with 
the borrowing costs that would be incurred from capitalisation, this approach was 
not taken forward. 

1.6 The level of funding remaining to be committed in Housing and Performance was 
queried (£537k).  It was confirmed that this related to the Disabled Facilities Grant, 
much of this money was allocated but due to the nature of the Grant it had not been 
committed in year.  The remaining funds were therefore effectively spent.  

2. Next meeting 

2.1 The meeting scheduled for 7 August 2012 has been cancelled and the following 
date is 25 September 2012 although this is subject to change. The following items 
are on the draft agenda: 

(1) MTFS – item to particularly focus on the impact on the MTFS from the 
introduction of the Local Government Finance Bill in 2013/14 and 
beyond as well as the potential impact of Business Rate Reform. 

(2) Latest budget report. 

(3) Risk Register.  

3. Work Programme 

3.1 The latest work programme for the Working Group is contained within item 16 of 
this agenda.  An item to consider the impact of Local Authority maintained schools 

Page 87



 

West Berkshire Council Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission 31 July 2012 

converting to academy status on the Council’s finances has been added to the work 
programme, date to be confirmed.  

Appendices 
 
There are no appendices to this report. 

Page 88



W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il F
or

wa
rd

 P
lan

 – 
Au

gu
st

 20
12

 to
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
2 

Re
fe

re
nc

e 
De

cis
io

n 
an

d 
Pu

rp
os

e 
De

cis
io

n 
Bo

dy
De

cis
io

n 
Pa

th
 

Di
re

ct
or

at
e 

Co
nt

ac
t 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

(P
or

fo
lio

Ho
ld

er
 fo

r .
 . .

) 
Pa

rt II
Da

te
Re

po
rt

Pu
bl

ish
ed

 
Co

ns
ul

te
e(

s)
 

No
te

s 
De

cis
io

n 
Mo

nt
h

Th
e 

ite
m

s 
in

clu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Pl
an

 w
er

e 
co

rre
ct

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n.
 T

he
 F

or
wa

rd
 P

la
n 

m
ay

, h
ow

ev
er

, c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

yo
u 

ar
e 

ad
vis

ed
 to

 c
on

ta
ct

 
M

oi
ra

 F
ra

se
r –

 T
el

: 0
16

35
 5

19
04

5 
or

 e
-m

ai
l: 

m
fra

se
r@

we
st

be
rk

s.
go

v.
uk

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f a
ny

 a
ge

nd
a 

be
fo

re
 a

tte
nd

in
g 

a 
m

ee
tin

g.
 

Ex
ec

ut
ive

 d
ec

isi
on

s m
ay

 b
e t

ak
en

 b
y t

he
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e a

ct
in

g 
as

 a 
co

lle
ct

ive
 b

od
y o

r b
y o

ffi
ce

rs
 ac

tin
g 

un
de

r d
ele

ga
te

d 
po

we
rs

. 

1

K
E
Y
:

ID
 

=
  

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 
E

X
 =

  
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
C

 
=

  
C

o
u

n
c
il 

G
A

 =
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 &
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

S
 

=
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

P
C

 =
 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

AU
GU

ST
 20

12
 

ID
24

31
Ad

op
tio

n 
of

 P
ar

ish
 P

lan
s

To
 ad

op
t P

ar
ish

 P
lan

s.
ID

 
01

/0
8/

12
 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
Jo

 N
ay

lo
r 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s,

 
Eq

ua
lity

, T
he

 
Vi

sio
ns

, 
Co

m
m

un
itie

s 

 
TB

C 
Lo

ca
l M

em
be

rs
 

an
d 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
If 

ne
ed

ed
 

Au
gu

st
 2

01
2 

ID
24

43
Ap

pr
ov

al 
of

 V
illa

ge
 D

es
ig

n 
St

at
em

en
ts

To
 ap

pr
ov

e V
illa

ge
 D

es
ign

 S
tat

em
en

ts.
ID

 
01

/0
8/

12
 

En
vir

on
m

en
t 

Pa
ul

a 
Am

or
el

li 

Pl
an

ni
ng

, 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Po
lic

y,
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

 
TB

C 
Lo

ca
l M

em
be

rs
 

an
d 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
If 

ne
ed

ed
 

Au
gu

st
 2

01
2 

ID
25

26

St
at

ut
or

y r
eq

ui
re

m
en

t t
o 

an
nu

al 
re

vie
w 

th
e A

do
pt

io
n 

Se
rv

ice
 S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f 

Pu
rp

os
e

To
 re

po
rt 

on
 th

e w
or

k o
f th

e A
do

pti
on

 T
ea

m
ID

 
01

/0
8/

12
 

Co
m

m
un

itie
s 

Ju
ne

 
Ke

m
p

Ch
ild

re
n 

& 
Yo

un
g 

Pe
op

le
, 

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ice

, 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

 
TB

C 
 

 
Au

gu
st

 2
01

2 

ID
24

19

W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
 F

or
wa

rd
 P

lan
 -

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
01

2 t
o 

De
ce

m
be

r 2
01

2
To

 ad
vis

e M
em

be
rs 

of 
ite

ms
 to

 be
 

co
ns

ide
re

d b
y W

es
t B

er
ks

hir
e C

ou
nc

il o
ve

r 
the

 ne
xt 

fou
r m

on
ths

.

ID
 

16
/0

8/
12

 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

M
oi

ra
 

Fr
as

er
  

Le
ad

er
 o

f 
Co

un
cil

 
 

08
/0

8/
12

 

Al
l M

em
be

rs
, 

pu
bl

ish
ed

 o
n 

we
bs

ite
 fo

r l
oc

al
 

re
sid

en
ts

No
t s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
al

l 
in

.
Au

gu
st

 2
01

2 

SE
PT

EM
BE

R 
20

12
 

ID
24

32
Ad

op
tio

n 
of

 P
ar

ish
 P

lan
s

To
 ad

op
t P

ar
ish

 P
lan

s.
ID

 
01

/0
9/

12
 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
Jo

 N
ay

lo
r 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s,

 
Eq

ua
lity

, T
he

 
Vi

sio
ns

, 
Co

m
m

un
itie

s 

 
TB

C 
Lo

ca
l M

em
be

rs
 

an
d 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
If 

ne
ed

ed
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

12

ID
24

44
Ap

pr
ov

al 
of

 V
illa

ge
 D

es
ig

n 
St

at
em

en
ts

To
 ap

pr
ov

e V
illa

ge
 D

es
ign

 S
tat

em
en

ts.
ID

 
01

/0
9/

12
 

En
vir

on
m

en
t 

Pa
ul

a 
Am

or
el

li 

Pl
an

ni
ng

, 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Po
lic

y,
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

 
TB

C 
Lo

ca
l M

em
be

rs
 

an
d 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
If 

ne
ed

ed
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

12

ID
24

20

W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
 F

or
wa

rd
 P

lan
 - 

Oc
to

be
r 

20
12

 to
 Ja

nu
ar

y 2
01

3
To

 ad
vis

e M
em

be
rs 

of 
ite

ms
 to

 be
 

co
ns

ide
re

d b
y W

es
t B

er
ks

hir
e C

ou
nc

il o
ve

r 
the

 ne
xt 

fou
r m

on
ths

.

ID
 

13
/0

9/
12

 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

M
oi

ra
 

Fr
as

er
  

Le
ad

er
 o

f 
Co

un
cil

 
 

05
/0

9/
12

 

Al
l M

em
be

rs
, 

pu
bl

ish
ed

 o
n 

we
bs

ite
 fo

r l
oc

al
 

re
sid

en
ts

No
t s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
al

l 
in

.
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
12

Agenda Item 15.

Page 89



W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il F
or

wa
rd

 P
lan

 – 
Au

gu
st

 20
12

 to
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
2 

Re
fe

re
nc

e 
De

cis
io

n 
an

d 
Pu

rp
os

e 
De

cis
io

n 
Bo

dy
De

cis
io

n 
Pa

th
 

Di
re

ct
or

at
e 

Co
nt

ac
t 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

(P
or

fo
lio

Ho
ld

er
 fo

r .
 . .

) 
Pa

rt II
Da

te
Re

po
rt

Pu
bl

ish
ed

 
Co

ns
ul

te
e(

s)
 

No
te

s 
De

cis
io

n 
Mo

nt
h

Th
e 

ite
m

s 
in

clu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Pl
an

 w
er

e 
co

rre
ct

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n.
 T

he
 F

or
wa

rd
 P

la
n 

m
ay

, h
ow

ev
er

, c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

yo
u 

ar
e 

ad
vis

ed
 to

 c
on

ta
ct

 
M

oi
ra

 F
ra

se
r –

 T
el

: 0
16

35
 5

19
04

5 
or

 e
-m

ai
l: 

m
fra

se
r@

we
st

be
rk

s.
go

v.
uk

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f a
ny

 a
ge

nd
a 

be
fo

re
 a

tte
nd

in
g 

a 
m

ee
tin

g.
 

Ex
ec

ut
ive

 d
ec

isi
on

s m
ay

 b
e t

ak
en

 b
y t

he
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e a

ct
in

g 
as

 a 
co

lle
ct

ive
 b

od
y o

r b
y o

ffi
ce

rs
 ac

tin
g 

un
de

r d
ele

ga
te

d 
po

we
rs

. 

2

K
E
Y
:

ID
 

=
  

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 
E

X
 =

  
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
C

 
=

  
C

o
u

n
c
il 

G
A

 =
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 &
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

S
 

=
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

P
C

 =
 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

ID
25

21

A3
43

 A
nd

ov
er

 R
oa

d,
 N

ew
bu

ry
 - 

Re
lo

ca
tio

n 
of

 P
ed

es
tri

an
 C

ro
ss

in
g

To
 in

for
m 

the
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e M

em
be

r f
or

 
Hi

gh
wa

ys
 an

d T
ra

ns
po

rt 
of 

the
 re

su
lts

 of
 

the
 co

ns
ult

ati
on

 of
 a 

pr
op

os
al 

to 
re

loc
ate

 a 
pe

de
str

ian
 cr

os
sin

g a
nd

 al
low

 a 
de

cis
ion

 to
 

be
 m

ad
e a

s t
o w

he
the

r t
o p

ro
ce

ed
 w

ith
 th

e 
pr

op
os

al.

ID
 

18
/0

9/
12

 ID
 

En
vir

on
m

en
t 

Ne
il

St
ac

ey
 

Hi
gh

wa
ys

, 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

(O
pe

ra
tio

na
l),

 
IC

T 
& 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Se

rv
ice

s,
Cu

st
om

er
 

Se
rv

ice
s

 
10

//0
9/

12
 

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

12

ID
25

18

Pe
tit

io
n 

fo
r r

em
ov

al 
of

 p
ro

po
se

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
ch

ar
ge

s a
t B

ur
dw

oo
d 

Ce
nt

re
 ca

r p
ar

k, 
Th

at
ch

am
To

 re
sp

on
d t

o a
 pe

titi
on

 th
at 

ha
s b

ee
n 

su
bm

itte
d t

o t
he

 C
ou

nc
il.

ID
 

26
/0

9/
12

 ID
 

En
vir

on
m

en
t 

M
ar

k 
Co

le

Hi
gh

wa
ys

, 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

(O
pe

ra
tio

na
l),

 
IC

T 
& 

Co
rp

or
at

e 
Se

rv
ice

s,
Cu

st
om

er
 

Se
rv

ice
s

 
18

/0
9/

12
 

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

12

G
A2

52
4

An
nu

al 
Go

ve
rn

an
ce

 S
ta

te
m

en
t 2

01
1/1

2
To

 re
vie

w 
the

 A
nn

ua
l G

ov
er

na
nc

e 
St

ate
me

nt.
G

A 
10

/0
9/

12
 G

A 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

Ia
n

Pr
ie

st
le

y 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
, 

St
ra

te
gi

c
Su

pp
or

t, 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

, 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
31

/0
8/

12
 

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

12

G
A2

52
5

He
ad

s o
f S

er
vic

e A
ss

ur
an

ce
 S

ta
te

m
en

ts
To

 ou
tlin

e t
he

 ar
ea

s o
f c

on
ce

rn
 ra

ise
d b

y 
He

ad
s o

f S
er

vic
e i

n t
he

ir A
ss

ur
an

ce
 

St
ate

me
nts

.
G

A 
10

/0
9/

12
 G

A 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

Ia
n

Pr
ie

st
le

y 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
, 

St
ra

te
gi

c
Su

pp
or

t, 
Em

er
ge

nc
y 

Pl
an

ni
ng

, 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
31

/0
8/

12
 

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

12

EX
25

20

Re
-te

nd
er

 o
f t

he
 C

ou
nc

il's
 In

su
ra

nc
e 

Co
nt

ra
ct

(P
ar

ag
ra

ph
 3

 - 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
re

la
tin

g 
to

 th
e 

fin
an

cia
l/b

us
in

es
s 

af
fa

irs
 o

f a
 p

er
so

n)

EX
 

06
/0

9/
12

 E
X 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
Ia

n
Pr

ie
st

le
y 

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Ca
re

, I
ns

ur
an

ce
 

Ye
s 

29
/0

8/
12

 
 

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
12

Page 90



W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il F
or

wa
rd

 P
lan

 – 
Au

gu
st

 20
12

 to
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
2 

Re
fe

re
nc

e 
De

cis
io

n 
an

d 
Pu

rp
os

e 
De

cis
io

n 
Bo

dy
De

cis
io

n 
Pa

th
 

Di
re

ct
or

at
e 

Co
nt

ac
t 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

(P
or

fo
lio

Ho
ld

er
 fo

r .
 . .

) 
Pa

rt II
Da

te
Re

po
rt

Pu
bl

ish
ed

 
Co

ns
ul

te
e(

s)
 

No
te

s 
De

cis
io

n 
Mo

nt
h

Th
e 

ite
m

s 
in

clu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Pl
an

 w
er

e 
co

rre
ct

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n.
 T

he
 F

or
wa

rd
 P

la
n 

m
ay

, h
ow

ev
er

, c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

yo
u 

ar
e 

ad
vis

ed
 to

 c
on

ta
ct

 
M

oi
ra

 F
ra

se
r –

 T
el

: 0
16

35
 5

19
04

5 
or

 e
-m

ai
l: 

m
fra

se
r@

we
st

be
rk

s.
go

v.
uk

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f a
ny

 a
ge

nd
a 

be
fo

re
 a

tte
nd

in
g 

a 
m

ee
tin

g.
 

Ex
ec

ut
ive

 d
ec

isi
on

s m
ay

 b
e t

ak
en

 b
y t

he
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e a

ct
in

g 
as

 a 
co

lle
ct

ive
 b

od
y o

r b
y o

ffi
ce

rs
 ac

tin
g 

un
de

r d
ele

ga
te

d 
po

we
rs

. 

3

K
E
Y
:

ID
 

=
  

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 
E

X
 =

  
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
C

 
=

  
C

o
u

n
c
il 

G
A

 =
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 &
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

S
 

=
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

P
C

 =
 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

EX
25

14
Co

un
ty

 A
rc

hi
ve

To
 se

ek
 ap

pr
ov

al 
to 

co
nti

nu
e w

ith
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt 

joi
nt 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
t.

EX
 

06
/0

9/
12

 E
X 

En
vir

on
m

en
t 

Am
an

da
 

Lo
ar

in
g 

Co
un

try
sid

e,
 

En
vir

on
m

en
ta

l 
Pr

ot
ec

tio
n,

 
'C

le
an

er
 a

nd
 

G
re

en
er

', 
Cu

ltu
re

 
29

/0
8/

12
 

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

12

EX
24

78
Fi

na
nc

e R
ep

or
t -

 Q
ua

rte
r 1

 
EX

 
06

/0
9/

12
 E

X 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

Jo
se

ph
 

Ho
lm

es

Fi
na

nc
e,

 
Ec

on
om

ic 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

He
al

th
 &

 
Sa

fe
ty

,
Pe

ns
io

ns
 

 
29

/0
8/

12
 

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

12

EX
25

28

Co
m

m
un

ity
 C

ar
e (

Ad
ul

t S
oc

ial
 C

ar
e)

 
Co

m
pl

im
en

ts
 an

d 
Co

m
pl

ain
ts

 R
ep

or
t 

To
 ou

tlin
e t

he
 ap

pr
oa

ch
 to

 ha
nd

lin
g 

co
mp

lai
nts

 fo
r A

du
lt S

oc
ial

 C
ar

e a
nd

 to
 

pr
ov

ide
 in

for
ma

tio
n a

bo
ut 

the
 nu

mb
er

 an
d 

typ
e o

f c
om

pla
int

s w
ith

in 
Co

mm
un

ity
 C

ar
e 

(A
du

lt S
oc

ial
 C

ar
e)

. T
o h

igh
lig

ht 
the

 
nu

mb
er

 an
d n

atu
re

 of
 co

mp
lim

en
ts 

re
ce

ive
d f

ro
m 

Ap
ril 

20
11

 to
 M

ar
ch

 20
12

. T
o 

illu
str

ate
 ho

w 
co

mp
lai

nts
 an

d c
om

pli
me

nts
 

ar
e l

og
ge

d a
nd

 m
on

ito
re

d, 
an

d r
ev

iew
 th

e 
ac

tio
ns

 ta
ke

n a
s a

 re
su

lt o
f th

e l
es

so
ns

 
lea

rn
ed

.

EX
 

06
/0

9/
12

 
Co

m
m

un
itie

s 
M

ar
y 

Pa
ge

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Ca
re

, I
ns

ur
an

ce
 

 
29

/0
8/

12
 

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

12

C2
45

9

Ch
an

ge
s t

o 
th

e C
on

st
itu

tio
n,

 P
ar

ts
 7,

 
9,1

0 a
nd

 13
To

 co
ns

ide
r c

ha
ng

es
 to

 th
e F

ina
nc

ial
 R

ule
s 

of 
pr

oc
ed

ur
e a

nd
 P

ro
toc

ols
 in

 lig
ht 

of 
leg

isl
ati

ve
 ch

an
ge

s.

C
27

/0
9/

12
 C

 
10

/0
9/

12
 G

A 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

Jo
se

ph
 

Ho
lm

es
Le

ad
er

 o
f 

Co
un

cil
 

 
31

/0
8/

12
 

 
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

12

C2
50

1

Pr
op

os
ed

 M
em

be
r D

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e f
or

 20
12

 to
 20

15
To

 as
k C

ou
nc

il t
o a

gr
ee

 th
e M

em
be

r 
De

ve
lop

me
nt 

Pr
og

ra
mm

e f
or

 20
12

/13
C 

27
/0

9/
12

 C
 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
Ju

de
 

Th
om

as
 

Le
ad

er
 o

f 
Co

un
cil

 
 

19
/0

9/
12

 
M

em
be

rs
 

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
12

Page 91



W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il F
or

wa
rd

 P
lan

 – 
Au

gu
st

 20
12

 to
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
2 

Re
fe

re
nc

e 
De

cis
io

n 
an

d 
Pu

rp
os

e 
De

cis
io

n 
Bo

dy
De

cis
io

n 
Pa

th
 

Di
re

ct
or

at
e 

Co
nt

ac
t 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

(P
or

fo
lio

Ho
ld

er
 fo

r .
 . .

) 
Pa

rt II
Da

te
Re

po
rt

Pu
bl

ish
ed

 
Co

ns
ul

te
e(

s)
 

No
te

s 
De

cis
io

n 
Mo

nt
h

Th
e 

ite
m

s 
in

clu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Pl
an

 w
er

e 
co

rre
ct

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n.
 T

he
 F

or
wa

rd
 P

la
n 

m
ay

, h
ow

ev
er

, c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

yo
u 

ar
e 

ad
vis

ed
 to

 c
on

ta
ct

 
M

oi
ra

 F
ra

se
r –

 T
el

: 0
16

35
 5

19
04

5 
or

 e
-m

ai
l: 

m
fra

se
r@

we
st

be
rk

s.
go

v.
uk

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f a
ny

 a
ge

nd
a 

be
fo

re
 a

tte
nd

in
g 

a 
m

ee
tin

g.
 

Ex
ec

ut
ive

 d
ec

isi
on

s m
ay

 b
e t

ak
en

 b
y t

he
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e a

ct
in

g 
as

 a 
co

lle
ct

ive
 b

od
y o

r b
y o

ffi
ce

rs
 ac

tin
g 

un
de

r d
ele

ga
te

d 
po

we
rs

. 

4

K
E
Y
:

ID
 

=
  

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 
E

X
 =

  
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
C

 
=

  
C

o
u

n
c
il 

G
A

 =
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 &
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

S
 

=
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

P
C

 =
 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

C2
52

2

Pr
e P

lan
ni

ng
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Pr

oc
es

s a
nd

 
Ch

ar
gi

ng
To

 se
ek

 C
ou

nc
il a

uth
or

ity
 to

 ch
ar

ge
 fo

r p
re

 
pla

nn
ing

 ap
pli

ca
tio

n a
dv

ice
 an

d f
or

 C
ou

nc
il 

to 
de

leg
ate

 au
tho

rity
 to

 am
en

d t
he

 ch
ar

gin
g 

sc
he

me
 to

 th
e H

ea
d o

f P
lan

nin
g a

nd
 

Co
un

try
sid

e

C 
27

/0
9/

12
 C

 
En

vir
on

m
en

t 
G

ar
y

Lu
gg

 

Pl
an

ni
ng

, 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Po
lic

y,
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

 
19

/0
9/

12
 

De
ve

lo
pm

en
t

In
du

st
ry

 P
an

el
 

(P
la

nn
in

g 
Se

rv
ice

 
Cu

st
om

er
 P

an
el

) 
wi

ll b
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d 
on

 2
9t

h 
Ju

ne
 

20
12

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

12

OC
TO

BE
R 

20
12

 

ID
24

33
Ad

op
tio

n 
of

 P
ar

ish
 P

lan
s

To
 ad

op
t P

ar
ish

 P
lan

s.
ID

 
01

/1
0/

12
 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
Jo

 N
ay

lo
r 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s,

 
Eq

ua
lity

, T
he

 
Vi

sio
ns

, 
Co

m
m

un
itie

s 

 
TB

C 
Lo

ca
l M

em
be

rs
 

an
d 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
If 

ne
ed

ed
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

12

ID
24

45
Ap

pr
ov

al 
of

 V
illa

ge
 D

es
ig

n 
St

at
em

en
ts

To
 ap

pr
ov

e V
illa

ge
 D

es
ign

 S
tat

em
en

ts.
ID

 
01

/1
0/

12
 

En
vir

on
m

en
t 

Pa
ul

a 
Am

or
el

li 

Pl
an

ni
ng

, 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Po
lic

y,
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

 
TB

C 
Lo

ca
l M

em
be

rs
 

an
d 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
If 

ne
ed

ed
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

12

ID
24

21

W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
 F

or
wa

rd
 P

lan
 - 

No
ve

m
be

r 2
01

2 t
o 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 20
13

To
 ad

vis
e M

em
be

rs 
of 

ite
ms

 to
 be

 
co

ns
ide

re
d b

y W
es

t B
er

ks
hir

e C
ou

nc
il o

ve
r 

the
 ne

xt 
fou

r m
on

ths
.

ID
 

18
/1

0/
12

 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

M
oi

ra
 

Fr
as

er
  

Le
ad

er
 o

f 
Co

un
cil

 
 

10
/1

0/
12

 

Al
l M

em
be

rs
, 

pu
bl

ish
ed

 o
n 

we
bs

ite
 fo

r l
oc

al
 

re
sid

en
ts

No
t s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
al

l 
in

.
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
12

EX
23

50

Pr
op

os
al 

fo
r R

ed
ev

elo
pm

en
t o

f 
Ta

ce
ha

m
 H

ou
se

 
(P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 3
 - 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 th

e 
fin

an
cia

l o
r b

us
in

es
s 

af
fa

irs
 o

f a
 p

ar
tic

ul
ar

 
pe

rs
on

)
To

 co
ns

ide
r t

he
 op

tio
ns

 fo
r T

ac
eh

am
 

Ho
us

e a
nd

 ag
re

e b
es

t c
ou

rse
 of

 ac
tio

n.

EX
 

18
/1

0/
12

 E
X 

Co
m

m
un

itie
s 

M
el

 B
ra

in
 

St
ra

te
gy

, 
Co

un
cil

 P
la

n,
 

Ho
us

in
g 

Ye
s 

10
/1

0/
12

 
 

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
12

EX
25

13
Di

re
ct

or
 o

f P
ub

lic
 H

ea
lth

To
 ag

re
e a

 m
od

el 
for

 pu
bli

c h
ea

lth
 ac

ro
ss

 
the

 si
x B

er
ks

hir
e U

nit
ar

ies
.

EX
 

18
/1

0/
12

 E
X 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
An

dy
 

Da
y

Le
ad

er
 o

f t
he

 
Co

un
cil

 
 

10
/1

0/
12

 
 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
12

EX
25

15
Ho

m
e C

ar
e R

ea
bl

em
en

t R
ec

on
fig

ur
at

io
n 

EX
 

18
/1

0/
12

 E
X 

Co
m

m
un

itie
s 

St
ep

he
n 

St
ac

e 
Co

m
m

un
ity

 
Ca

re
, I

ns
ur

an
ce

 
 

10
/1

0/
12

 
 

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
12

Page 92



W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il F
or

wa
rd

 P
lan

 – 
Au

gu
st

 20
12

 to
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
2 

Re
fe

re
nc

e 
De

cis
io

n 
an

d 
Pu

rp
os

e 
De

cis
io

n 
Bo

dy
De

cis
io

n 
Pa

th
 

Di
re

ct
or

at
e 

Co
nt

ac
t 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

(P
or

fo
lio

Ho
ld

er
 fo

r .
 . .

) 
Pa

rt II
Da

te
Re

po
rt

Pu
bl

ish
ed

 
Co

ns
ul

te
e(

s)
 

No
te

s 
De

cis
io

n 
Mo

nt
h

Th
e 

ite
m

s 
in

clu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Pl
an

 w
er

e 
co

rre
ct

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n.
 T

he
 F

or
wa

rd
 P

la
n 

m
ay

, h
ow

ev
er

, c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

yo
u 

ar
e 

ad
vis

ed
 to

 c
on

ta
ct

 
M

oi
ra

 F
ra

se
r –

 T
el

: 0
16

35
 5

19
04

5 
or

 e
-m

ai
l: 

m
fra

se
r@

we
st

be
rk

s.
go

v.
uk

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f a
ny

 a
ge

nd
a 

be
fo

re
 a

tte
nd

in
g 

a 
m

ee
tin

g.
 

Ex
ec

ut
ive

 d
ec

isi
on

s m
ay

 b
e t

ak
en

 b
y t

he
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e a

ct
in

g 
as

 a 
co

lle
ct

ive
 b

od
y o

r b
y o

ffi
ce

rs
 ac

tin
g 

un
de

r d
ele

ga
te

d 
po

we
rs

. 

5

K
E
Y
:

ID
 

=
  

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 
E

X
 =

  
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
C

 
=

  
C

o
u

n
c
il 

G
A

 =
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 &
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

S
 

=
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

P
C

 =
 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

EX
24

92

Lo
ca

lis
in

g 
Su

pp
or

t f
or

 C
ou

nc
il T

ax
 in

 
En

gl
an

d
To

 m
ak

e a
 de

cis
ion

 on
 th

e s
ch

em
e t

o b
e 

ad
op

ted
 by

 W
es

t B
er

ks
hir

e C
ou

nc
il a

s a
 

re
pla

ce
me

nt 
for

 C
ou

nc
il T

ax
 be

ne
fit

EX
 

18
/1

0/
12

 E
X 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
Bi

ll
Bl

ac
ke

tt 

Fi
na

nc
e,

 
Ec

on
om

ic 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

He
al

th
 &

 
Sa

fe
ty

,
Pe

ns
io

ns
 

 
10

/1
0/

12
 

Fo
rm

al
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
wi

th
 

Ta
xp

ay
er

s 
an

d 
m

aj
or

 p
re

ce
pt

in
g 

au
th

or
itie

s 
is 

a 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t o
f 

th
e 

le
gi

sla
at

io
n 

in
tro

du
cin

g
Lo

ca
lis

at
io

n 
of

 
Co

un
cil

 T
ax

 
su

pp
or

t

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

12

EX
25

00

Re
sid

en
tia

l a
nd

 N
ur

sin
g 

Pl
ac

em
en

t 
Po

lic
y

To
 se

ek
 ap

pr
ov

al 
of 

the
 po

lic
y p

os
t 

co
ns

ult
ati

on
.

EX
 

18
/1

0/
12

 E
X 

Co
m

m
un

itie
s 

Ta
nd

ra
 

Fo
rs

te
r

Co
m

m
un

ity
 

Ca
re

, I
ns

ur
an

ce
 

 
10

/1
0/

12
 

wi
de

r c
on

su
la

tio
n 

wi
th

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
12

EX
25

27
Sc

ho
ol

 F
un

di
ng

 R
ef

or
m

 A
pr

il 2
01

3 
To

 ag
re

e t
he

 re
qju

ire
d n

ew
 fu

nd
ing

 fo
rm

ula
 

for
 sc

ho
ols

 in
 W

es
t B

er
ks

hir
e

EX
 

18
/1

0/
12

 E
X 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
Cl

ai
re

W
hi

te

Fi
na

nc
e,

 
Ec

on
om

ic 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

He
al

th
 &

 
Sa

fe
ty

,
Pe

ns
io

ns
 

 
10

/1
0/

12
 

Al
l m

ai
nt

ai
ne

d 
an

d 
Ac

ad
em

y 
Sc

ho
ol

s,
 S

ch
oo

ls 
Fo

ru
m

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

12

NO
VE

MB
ER

 20
12

 

ID
24

34
Ad

op
tio

n 
of

 P
ar

ish
 P

lan
s

To
 ad

op
t P

ar
ish

 P
lan

s.
ID

 
01

/1
1/

12
 

Re
so

ur
ce

s 
Jo

 N
ay

lo
r 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
s,

 
Eq

ua
lity

, T
he

 
Vi

sio
ns

, 
Co

m
m

un
itie

s 

 
TB

C 
Lo

ca
l M

em
be

rs
 

an
d 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
If 

ne
ed

ed
 

No
ve

m
be

r
20

12

ID
24

46
Ap

pr
ov

al 
of

 V
illa

ge
 D

es
ig

n 
St

at
em

en
ts

To
 ap

pr
ov

e V
illa

ge
 D

es
ign

 S
tat

em
en

ts.
ID

 
01

/1
1/

12
 

En
vir

on
m

en
t 

Pa
ul

a 
Am

or
el

li 

Pl
an

ni
ng

, 
Tr

an
sp

or
t 

Po
lic

y,
 P

ro
pe

rty
 

 
TB

C 
Lo

ca
l M

em
be

rs
 

an
d 

St
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
If 

ne
ed

ed
 

No
ve

m
be

r
20

12

Page 93



W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
 C

ou
nc

il F
or

wa
rd

 P
lan

 – 
Au

gu
st

 20
12

 to
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
2 

Re
fe

re
nc

e 
De

cis
io

n 
an

d 
Pu

rp
os

e 
De

cis
io

n 
Bo

dy
De

cis
io

n 
Pa

th
 

Di
re

ct
or

at
e 

Co
nt

ac
t 

Le
ad

 M
em

be
r 

(P
or

fo
lio

Ho
ld

er
 fo

r .
 . .

) 
Pa

rt II
Da

te
Re

po
rt

Pu
bl

ish
ed

 
Co

ns
ul

te
e(

s)
 

No
te

s 
De

cis
io

n 
Mo

nt
h

Th
e 

ite
m

s 
in

clu
de

d 
in

 th
e 

Fo
rw

ar
d 

Pl
an

 w
er

e 
co

rre
ct

 a
t t

he
 ti

m
e 

of
 p

ub
lic

at
io

n.
 T

he
 F

or
wa

rd
 P

la
n 

m
ay

, h
ow

ev
er

, c
ha

ng
e 

an
d 

yo
u 

ar
e 

ad
vis

ed
 to

 c
on

ta
ct

 
M

oi
ra

 F
ra

se
r –

 T
el

: 0
16

35
 5

19
04

5 
or

 e
-m

ai
l: 

m
fra

se
r@

we
st

be
rk

s.
go

v.
uk

 to
 c

on
fir

m
 th

e 
co

nt
en

ts
 o

f a
ny

 a
ge

nd
a 

be
fo

re
 a

tte
nd

in
g 

a 
m

ee
tin

g.
 

Ex
ec

ut
ive

 d
ec

isi
on

s m
ay

 b
e t

ak
en

 b
y t

he
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e a

ct
in

g 
as

 a 
co

lle
ct

ive
 b

od
y o

r b
y o

ffi
ce

rs
 ac

tin
g 

un
de

r d
ele

ga
te

d 
po

we
rs

. 

6

K
E
Y
:

ID
 

=
  

In
d

iv
id

u
a

l 
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 M
e

m
b

e
r 

D
e

c
is

io
n

 
E

X
 =

  
E

x
e

c
u

ti
v
e

 
C

 
=

  
C

o
u

n
c
il 

G
A

 =
 

G
o

v
e

rn
a

n
c
e

 &
 A

u
d

it
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

S
 

=
 

S
ta

n
d

a
rd

s
 C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

P
C

 =
 

P
e

rs
o

n
n

e
l 
C

o
m

m
it
te

e
 

ID
24

22

W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
 F

or
wa

rd
 P

lan
 - 

De
ce

m
be

r 2
01

2 t
o 

Ma
rc

h 
20

13
To

 ad
vis

e M
em

be
rs 

of 
ite

ms
 to

 be
 

co
ns

ide
re

d b
y W

es
t B

er
ks

hir
e C

ou
nc

il o
ve

r 
the

 ne
xt 

fou
r m

on
ths

.

ID
 

15
/1

1/
12

 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

M
oi

ra
 

Fr
as

er
  

Le
ad

er
 o

f 
Co

un
cil

 
 

07
/1

1/
12

 

Al
l M

em
be

rs
, 

pu
bl

ish
ed

 o
n 

we
bs

ite
 fo

r l
oc

al
 

re
sid

en
ts

No
t s

ub
je

ct
 to

 c
al

l 
in

.
No

ve
m

be
r

20
12

EX
24

91

Sc
ho

ol
s a

nd
 E

ar
ly 

Ye
ar

s S
et

tin
gs

 - 
Pl

ac
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 20
13

-2
01

8.
To

 de
ter

mi
ne

 a 
str

ate
gy

 fo
r m

an
ag

ing
 

sc
ho

ol 
or

ga
nis

ati
on

 an
d e

ns
ur

e t
ha

t th
er

e 
ar

e s
uff

ici
en

t s
ch

oo
l p

lac
es

 to
 m

ee
t o

ve
ra

ll 
de

ma
nd

; th
er

e a
re

 su
ffic

ien
t s

ch
oo

l p
lac

es
 

in 
the

 rig
ht 

loc
ati

on
s t

o m
ee

t d
em

an
d; 

the
 

pr
ov

isi
on

 of
 sc

ho
ol 

pla
ce

s a
re

 m
an

ag
ed

 in
 

a c
os

t e
ffe

cti
ve

 m
an

ne
r.

EX
 

29
/1

1/
12

 E
X 

Co
m

m
un

itie
s 

Ca
ro

lin
e 

Co
rc

or
an

 

Ch
ild

re
n 

& 
Yo

un
g 

Pe
op

le
, 

Yo
ut

h 
Se

rv
ice

, 
Ed

uc
at

io
n 

 
21

/1
1/

12
 

Sc
ho

ol
s,

 re
le

va
nt

 
Co

un
cil

 O
ffi

ce
rs

 
No

ve
m

be
r

20
12

EX
24

79
Fi

na
nc

e R
ep

or
t -

 Q
ua

rte
r 2

 
EX

 
29

/1
1/

12
 E

X 
Re

so
ur

ce
s 

Jo
se

ph
 

Ho
lm

es

Fi
na

nc
e,

 
Ec

on
om

ic 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t, 

He
al

th
 &

 
Sa

fe
ty

,
Pe

ns
io

ns
 

 
21

/1
1/

12
 

 
 

No
ve

m
be

r
20

12

Page 94



O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 &

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 W

O
R

K
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 2
01

2/
13

Re
fe

re
nc

e
Su

bj
ec

t/p
ur

po
se

M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
ou

tc
om

e
Re

vi
ew

 B
od

y
Da

te
s

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r(s

)/ 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ar

ea
Po

rtf
ol

io
 

Ho
ld

er
(s

)

St
at

us
:

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

Co
m

pl
et

ed
Co

m
m

en
ts

O
SM

C/
11

/1
04

An
ti-

Ch
ild

 P
ov

er
ty

 S
tra

te
gy

To
 m

on
ito

r t
he

 
st

ra
te

gy
M

on
ito

rin
g 

ite
m

HS
P

St
ar

t: 
 O

n-
go

in
g

En
d:

   
Ap

ril
 2

01
2

Ju
lia

 W
al

dm
an

 –
 

28
15

 C
hi

ld
re

n 
an

d 
Yo

un
g 

Pe
op

le

Cl
lr 

Ire
ne

 N
ei

ll
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
To

 re
po

rt 
ba

ck
…

O
SM

C/
11

/1
05

Di
gn

ity
 a

nd
 N

ut
rit

io
n 

– 
Ho

sp
ita

ls
To

 re
vie

w 
th

e 
Ca

re
 Q

ua
lity

 C
om

m
iss

io
n 

re
po

rt 
on

 
Di

gn
ity

 a
nd

 N
ut

rit
io

n 
- H

os
pi

ta
ls

To
 s

ur
ve

y 
an

d 
ho

ld
 fo

cu
s 

gr
ou

ps
 

de
ta

ilin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n

HS
P

St
ar

t: 
Ju

ly 
20

11
 E

nd
: 

..2
01

2
LI

Nk
, A

ge
 U

K
Cl

lr 
Jo

e 
M

oo
ne

y
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
Co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
/ s

ur
ve

y 
to

 c
om

m
en

ce
 in

 J
ul

y 
20

12
. U

pd
at

e 
fro

m
 L

IN
ks

.

O
SM

C/
11

/1
06

Up
da

te
 o

n 
th

e 
He

al
th

 a
nd

 W
el

lb
ei

ng
 B

oa
rd

To
 re

ce
ive

 u
pd

at
es

 fr
om

 th
e 

He
al

th
 a

nd
 W

el
lb

ei
ng

 
Bo

ar
d

To
 u

pd
at

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

n 
He

al
th

 a
nd

 
W

el
lb

ei
ng

 B
oa

rd

M
on

ito
rin

g 
ite

m
HS

P
O

ng
oi

ng
Ju

ne
 G

ra
ve

s
Cl

lr 
Jo

e 
M

oo
ne

y
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
fo

r d
isc

us
sio

n 
on

 …

O
SM

C/
11

/1
07

Up
da

te
 o

n 
th

e 
He

al
th

 S
er

vi
ce

 in
 W

es
t B

er
ks

hi
re

To
 u

pd
at

e 
m

em
be

rs
 o

n 
th

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
to

 H
ea

lth
 

Se
rv

ice
 in

 W
es

t 
Be

rk
sh

ire

M
on

ito
rin

g 
ite

m
HS

P
O

ng
oi

ng
Be

v 
Se

ar
le

 - 
Di

re
ct

or
 J

oi
nt

 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

s 
an

d 
Co

m
m

iss
io

ni
ng

Cl
lr 

Jo
e 

M
oo

ne
y

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

O
SM

C/
11

/1
19

Co
nt

in
ui

ng
 H

ea
lth

ca
re

 (C
HC

)  
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
To

 e
xa

m
in

e 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
NH

S 
CH

C 
sc

he
m

e 
in

 
th

e 
NH

S 
Be

rk
sh

ire
 W

es
t a

re
a

In
 m

ee
tin

g 
re

vie
w

HS
P

St
ar

t: 
Ja

n 
20

12
   

   
 

En
d:

 A
pr

il 2
01

2
Ja

n 
Ev

an
s 

– 
27

36
 

Ad
ul

t S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

Co
un

cil
lo

r J
oe

 
M

oo
ne

y
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
Aw

ai
tin

g 
re

su
lts

O
SM

C/
12

/1
22

Ho
m

e 
Ca

re
To

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

an
d 

cr
itic

al
ly 

ap
pr

ai
se

 th
e 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
vis

io
n 

of
 H

om
e 

Ca
re

TB
D

HS
P

St
ar

t: 
TB

D
En

d:
 T

BD
Ja

n 
Ev

an
s 

– 
27

36
 

Ad
ul

t S
oc

ia
l C

ar
e

Co
un

cil
lo

r J
oe

 
M

oo
ne

y
To

 b
e 

sc
he

du
le

d
Ite

m
 in

co
ro

pr
at

ed
 a

t O
SM

C 
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 
21

/0
2/

12
. S

co
pe

 a
nd

 T
oR

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 

at
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 1
7/

04
/1

2

O
SM

C/
12

/1
24

Th
e 

ef
fe

ct
 o

f h
ea

lth
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n 

on
 lo

ca
l 

pr
ov

isi
on

 a
nd

 p
riv

at
e 

fin
an

ce
 in

itia
tiv

es
 (P

FI
).

HS
P

St
ar

t: 
TB

D
En

d:
 T

BD
O

SM
C/

09
/0

2
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 R
ep

or
t f

or
 L

ev
el

 O
ne

 In
di

ca
to

rs
To

 m
on

ito
r q

ua
rte

rly
 th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 le
ve

ls 
ac

ro
ss

 
th

e 
Co

un
cil

 a
nd

 to
 c

on
sid

er
, w

he
re

 a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

, a
ny

 
re

m
ed

ia
l a

ct
io

n.

In
 m

ee
tin

g 
re

vie
w 

wi
th

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
pp

lie
d 

by
, a

nd
 

qu
es

tio
ni

ng
 o

f, 
le

ad
 o

ffi
ce

rs
.

M
on

ito
rin

g 
ite

m
O

SM
C

St
ar

t: 
ea

ch
 Q

 
En

d:
  

O
SM

C 
01

/1
1/

11

Ja
so

n 
Te

al
 –

 2
10

2 
 

Po
lic

y 
& 

Co
m

m
un

ica
tio

n

Co
un

cil
lo

r 
An

th
on

y 
St

an
sf

el
d

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

Q
ua

rte
rly

 it
em

.

O
SM

C/
11

/1
03

O
ly

m
pi

cs
 a

nd
 D

ia
m

on
d 

Ju
bi

le
e 

Ev
en

ts
 2

01
2.

To
 re

vie
w 

an
d 

m
on

ito
r e

ve
nt

s 
in

 W
es

t B
er

ks
hi

re
In

 m
ee

tin
g 

re
vie

w.
O

SM
C

Up
da

te
 1

:  
2/

12
Up

da
te

 2
:  

5/
12

Ch
ris

 J
on

es
 2

55
8 

Cu
ltu

re
 &

 Y
ou

th
Ca

ro
l J

ac
ks

on
-

Do
er

ge
 

Co
m

pl
et

e
Up

da
te

s 
fo

llo
wi

ng
 b

rie
fin

g 
in

 N
ov

em
be

r 
20

11
. 

Fu
rth

er
 u

pd
at

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 in
 M

ay
 

20
12

.
O

SM
C/

11
/1

20
Po

th
ol

es
To

 e
xa

m
in

e 
th

e 
m

et
ho

do
lo

gy
 in

 o
pe

ra
tio

n 
fo

r t
he

 
re

pa
ir 

of
 p

ot
 h

ol
es

Ta
sk

 g
ro

up
 re

vie
w 

wi
th

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
pp

lie
d 

by
, a

nd
 

qu
es

tio
ni

ng
 o

f, 
le

ad
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 

ex
te

rn
al

 p
ar

tn
er

s.

O
SM

C
Fe

b-
12

M
ar

k 
Ed

wa
rd

s 
– 

22
08

 H
ig

hw
ay

s 
& 

Tr
an

sp
or

t

Co
un

cil
lo

r 
Da

vid
 B

et
ts

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

Ite
m

 to
 b

eg
in

 fo
llo

wi
ng

 th
e 

co
m

pl
et

io
n 

of
 

Ite
m

 7
8,

 C
ou

nc
illo

rs
 B

ria
n 

Be
dw

el
l, 

Em
m

a 
W

eb
st

er
, K

ei
th

 W
oo

dh
am

s 
pa

rti
cip

at
in

g.
Fi

rs
t m

ee
tin

g 
he

ld
 o

n 
29

/0
3/

12
.

Agenda Item 16.

Page 95



O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 &

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 W

O
R

K
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 2
01

2/
13

Re
fe

re
nc

e
Su

bj
ec

t/p
ur

po
se

M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
ou

tc
om

e
Re

vi
ew

 B
od

y
Da

te
s

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r(s

)/ 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ar

ea
Po

rtf
ol

io
 

Ho
ld

er
(s

)

St
at

us
:

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

Co
m

pl
et

ed
Co

m
m

en
ts

O
SM

C/
11

/1
29

Ho
us

in
g 

Al
lo

ca
tio

ns
 p

ol
ic

y
To

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f a
 n

ew
 p

ol
icy

In
 m

ee
tin

g 
po

lic
y 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

su
pp

or
te

d 
by

 ta
sk

 
gr

ou
p 

an
d 

in
di

vid
ua

l M
em

be
r 

ac
tiv

ity
.

O
SM

C
Fe

b-
12

M
el

 B
ra

in
 - 

24
03

 
So

cia
l C

ar
e 

Co
m

m
iss

io
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

Ho
us

in
g

Co
un

cil
lo

r A
la

n 
La

w
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
Ad

de
d 

to
 w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

at
 th

e 
10

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

12
 m

ee
tin

g,
 fo

llo
wi

ng
 a

 
su

gg
es

tio
n 

by
 C

or
po

ra
te

 B
oa

rd

O
SM

C/
12

/1
23

Do
m

es
tic

 A
bu

se
To

 u
nd

er
st

an
d 

an
d 

cr
itic

al
ly 

ap
pr

ai
se

 th
e 

sy
st

em
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 fo
r t

he
 m

an
ge

m
en

t o
f d

om
es

tic
 

ab
us

e 
in

 th
e 

Di
st

ric
t

TB
D

O
SM

C
St

ar
t: 

Se
pt

 2
01

2
En

d:
 

Da
vy

 P
ea

rs
on

, 
Ro

bi
n 

Ri
ck

ar
d 

(T
BC

)

Co
un

cil
lo

r 
An

th
on

y 
St

an
sf

el
d

To
 b

e 
sc

he
du

le
d

Ite
m

 in
co

ro
pr

at
ed

 a
t O

SM
C 

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 

21
/0

2/
12

. S
co

pe
 a

nd
 T

oR
 to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 
at

 th
e 

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 1

7/
04

/1
2

O
SM

C/
12

/1
28

Yo
ut

h 
Ju

st
ic

e 
 

To
 re

vie
w 

th
e 

ou
tc

om
es

 b
ei

ng
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

fo
llo

wi
ng

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

m
ad

e 
to

 p
ol

ice
 in

te
rv

en
tio

ns
 w

ith
 y

ou
ng

 
pe

op
le

 a
nd

 th
e 

re
su

lta
nt

 d
ro

p 
in

 p
eo

pl
e 

en
te

rin
g 

th
e 

yo
ut

h 
ju

st
ice

 s
ys

te
m

.

In
 m

ee
tin

g 
re

vie
w 

wi
th

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
pp

lie
d 

by
, a

nd
 

qu
es

tio
ni

ng
 o

f, 
le

ad
 o

ffi
ce

rs
.

O
SM

C
St

ar
t: 

Se
pt

 2
01

2
En

d:
 S

ep
t 2

01
2

Su
sa

n 
Po

we
ll, 

Ro
bi

n 
Ri

ck
ar

d
Co

un
cil

lo
r 

An
th

on
y 

St
an

sf
el

d

Ite
m

 ra
ise

d 
in

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 p

er
fo

rm
an

ce
 

re
po

rte
d 

at
 Q

2 
20

11
/1

2.
 S

ee
 a

ge
nd

a 
an

d 
m

in
ut

es
 o

f 2
1/

02
/1

2.
 T

o 
be

 h
ea

rd
 a

t 
O

SM
C 

in
 S

ep
te

m
be

r 1
2

O
SM

C/
12

/1
30

Co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n

Th
e 

ef
fe

ct
ive

ne
ss

 o
f c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

by
 th

e 
Co

un
cil

 

Ta
sk

 g
ro

up
 re

vie
w 

wi
th

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
pp

lie
d 

by
, a

nd
 

qu
es

tio
ni

ng
 o

f, 
le

ad
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 

ex
te

rn
al

 p
ar

tn
er

s.

O
SM

C
St

ar
t: 

TB
D

En
d:

 T
BD

Ja
so

n 
Te

al
 –

 2
10

2 
 

Po
lic

y 
& 

Co
m

m
un

ica
tio

n

Co
un

cil
lo

r 
An

th
on

y 
St

an
sf

el
d

To
 b

e 
sc

he
du

le
d

ite
m

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 a
t O

SM
C 

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 

20
12

-0
4-

17

O
SM

C/
12

/1
31

Yo
ut

h 
Cl

ub
s

To
 re

vie
w 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
to

 m
an

ag
e 

th
e 

tra
ns

fe
r o

f y
ou

th
 c

lu
bs

 fr
om

 lo
ca

l a
ut

ho
rit

y 
co

nt
ro

l a
nd

 
th

e 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 in

 p
la

ce
 re

su
lta

nt
ly.

O
SM

C
St

ar
t: 

31
/0

7/
12

En
d:

 
Co

un
cil

lo
r I

re
ne

 
Ne

ill
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
ite

m
 in

co
rp

or
at

ed
 a

t O
SM

C 
m

ee
tin

g 
of

 
29

/0
5/

12
.  

fo
r d

isc
us

sio
n 

on
 2

6/
06

/1
2

O
SM

C/
12

/1
33

An
nu

al
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

Re
vi

ew
 2

01
1/

12
To

 re
ce

ive
 th

e 
an

nu
al

 s
cr

ut
in

y 
re

vie
w 

re
po

rt
In

 m
ee

tin
g 

vie
w 

of
 

an
nu

al
 s

cr
ut

in
y 

re
po

rt

O
SM

C
St

ar
t: 

31
/0

7/
12

En
d:

31
/0

7/
12

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

ite
m

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 a
t O

SM
C 

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 

29
/0

5/
12

.  
fo

r d
isc

us
sio

n 
on

 2
6/

06
/1

2

O
SM

C/
12

/1
34

Ho
us

in
g 

an
d 

Ho
m

el
es

sn
es

s
To

 c
on

sid
er

 th
e 

fa
ct

or
s 

co
nt

rib
ut

in
g 

to
 a

n 
in

cr
ea

se
 in

 
ho

m
el

es
sn

es
s.

In
 m

ee
tin

g 
re

vie
w 

wi
th

 
re

pr
es

en
ta

tiv
es

 
fro

m
 S

ov
er

ei
gn

 
Ho

us
in

g 
an

d 
CA

B

O
SM

C
St

ar
t: 

31
/0

7/
12

En
d:

Ju
ne

 G
ra

ve
s

Co
un

cil
lo

r 
Ro

ge
r C

ro
ft

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

ite
m

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 a
t O

SM
C 

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 

26
/0

6/
12

O
SM

C/
09

/5
7

Re
ve

nu
e 

an
d 

ca
pi

ta
l b

ud
ge

t r
ep

or
ts

To
 re

ce
ive

 th
e 

la
te

st
 p

er
io

d 
re

ve
nu

e 
an

d 
ca

pi
ta

l 
bu

dg
et

 re
po

rts
To

 c
on

sid
er

 a
ny

 a
re

as
 o

f c
on

ce
rn

.

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
pp

lie
d 

by
, a

nd
 

qu
es

tio
ni

ng
 o

f, 
le

ad
 o

ffi
ce

r v
ia

 in
 

m
ee

tin
g 

re
vie

w

M
on

ito
rin

g 
ite

m
RM

W
G

La
te

st
 re

po
rt 

to
 e

ac
h 

m
ee

tin
g

An
dy

 W
al

ke
r –

 
24

33
 F

in
an

ce
Co

un
cil

lo
r A

la
n 

La
w

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

M
ay

 le
ad

 to
 a

re
as

 fo
r i

n 
de

pt
h 

re
vie

w.

Page 96



O
V

E
R

V
IE

W
 &

 S
C

R
U

T
IN

Y
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 C

O
M

M
IS

S
IO

N
 W

O
R

K
 P

R
O

G
R

A
M

M
E

 2
01

2/
13

Re
fe

re
nc

e
Su

bj
ec

t/p
ur

po
se

M
et

ho
do

lo
gy

Ex
pe

ct
ed

 
ou

tc
om

e
Re

vi
ew

 B
od

y
Da

te
s

Le
ad

 O
ffi

ce
r(s

)/ 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ar

ea
Po

rtf
ol

io
 

Ho
ld

er
(s

)

St
at

us
:

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

Co
m

pl
et

ed
Co

m
m

en
ts

O
SM

C/
09

/6
3

Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t R
ep

or
ts

 
To

 re
ce

ive
 th

e 
la

te
st

 re
po

rt 
on

 th
e 

ch
an

ge
s 

to
 th

e 
Co

un
cil

's 
es

ta
bl

ish
m

en
t.

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
pp

lie
d 

by
, a

nd
 

qu
es

tio
ni

ng
 o

f, 
le

ad
 o

ffi
ce

r v
ia

 in
 

m
ee

tin
g 

re
vie

w

M
on

ito
rin

g 
ite

m
RM

W
G

Co
ns

id
er

 Q
2 

& 
Q

4 
re

po
rts

Ro
be

rt 
O

'R
ei

lly
 –

 
23

58
 H

um
an

 
Re

so
ur

ce
s

Co
un

cil
lo

r 
An

th
on

y 
St

an
sf

el
d

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

M
ay

 le
ad

 to
 a

re
as

 fo
r i

n 
de

pt
h 

re
vie

w.

O
SM

C/
11

/1
10

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

g
To

 re
vie

w 
th

e 
Co

un
cil

’s 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 fo
r 

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

g.

In
 a

 m
ee

tin
g 

re
vie

w 
th

e 
Co

un
cil

’s 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 to
 

En
er

gy
 S

av
in

g

RM
W

G
St

ar
t: 

Ap
ril

 2
01

2
En

d:
  A

pr
il 2

01
2 

Ad
ria

n 
Sl

au
gh

te
r

Co
un

cil
lo

r 
Hi

la
ry

 C
ol

e
Co

m
pl

et
e

Re
vie

w 
to

 b
e 

un
de

rta
ke

n 
in

 A
pr

il 2
01

4.

O
SM

C/
11

/1
11

Ri
sk

 R
eg

is
te

r
To

 s
cr

ut
in

ise
 in

di
vid

ua
l it

em
s 

on
 th

e 
Ri

sk
 R

eg
ist

er
 o

n 
an

 a
nn

ua
l b

as
is.

In
 m

ee
tin

g 
re

vie
w 

an
d 

sc
ru

tin
ise

 
in

di
vid

ua
l it

em
s 

on
 R

isk
 R

eg
ist

er
.

M
on

ito
rin

g 
ite

m
RM

W
G

O
ng

oi
ng

Ia
n 

Pr
ie

st
le

y
Co

un
cil

lo
r 

Da
vid

 B
et

ts
In

 P
ro

gr
es

s
Ne

xt
 re

qu
es

t S
ep

t 2
01

2

O
SM

C/
11

/1
12

M
ed

iu
m

 T
er

m
 F

in
an

ci
al

 S
tra

te
gy

To
 re

vie
w 

th
e 

ro
le

 a
nd

 fo
rm

at
 o

f t
he

 M
TF

S
In

 m
ee

tin
g 

re
vie

w 
of

 th
e 

M
TF

S
RM

W
G

St
ar

t: 
Se

pt
/O

ct
 2

01
2

En
d:

  O
ct

 2
01

2 
An

dy
 W

al
ke

r
Co

un
cil

lo
r A

la
n 

La
w

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

Di
sc

us
se

d 
by

 R
M

W
G

 - 
2/

7/
12

. I
te

m
 to

 
co

ve
r t

he
 im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

M
TF

S 
fro

m
 th

e 
in

tro
 o

f t
he

 L
oc

al
 G

ov
 F

in
an

ce
 B

ill 
in

 1
3/

14
 

an
d 

be
yo

nd
 a

s 
we

ll a
s 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
im

pa
ct

 o
f B

us
 R

at
e 

Re
fo

rm
. 

O
SM

C/
11

/1
13

Pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 fo

r B
lu

e 
Ba

dg
e 

Ho
ld

er
To

 re
vie

w 
th

e 
op

er
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
ne

w 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

, 
cr

ite
ria

 a
nd

 ru
le

s 
of

 u
se

 fo
r B

lu
e 

Ba
dg

e 
ho

ld
er

s 
fo

llo
wi

ng
 th

e 
in

tro
du

ct
io

n 
of

 th
em

 in
 J

an
ua

ry
 2

01
2.

In
 m

ee
tin

g 
re

vie
w.

RM
W

G
St

ar
t: 

Ja
n 

20
13

En
d:

  J
an

 2
01

3 
M

ar
k 

Ed
wa

rd
s

Co
un

cil
lo

r 
Da

vid
 B

et
ts

In
 P

ro
gr

es
s

Re
qu

es
te

d 
by

 R
M

W
G

 o
n 

26
 J

ul
y 

20
11

O
SM

C/
12

/1
21

As
se

t M
an

ag
em

en
t  

To
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
an

d 
cr

itic
al

ly 
ap

pr
ai

se
 th

e 
sy

st
em

s 
an

d 
pr

oc
es

s 
in

 p
la

ce
 fo

r t
he

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f t
he

 C
ou

nc
il's

 
as

se
ts

In
 m

ee
tin

g 
re

vie
w 

wi
th

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

su
pp

lie
d 

by
, a

nd
 

qu
es

tio
ni

ng
 o

f, 
le

ad
 o

ffi
ce

rs
.

RM
W

G
St

ar
t: 

Ju
ly 

20
12

En
d:

 J
ul

y 
20

12
Jo

hn
 A

sh
wo

rth
Co

un
cil

lo
r K

ei
th

 
Ch

op
pi

ng
Co

m
pl

et
e

Co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 d
ep

th
 o

n 
2/

7/
12

.  
Po

ss
ib

le
 

re
tu

rn
 to

 a
 fu

tu
re

 m
ee

tin
g 

wi
th

 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

of
 p

ro
ce

ss
 fo

r T
ac

eh
am

 
Ho

us
e 

as
 a

n 
ex

am
pl

e.

O
SM

C/
12

/1
32

Sc
ho

ol
 A

ca
de

m
ie

s
To

 c
on

sid
er

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f L
oc

al
 A

ut
ho

rit
y 

m
ai

nt
ai

ne
d 

sc
ho

ol
s 

co
nv

er
tin

g 
to

 a
ca

de
m

y 
st

at
us

 o
n 

th
e 

Co
un

cil
’s 

fin
an

ce
s.

RM
W

G
St

ar
t: 

TB
D

En
d:

 T
BD

Co
un

cil
lo

r I
re

ne
 

Ne
ill

To
 b

e 
sc

he
du

le
d

Ite
m

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 a
t O

SM
C 

m
ee

tin
g 

of
 

20
12

-0
6-

26

K
ey

:
O

S
M

C
O

ve
rv

ie
w

 a
nd

 S
cr

ut
in

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

om
m

is
si

on
H

S
P

H
ea

lth
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

P
an

el
R

M
W

G
R

es
ou

rc
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t W

or
ki

ng
 G

ro
up

Page 97



Page 98

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2. Minutes
	4. Actions from previous Minutes
	8. Key Accountable Measures and Activities 2011/12: Year End Results.
	Item 8 Performance Results Year End 11 12

	9. Repair of Pot Holes
	Item 9a TG Minutes draft 12 03 29
	Item 9b Minutes draft 2012-05-22

	10. Youth Clubs
	12. Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission Annual Report
	Scrutiny Annual Report 2011 12

	13. Health Scrutiny Panel
	14. Resource Management Working Group
	15. West Berkshire Forward Plan August 2012 to November 2012
	16. Overview and Scrutiny Management Commission Work Programme

